
 

Call-In Sub-Committee Agenda 

Date: Monday 7 September 2020 

 

Time: 7.30 pm 

 

Venue: Virtual Meeting - Online 

Membership  (Quorum 3)  

Chair: Councillor Angella Murphy-Strachan  

Labour Councillors: Natasha Proctor 
Chloe Smith 
 

Conservative Councillors: Stephen Greek 
Norman Stevenson 
 

Labour Reserve Members: 1. Jeff Anderson 
2. James Lee 
3. Pamela Fitzpatrick 
 

Conservative Reserve Members: 1. Jean Lammiman 
2. Lynda Seymour 
 

Contact:  Daksha Ghelani, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1881 E-mail:  daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 

Scan this code for the electronic agenda: 

 



Call-In Sub-Committee - 7 September 2020 2 

Useful Information 

Meeting details 

This meeting is open to the press and public and can be viewed on  
www.harrow.gov.uk/virtualmeeting 
 

Filming / recording of meetings 

Please note that proceedings at this meeting may be recorded or filmed.  If you choose to 
attend, you will be deemed to have consented to being recorded and/or filmed. 
 
The recording will be made available on the Council website following the meeting. 

Agenda publication date:  Tuesday 1 September 2020 

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/virtualmeeting
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/virtualmeeting


 

Call-In Sub-Committee - 7 September 2020 3 

Agenda - Part I  

1. Notification of a replacement of a Councillor on the Sub-Committee  

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 1.5, the Sub-Committee is required to note 
the replacement of Councillor Richard Almond by Councillor Stephen Greek as the main 
Member of the Call-In Sub-Committee. 
 

2. Attendance by Reserve Members  

To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after the 

commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act as a 
Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after his/her 
arrival. 

 
3. Declarations of Interest  

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising from 
business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Sub-Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

4. Minutes (Pages 5 - 12) 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2019 be taken as read and signed as a 
correct record. 
 

5. Appointment of Vice-Chair  

To appoint a Vice-Chair for the Municipal Year 2020/21. 
 

6. Protocol for the Operation of the Call-In Sub-Committee (Pages 13 - 14) 
 

7. Call-in of Leader Decision Meeting decision held on 19 August 2020 - Harrow 
Street Spaces Programme - 2020/21 (Pages 15 - 160) 

a) Notice invoking the Call-in; 
b) Minutes of the Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting held on 19 August 2020; 
c) Report submitted to the Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting held on 19 August 

2020. 
 

Agenda - Part II - Nil  

REASONS FOR LATENESS AND URGENCY   
In accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, this meeting 



 

Call-In Sub-Committee - 7 September 2020 4 

is being called with less than 5 clear working days’ notice by virtue of the special 
circumstances and grounds for urgency stated below:- 
 
Under Committee Procedure Rule 46.6 a meeting of the Call-in Sub-Committee must be 
held within 7 clear working days of the receipt of a request for Call-in. This meeting 
therefore had to be arranged at very short notice and it was not possible for the agenda to 
be published 5 clear working days prior to the meeting. 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 Call-In Sub-Committee - 17 June 2019 - 1 - 

 
 
 

CALL-IN SUB-COMMITTEE   

MINUTES 

 

17 JUNE 2019 

 
 
Chair: * Councillor Angella Murphy-Strachan 
   
Councillors: * Richard Almond 

* Jean Lammiman (1)  
 

* James Lee (2) 
* Natasha Proctor 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

  Keith Ferry 
  Paul Osborn 
 

Minute 6 
Minute 6 

* Denotes Member present 
(1) and (2) Denote category of Reserve Members 
 
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following 
appointed reserve members: 
 
Ordinary Member 
 

Reserve Member 
 

Councillor Chloe Smith Councillor James Lee 
Councillor Norman Stevenson Councillor Jean Lammiman 
 

2. Declarations of Interest   
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2018 be 
taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

5

Agenda Item 4
Pages 5 to 12



 

- 2 -  Call-In Sub-Committee - 17 June 2019 

4. Appointment of Vice-Chair   
 
It was moved by Councillor Lee and seconded by Councillor Proctor that 
Councillor Smith be elected Vice-Chair for the Municipal Year 2019/20.  On 
being put to the vote the motion was declared carried. 
 

5. Protocol for the Operation of the Call-In Sub-Committee   
 
The Chair drew attention to the document ‘Protocol for the Operation of the 
Call-In Sub-Committee’.  She outlined the procedure to be followed at the 
meeting, and the options open to the Sub-Committee at the conclusion of the 
process. 
 
In accordance with Committee Procedure Rule 46.5, a notice seeking to 
invoke the call-in procedure must state at least one of the following grounds in 
support of the request for a call-in of the decision: 
 
a) inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision; 
 
b) the absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision; 

 
c) the decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or not 

wholly in accordance with the budget framework; 
 

d) the action is not proportionate to the desired outcome; 
 

e) a potential human rights challenge; 
 

f) insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice. 
 

She informed the Sub-Committee that the grounds a), b), c) and f) had been 
cited on the Call In notice, and this had been deemed to be valid for the 
purposes of Call-in. 
 
Referring to paragraph 8 of the Protocol, the Legal Adviser stated that the 
Sub-Committee, having considered the grounds for the call-in and the 
information provided at the meeting, may come to one of the following 
conclusions:- 
 
(i) that the challenge to the decision should be taken no further and the 

decision be implemented; 
(ii) that the decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or 

not wholly in accordance with the budget framework and should 
therefore be referred to the Council. In such a case the Call-in Sub-
Committee must set out the nature of its concerns for Council; or 

(iii) that the matter should be referred back to the decision taker (i.e the 
Portfolio Holder or Executive, whichever took the decision) for 
reconsideration. In such a case the Call-in Sub-Committee must set out 
the nature of its concerns / reasons for referral for the decision 
taker/Executive. 

 
 

6



 

Call-In Sub-Committee - 17 June 2019 - 3 - 

RESOLVED:  That the Call-In would be determined on the basis of the 
following grounds: 
 
a) inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision; 
 
b) the absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision; 

 
c)  the decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or not 
wholly in accordance with the budget framework; and 

 
d) insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice. 
 

6. Call-in of the Cabinet Decision - (30 May 2019) - Harrow Strategic  
Development Partnership   
 
The Sub-Committee received the papers in respect of the call-in notice 
submitted by 11 Members of the Council in relation to a decision made by the 
Cabinet on 30 May 2019, setting out a process to procure a Strategic 
Development Partner to assist with the delivery of a number of the Council’s 
core strategic development sites within the Regeneration Programme. 
 
The Chair advised the Sub-Committee on the suggested order of proceedings 
and reminded members of the timings allowed for submissions and questions.  
The Chair then invited the representative of the signatories to present his 
reasons for the call-in. 
 
The representative began by explaining that he was not calling in the decision 
to develop a Partnership; the call-in was more concerned with the 
shortcomings in the processes that had been followed to reach this decision 
as set out in the Call-in notice.  The representative went on refer to the 
specific reasons for the call-in and made a number of points with regard to 
each of the grounds as follows: 
 
Inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision 
 
Given that that the proposals were a significant departure from previous plans 
there was a reasonable expectation that further consultation would take place 
with residents or stakeholders.  The report however only refers to consultation 
carried out 5 years ago.  It was also disappointing that the Opposition had 
been denied an opportunity to discuss suggestions and concerns so that a 
cross party consensus to what would be a long term commitment could be 
secured.  
 
The absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision 
 
The report includes three sites but specifically excludes the Greenhill Way 
site.  No explanation is provided for this exclusion and no financial 
assessment is given about the site. 
 
The decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or not 
wholly in accordance with the budget framework 
 

7



 

- 4 -  Call-In Sub-Committee - 17 June 2019 

The decision sets the Council on a path that may result in expenditure outside 
the current budget framework set by Full Council in February 2019.  Any 
changes to this framework would require the approval of Full Council. 
 
Insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice. 
 
The report does not address the financial implications of the three schemes.  
Nor does it provide financial evidence to support the preferred site for the New 
Civic Centre. 
 
The representative concluded his presentation by saying that he was 
disappointed that he had found it necessary to call-in the decision but felt that 
it was important for the Cabinet to get things right from the beginning given 
the implications for ratepayers for the next 20/30 years. 
 
Responding to each of the grounds for the call-in the Portfolio Holder for 
Planning, Regeneration and Employment made the following points: 
 
Inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision 
 
Further consultation was not appropriate or necessary at this stage as the 
decision being sought was to agree a framework and commence a 
procurement exercise.  Further consultation would be carried out once the 
exercise had been completed and the delivery mechanism set up. 
 
The absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision 
 
There was no need for the report to include a financial assessment of sites, 
including the Greenhill Way site as, to emphasise the point made above, the 
decision being sought was to commence a procurement process and not to 
consult on sites at this stage. 
 
The decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or not 
wholly in accordance with the budget framework 
 
As the report in paragraph 9 - Financial Implications – made clear the cost of 
the procurement exercise would be contained within the budget agreed by 
Full Council to fund the revenue elements of the Regeneration Programme.  
The decision was not therefore contrary to the budget framework.  
 
Insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice. 
 
The business cases for the three schemes and financial evidence to support 
the preferred site for the New Civic Centre were not relevant in the context of 
seeking a decision to commence a procurement exercise. 
 
Responding to questions from members of the Sub-Committee the Portfolio 
Holder made number of points including the following: 
 

 Consultation had not taken place with stakeholders for the reason 
given earlier but further consultation would take place once the delivery 
vehicle had been set up; 

8



 

Call-In Sub-Committee - 17 June 2019 - 5 - 

 

 The outcome of the procurement exercise would be included in a report 
due to be submitted to Cabinet in April 2020 and this report would also 
seek a  decision on the appointment of a Strategic Development 
Partner; 
 

 The advantages of developing a Strategic Development Partnership 
over other delivery mechanisms were set out in paragraph 2.9 of the 
report and it would be premature to select a partner until the 
procurement exercise had been completed and a report submitted to 
Cabinet; 
 

 Once a partner had been selected and as Section 9 of the report 
indicated the future costs would be assessed and if any adjustments to 
the revenue budget or capital programme were required then 
recommendations would be made to Full Council via Cabinet as 
required under the Budget Framework; 
 

 As in most ventures there would be risks but these would be identified 
as part of the due diligence process and the intention was for the 
Council and selected partner to share them; 
 

 The three sites referred to in the report had been selected following a 
financial  assessment of 58 sites; 
 

 The financial assessments had not been included in the report as they 
were not relevant to the proposal to start a procurement exercise; 
 

 The Greenhill Way site had been excluded at this stage for the reason 
stated in paragraph 2.5 of the report but could be included at a later 
stage; 
 

 The selection of the Peel Road site for the new civic centre would 
contribute to the wider regeneration of Wealdstone and  the decision of 
the police to build there  vindicated this selection;  
 

 As the recommendations in Section 1 and paragraph 2.3 made clear 
the report was seeking the Cabinet’s agreement to procure a Strategic 
Development Partner and nothing more; and 
 

 A number of key decisions directly relating to the procurement exercise 
had already been taken as set out in paragraph 3.3 of the report. 

 
 On being asked to sum up the representative of the signatories reiterated a 
number of points: 
 

 That the consultation was inadequate; 
 

 No evidence had been provided to justify the selection of the Peel 
Road site for the new civic centre over the Greenhill Way site; 
 

9



 

- 6 -  Call-In Sub-Committee - 17 June 2019 

 The business cases for the three sites including the Greenhill Way site, 
should have been included in the report; 
 

 To attract attention to the procurement process as much information as 
possible needed to be in the brief including the business cases for all 
four sites obviating the need for bidders to rebid in the event of a 
decision subsequently being taken to add a site; and 
 

 The budgetary implications had not been assessed let alone included 
in the Budgetary Framework contrary to the Constitution. 

 
The representative concluded by stressing the importance of getting the 
process right from the beginning.  He estimated that the proposal would add 
£16m a year to the Council’s debt which would double if things went wrong.  
The shortcomings in the decision taken by the Cabinet to initiate the 
procurement process were clear to see and he urged the Sub-Committee to 
uphold the grounds for the Call-in and refer the issue back to Cabinet for 
reconsideration. 
 
The Portfolio Holder concluded by saying that there were no grounds for 
upholding the call-in.  The report was about the procurement exercise, setting 
up a Strategic Development Partnership and selecting a partner.  It was not 
about specific sites.  No consultation was therefore necessary.  The costs 
could be met from the current budget agreed by Full Council so no decision 
had been taken contrary to the Budget Framework.  The decision had also 
been made having regard to the legal and finance advice given in the report.  
He therefore urged the Sub-Committee to take no further action thus allowing 
the decision to be implemented without further delay. 
 
The Sub-Committee adjourned from 7.55 pm to 9.15 pm for deliberations. 
 
Councillor Jean Lammiman asked for her objection to the Chair leaving the 
room to be recorded. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the decision of Cabinet be referred back in on ground 2) 
the absence of adequate information on which to base a decision be upheld 
as there was a reasonable expectation that the financial assessments carried 
out in 2014 would be updated and the inclusion of these updated 
assessments would not only have added transparency to the decision making 
process, it would also have helped to explain why the Greenhill Way site had 
been excluded. 
 
The following grounds for call-in all not be upheld. 
 
Inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision. 
 
3) The decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or not 

wholly in accordance with the budget framework with the budget 
framework. 

 
4) Insufficient consideration of legal and finance advice. 

10



 

Call-In Sub-Committee - 17 June 2019 - 7 - 

 
Reasons:  Further consultation not necessary at this stage.  The costs are 
being met from the existing budgetary provision. Legal and financial advice 
had been provided and considered. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 6.30 pm, closed at 9.20 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR ANGELLA MURPHY-STRACHAN 
Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Protocol for the operation of the Call-In Sub-Committee 

1. Call-in is the process whereby a decision of the Executive, Portfolio Holder or Officer 
(where the latter is taking a Key Decision) taken but not implemented, may be examined 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to implementation.  The Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee has established the Call-in Sub-Committee to carry out this role.  
Committee Procedure Rule 46 sets out the rules governing the call-in process. 

The process for Call-in 

2. Six of the Members of the Council can call in a decision of the Executive which has 
been taken but not implemented.  In relation to Executive decisions on education 
matters only, the number of Members required to call in a decision which has been 
made but not implemented shall be six Councillors or, in the alternative, six persons 
comprising representatives of the voting co-opted members and at least one political 
group on Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Only decisions relating to Executive 
functions, whether delegated or not, may be called in. 

150 members of the public (defined as anyone registered on the electoral roll of the 
Borough) can call in a decision of the Executive, which has been taken but not 
implemented. 

3. Decisions of the Executive will not be implemented for 5 clear working days following 
the publication of the decision and a decision can only be called in within this period 
(this does not apply to urgent decisions - Committee Procedure Rule 46 refers).  The 
notice of the decision will state the date on which the decisions may be implemented if 
not called in. 

4. Call-in must be by notification to the Monitoring Officer in writing or by fax: 

(i) signed by all six Members and voting co-optees requesting the call-in.  A request 
for call-in by e-mail will require a separate e-mail from each of the six Members 
concerned.   

(ii) signed by all 150 members of the public registered on the electoral roll, and 
stating their names and addresses. 

5. In accordance with Committee Procedure Rule 45.5, a notice seeking to invoke the call-
in procedure must state at least one of the following grounds in support of the request 
for a call-in of the decision:- 

(a) inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision; 

(b) the absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision; 

(c) the decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or not wholly in 
accordance with the budget framework; 

(d) the action is not proportionate to the desired outcome; 

(e) a potential human rights challenge; 

(f) insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice. 

13

Agenda Item 6
Pages 13 to 14



 Referral to the Call-in Sub-Committee 

6. Once a notice invoking the call-in procedure has been received, the decision may not be 
implemented until the Chair and nominated member have considered the guidance 
outlined in Appendix 1 to the Committee Procedure Rules and, if required, the Call-in 
Sub-Committee has considered the decision. The Monitoring Officer shall in consultation 
with the Chair arrange a meeting of the Call-in Sub-Committee to be held within seven 
clear working days of the receipt of the request for call-in.   

7. The Call-in Sub-Committee will consider the decision and the reasons for call-in. The 
Sub-Committee may invite the Executive decision-taker and a representative of those 
calling in the decision to provide information at the meeting. 

8. The Sub-Committee may come to one of the following conclusions:- 

(i) that the challenge to the decision should be taken no further and the decision be 
implemented; 

(ii) that the decision is contrary to the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in 
accordance with the budget framework, and should therefore be referred to the 
Council. In such a case the Call-in sub-committee must set out the nature of its 
concerns for Council; or  

(iii) that the matter should be referred back to the decision taker (i.e the Portfolio 
Holder or Executive, whichever took the decision) for reconsideration. In such a 
case the Call-in sub-committee must set out the nature of its concerns for the 
decision taker/Executive. 

14



Notice of Call-In of Portfolio Holder Decision of 19 August 2020 

Call-in:  School Streets Decision 

I would like to Call-in one of the decisions made by Cllr. Keith Ferry at the Portfolio 
Holder Decision Meeting that took place on Wednesday 19th August 2020.  

Cllr. Ferry made a series of decisions at the Meeting relating to the Harrow Street 
Spaces Programme - 2020/21. Specifically I would like to call-in the fourth decision. 

            “(4) the school streets schemes, as shown in the revised Appendix A, table 3, for 
implementation on an experimental basis by the end of September 2020, be approved;” 

I believe this decision should be called-in due to “inadequate consultation with 
stakeholders prior to the decision” 

It is my understanding that at least one of the schools where the scheme will apply had 
not been adequately consulted by the Council.  They were not made aware of the 
implications of the scheme for teachers and other staff members who need to access 
the school’s car park during the hours the scheme will be in effect.  The school 
assumed that staff would have access to the car park, in the same way that residents 
would continue to be able to use the road.  

Whilst I understand there is no requirement for Statutory Consultation when making an 
experimental traffic order, I believe there is a reasonable expectation that the Council 
would consult with key stakeholders prior to the decision to make the traffic order.  This 
consultation obviously would be over a shorter period than the Statutory Consultation 
that would normally be required but should still take place.  Where the impact on the 
stakeholder would be significant they should be made aware of the impact in order to 
enable them either to object or to make representations to the Council as to the impact 
of the scheme and the possible mitigations that could be put in place. 

For the avoidance of doubt if it is decided that we are not able to call-in individual 
decisions of the Portfolio Holder meeting, then I wish to call-in the entire item 
“Recommendation from the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 - 
Harrow Street Spaces Programme - 2020/21”. 

Signed by Councillors: 

1. Paul Osborn 
2. John Hinkley 
3. Anjana Patel 
4. Janet Mote 
5. Chris Mote 
6. Christopher Baxter 

15

Agenda Item 7
Pages 15 to 160



Note:  The Monitoring Officer has confirmed that individual decisions of the Portfolio 
Holder Decision meeting can be called-in.  The Call-in Sub-Committee will therefore 
only be considering fourth decision:              

“(4) the school streets schemes, as shown in the revised Appendix A, table 3, for 
implementation on an experimental basis by the end of September 2020, be approved;” 

16



 

 

 
 

 Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting - 19 August 2020 - 17 - 

 
 
 

LEADER DECISION MEETING   

MINUTES 

 

19 AUGUST 2020 

 
 
Chair: * Councillor Keith Ferry (in the absence of the Leader) 
   
Leader: † Graham Henson  

 
 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

* Marilyn Ashton 
* Paul Osborn 
* Varsha Parmar 
 

Minute 48 
Minute 48 
Minute 48 

* Denotes Member present 
† Denotes apologies received 
 
 

44. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  That the following declarations made at the meeting by 
Councillors in relation to agenda item 6 of the published agenda, 
Recommendation from the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel – 
10 August 2020 – Harrow Street Spaces Programme – 2020/21, be noted:  
 

 Councillor Paul Osborn: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Lived on Vaughan 
Road, part of the West Harrow Low Traffic Neighbourhood Scheme.  
 

 Councillor Keith Ferry: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Ward Member for 
Greenhill. 
 

 Councillor Varsha Parmar: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Marlborough 
Ward Councillor where schemes were being proposed. 

 

 Councillor Marilyn Ashton: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Ward Member 
for Stanmore Park and Local Authority appointed Governor of Park 
High School. 

 

17



 

- 18 -  Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting - 19 August 2020 

45. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2020 be taken 
as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

46. Petitions   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no petitions had been received. 
 

47. Public Questions   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that 
 
(1) with the exception of Question 4 submitted by Ms Veronica 

Chamberlain in relation to communication on the proposed traffic 
measures, all other public questions received be responded to in 
writing following the meeting; 

 
(2) Question 4 was read and responded to at the meeting by the Deputy 

Leader of the Council. 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

48. Recommendation from the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 
August 2020 - Harrow Street Spaces Programme - 2020/21   
 
Members present were permitted to speak about the recommendations from 
Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel (TARSAP).  The Portfolio Holder – 
Environment made representations about the importance of maintaining 
schemes to support the health of residents.   
 
The Deputy Leader was of the view that three of the recommendations 
required amendment and shared a version of his proposed amendments with 
those present in the meeting.  The Deputy Leader proposed amendments to: 
 

 recommendation 2 in response to the Portfolio Holder’s views on the 
importance of maintaining a larger pedestrian space in specific areas to 
allow social distancing;   

 recommendation 3 to remove LTN-02 from the approved schemes and 
to require further consultation on this scheme, delegating authority to 
the Corporate Director, following consultation with the Portfolio Holder, 
to determine whether the scheme should continue;   

 recommendation 6 in relation to George V cycle scheme to not take 
forward the proposed scheme and require further consultation on any 
future scheme.   
 

In addition, the Deputy Leader proposed an additional recommendation 10 
requiring a review of the procedure for schemes to be presented to TARSAP.   
 
Members present at the meeting were permitted to make representations 
about the proposed amendments. 

18



 

Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting - 19 August 2020 - 19 - 

 
Having regard of procedure rule 3 of the Appendix to the Executive Procedure 
Rules to the Harrow Council Constitution, in that an urgent key decision was 
being taken by the Deputy Leader in the absence of the Leader, following 
consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder, it was 
 
RESOLVED:  That  
 
(1) the impact of the health crisis on travel and public transport due to 

social distancing requirements and the measures proposed by the 
Government and the Mayor of London to address the crisis be noted; 

 
(2) the pedestrian space schemes implemented, as shown in the revised 

Appendix A, table 1, be noted, and be prioritised for a review as set out 
in recommendation 8, such review to be conducted by 15 September 
2020 following further footfall survey results; 

 
(3) the low traffic neighbourhood schemes shown in the revised 

Appendix A, table 2, for implementation on an experimental basis by 
the end of September 2020: 
 
(a) be approved, with the exception of the following: 

 
LTN-02 – Pinner View area, Headstone South 
LTN-05 – Green Lane area, Stanmore  
LTN-07 – Byron Road area, Wealdstone  
LTN-08 – Dennis Lane area, Stanmore  
LTN-09 – Princes Drive area, Stanmore 

 
(b) that the Low Traffic Neighbourhood Scheme – LTN-02, Pinner 

View area, Headstone South be subject to consultation with 
ward councillors, TARSAP members and local residents and the 
Corporate Director of Community, following consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Environment, be delegated authority to 
determine whether the scheme should be implemented; 

 
(4) the school streets schemes, as shown in the revised Appendix A, 

table 3, for  implementation on an experimental basis by the end of 
September 2020, be approved; 

 
(5) the cycling schemes – SC-01, SC-03 and SC-09 – implemented as 

shown in the revised Appendix A, table 4, be noted; 
 
(6) for the George V Avenue (Hatch End) cycle scheme, SC-10: 
 

(a) the current scheme  was not taken forward as the amendments 
proposed by TARSAP did not fulfil the required outcomes for the 
scheme; 

(b) that a proposed cycle scheme in this area be subject to further  
consultation with local stakeholders, including ward councillors, 
local residents, local businesses, local schools and TARSAP 
members; 

19



 

- 20 -  Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting - 19 August 2020 

(c) that subject to funding being identified, any future scheme be 
determined by the Portfolio Holder – Environment, following 
consideration by TARSAP. 

 
(7) the making of the experimental traffic orders, where required, to 

implement the necessary traffic and parking restrictions for the 
schemes for a minimum of 6 months be approved; 

 
(8) the Corporate Director of Community, following consultation with the 

Portfolio Holder for Environment, be delegated authority to undertake a 
regular review of the schemes and provide a monthly update to 
members of the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel and Ward 
Councillors and determined whether any amendments were required 
for schemes, including ending any experimental scheme; 

 
(9) a report be submitted to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel 

following the initial 6 months of operation of schemes, to feed back the 
results of consultation and the equality impact assessments and to 
consider whether schemes should be ended, extended up to a 
maximum of 18 months or made permanent. 

 
(10) a review of the procedure for proposing, consulting and determining 

highway, pedestrian and cycling schemes, be agreed and that such 
review be presented to the next meeting of the Traffic and Road Safety 
Advisory Panel. 

 
Reason for Decision:  To implement the Street Spaces Schemes in order to 
address the impact of the Covid-19 health crisis on travel and public transport 
and to support more active travel by walking and cycling and public health in 
line with current Department for Transport and Transport for London 
guidance. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  As set out in the report. 
 
Conflict of Interest relating to the matter declared by Cabinet 
Member/Dispensation Granted:  None. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 3.00 pm, closed at 3.27 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR KEITH FERRY 
Chair 
 

20



 

Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting - 19 August 2020 - 21 - 

 

Publication of decisions: 
 

20 August 2020 
 

Deadline for Call-in: 
 

5.00 pm on 27 August 2020  
 

To call-in a decision please contact: 
 
Daksha Ghelani on 020 8424 1881, email 
daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk  
 

Decisions may be 
implemented if not 
Called-in on: 
 

28 August 2020  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21

mailto:daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

(SPECIAL) TRAFFIC & 

ROAD SAFETY 

ADVISORY PANEL  

 

Date of Meeting: 

 
10th August 2020 
 

Subject: 

 

Harrow Street Spaces Programme - 
2020/21 

Key Decision: No as advisory panel, but the subject 
matter is a key decision 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Paul Walker – Corporate Director, 
Community 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Varsha Parmar - Portfolio Holder for 
Environment 

Exempt: No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

Yes, following consideration by the 
Leader  

Wards affected: All 

Enclosures: 

 

 
Appendix A – Harrow Street Spaces  
Programme 
Appendix B – Plans of Harrow Street 
Spaces Schemes 
Appendix C – TfL briefing to Boroughs 
Appendix D – Feedback report 
Appendix E – Dept. of Transport Letter 
– Cycle Infrastructure Design Guidance 
 

23



 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 

 

 
This report updates members on the delivery of the London Streetspace 
Programme (LSP) in Harrow as a response to the COVID-19 public health 
pandemic. 
 

Recommendations:  
 
The Panel is requested to recommend to the Leader of the Council: 
 

1. To note the impact of the health crisis on travel and public transport 
due to social distancing requirements and the measures proposed by 
the Government and the Mayor of London to address the crisis. 
 

2. To note the pedestrian space schemes implemented as shown in 
Appendix A, table 1.  
 

3. To approve the low traffic neighbourhood schemes shown in 
Appendix A, table 2 for implementation on an experimental basis by 
the end of September 2020.  
 

4. To approve the school streets schemes as shown in Appendix A, 
table 3 for  implementation on an experimental basis by the end of 
September 2020. 
 

5. To note the cycling schemes implemented as shown in Appendix A, 
table 4.  
 

6. To approve the George V Avenue cycle scheme for implementation as 
shown in Appendix A, table 4 on an experimental basis by 
September   2020. 
 

7. To approve the making of experimental traffic orders, where required, 
to implement the necessary traffic and parking restrictions for the 
schemes for a minimum of 6 months. 

 
8. To delegate authority to the Corporate Director - Community, following 

consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Environment, to undertake a 
regular review of the schemes and to provide a monthly update to 
members of TARSAP and to determine whether any amendments are 
required for schemes, including ending any experimental scheme. 
 

9. To bring a report back to TARSAP following the initial 6 months of 
operation of schemes, to feed back the results of consultation and the 
equality impact assessments and to consider whether schemes should 
be ended, extended up to a maximum of 18 months or made 

24



permanent.   
 

Reason:   
 
To implement the Street Spaces schemes in order to address the  impact of 
the Covid 19 health crisis on travel and public transport and to support more 
active travel by walking and cycling and public health in line with current 
Department for Transport and Transport for London  guidance. 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 

 

Introductory paragraph 
 

2.1 The current Covid-19 health emergency has significantly affected the way we 
use public transport, and the ways in which we travel. The social distancing 
restrictions introduced by the Government to control the spread of the virus 
and rate of infection had a severe impact on the  use of public transport and 
caused serious financial consequences for Transport for London (TfL) due to 
the loss of income. As a consequence of this, all the conventional transport 
Local Implementation Plan (LIP) programmes of work across London are 
now suspended. In Harrow, this includes an annual £1.3 million programme 
that includes significant walking, cycling and bus improvements as well as 
the expected funding contribution of £1.35m for the Wealdstone Town Centre 
scheme. 
 

2.2 On 9 May 2020 the Secretary of State for Transport issued statutory 
guidance under Section 18 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 to all 
highway authorities in England. In the foreword by the Secretary of State he 
describes the moment as: 
 
 “a once in a generation opportunity to deliver a lasting transformative 
change in how we make short journeys in our towns and cities. According to 
the National Travel Survey, in 2017-18 over 40% of urban journeys were 
under 2 miles – perfectly suited to walking and cycling.”  
 
The guidance states  that local authorities in areas with high levels of public 
transport use should take measures to reallocate road space to people 
walking and cycling to encourage active travel and enable social distancing. 
Approximately £2 billon of funding will be made available nationally for this 
initiative with £250 million made available immediately. Public transport has 
been significantly affected by social distancing requirements, and this has 
had an impact on our road networks. The guidance will be formally reviewed 
3 months after its introduction. 
 

2.3 On 28 July 2020 The Department for Transport Government published 
revised national guidance for highway authorities and designers on cycle 
infrastructure. This clearly sets out how schemes should be designed and 
implemented. A copy of this guidance is shown in Appendix E. 
 

25

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/national-travel-survey-statistics


2.4 As lockdown eases and more people travel to work, public transport services 
will be limited to about 20% of normal capacity due to social distancing and 
there is a significant risk that there will be an increase in the number of car 
journeys instead. The Government is therefore encouraging people where 
possible to walk or cycle instead of travel by car. 
 

2.5 In response to this the GLA / TfL has developed the London Streetspace 
Programme and issued interim guidance to the boroughs on how to deliver 
this initiative. The ambitions of the LSP are to: 
 

 enable social distancing on street, 

 encourage Londoners to avoid unnecessary use of public transport, 

 focus on strategic movement to prioritise walking and cycling. 
 

2.6 Transport for London has secured £45 million of this funding for delivering 
the London Streetspace Programme and London boroughs have 
subsequently been encouraged to make funding applications. Funds have 
been allocated to implement proposals to support reallocating more road 
space on the road network to pedestrians and cyclists while vehicle levels 
are still relatively low.  

  

2.7 These proposals will help address the immediate impact of the health crisis 
but could also allow the Council to make longer lasting changes in travel to 
improve the environment by tackling the causes of climate change. Harrow’s 
road network is 500km in length and already we are seeing an increase in 
the number of people walking or cycling. Measures are now needed to adapt 
our networks to the changing travel patterns and to further increase the level 
of walking and cycling. 

 

2.8 The evidence indicates that a third of people in Harrow do very little physical 
activity and two thirds are overweight and both these factors increase the risk 
of developing diseases such as diabetes and/or cancer. We are hoping that 
the changes being considered to the roads in Harrow will increase our levels 
of physical activity and help to improve our health and wellbeing. Harrow’s 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment highlights that the environment people 
live and work in significantly influences health inequalities and greater 
physical activity can have a positive impact on both physical and mental 
wellbeing.  

 
2.9 The public will be encouraged to walk or cycle where previously they may 

have used the car and these improvements will try to support those that are 
able to walk where distances are less than 2 km (a 10 minute walk) or cycle 
if the journey less than 5 km.  
 

2.10 TfL’s “Healthy streets for London” guidance is a key part of the Mayor’s 
Transport Strategy and highlights the following facts about travel and 
transport in the capital highlighting the potential for switchable trips. 

 

26



   
 
 
2.11 Using active ways to travel is often cheaper and sometimes even quicker for 

the public and helps improve air quality avoiding using the car for short 
journeys. The pollution is usually worse for the occupants of a car stuck in 
congestion than for those walkers or cyclists outside.  

 

Options considered 
 

2.12 Over many years the transport programmes in Harrow have used external 
funding from TFL to deliver the LIP. With the suspension by TFL of the 
annual LIP funding the only viable option realistically available to the Council 
to implement transport measures was to apply for funding from the London 
Streetspace Programme. The proposals have therefore been developed in 
accordance with the TFL guidance. 
 
London Streetspace Programme 

 
2.13 The Mayor of London launched the London Streetspace Programme with 

government funding support to transform London’s streets to accommodate 
increases in cycling and walking as government restrictions are eased. 
Detailed guidance was released to the London boroughs by TfL in mid May 
and can be found at http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lsp-interim-borough-guidance-
main-doc.pdf 
 

2.14 A briefing was issued to Boroughs titled “Working together on COVID-19 
recovery: The Streetspace for London Plan” shown in Appendix C which 
provides a summary of the background, issues and proposed interventions.  
The plan intends to achieve the following: 
 

• Providing temporary cycle routes to extend the strategic cycle network, 
with London’s main roads repurposed for temporary cycle lanes and 
wider footways so that people can safely socially distance. 

• Providing additional space for people walking and cycling in town 
centres and at transport hubs, including widening of footways on local 
high streets to enable people to queue safely for shops which will help 
facilitate local economic recovery 

• Accelerating delivery of low traffic neighbourhoods and school streets 
by working with boroughs to reduce through traffic on residential 

27

http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lsp-interim-borough-guidance-main-doc.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lsp-interim-borough-guidance-main-doc.pdf


streets, to further enable more people to walk and cycle safely as part 
of their daily routine 

 
2.15 Harrow was competing with the other London borough for funding and 

officers used their experience, expertise and judgement to develop and 
submit schemes as quickly as possible and have tried to include as many 
initiatives discussed by TARSAP or within current programmes as possible. 
Due to the late issue of the guidance, this work was turned around within 1-2 
weeks.  
 

2.16 The Council submitted its proposals for the London Streetspace Programme 
on 22nd May to TfL. Proposals were submitted against defined programme 
types that included pedestrian space, low traffic neighbourhoods, strategic 
cycling and school streets. A total of £683,000.00 has been allocated to 
Harrow as shown in the table below.  Appendix A provides more details on 
those schemes that were approved and rejected. 

 

Type of scheme Scheme 
applications 

Schemes 
approved 

Total 
allocated 

Pedestrian Space Measures  13 9 £248k 

Low Traffic Neighbourhoods  9 9 £300k 

School Streets  4 4 £135k 

Strategic Cycling Measures  8 0 £0k 

 34 22 £683k 

 
2.17 The funding has been provided for delivering the measures quickly to meet 

the demands of the health emergency and will cover the period up to the end 
of September 2020. This will require an ambitious delivery programme and 
use of experimental orders and amended procedures as set out below.   

 
2.18 The programme aims to support the changes in the way the public travel 

during the health crisis by:  
 

 Making more pedestrian space available to allow effective social 
distancing as the local economy opens up, 

 Introducing more cycle routes to encourage more cycling and less use of 
private car and public transport, 

 Introducing measures to minimise travel by car and maximise local 
walking and cycling such as low traffic neighbourhoods and school streets, 

 Maximise the public health and wellbeing benefits of active travel. 
 
2.19 In addition, the Department for Transport provided funding in two phases for 

emergency active travel.  Phase 1 provided funding for temporary 
arrangements to encourage cycling and walking, with Phase 2 providing 
funding for more permanent schemes.  The Council was allocated £100,000 
under this fund for cycle routes set out in Appendix A, Table 4.  Further 
detail on this is provided below.  The Department for Transport reserves the 
right to claw back or reduce any funding if works have not started within 4 

28



weeks of the grant decision or completed within 8 weeks of the work starting.  
Therefore works should be completed by 21 September 2020.   
 

2.20 A detailed list of all the schemes and their status can be seen in Appendix 
A. 
 
Pedestrian space measures (TfL) 
 

2.21 A review of town centres, local high streets, shopping parades and transport 
hubs was undertaken to identify footway widths that are 3 metres or less in 
potentially high footfall areas where social distancing could become difficult. 
Schemes were identified on this basis. 

 
2.22 Schemes consisted of introducing temporary measures to reallocate 

carriageway to pedestrians by suspending sections of parking and erecting 
barriers to extend pedestrian space.  
 

2.23 All of the schemes have been implemented and these measures will remain 
in place as long as the social distancing requirements are in force. The 
government guidance on social distancing is adapting as the health crisis 
evolves and medical and scientific research can advise changes to the 
requirements. Currently the advice is to keep 2 metres apart but relaxations 
to 1 metre plus other mitigations is permitted where 2 metres is not possible. 
The use of masks / face coverings is now compulsory in shops. The 
government guidance is to be reviewed after 3 months and pedestrian space 
measures will be reviewed periodically to ensure they are still relevant to 
current government guidance.  A formal review will be undertaken after 6 
months. 
 

2.24 These measures have been implemented in 9 locations in the borough and 
the list of schemes is shown in the table below: 
 

PS-01 Station Road, Harrow - Civic Centre, shops & Mosque 

PS-02 Harrow and Wealdstone Station 

PS-07 Streatfield Road, Queensbury - shops 

PS-08 Honeypot Lane, Canons Park - shops 

PS-09 Northolt Road, Northolt - shops 

PS-10 Kenton Road, Kenton - shops 

PS-11 Kenton Lane, Belmont - shops 

PS-12 High Road, Harrow Weald – shops / bus stop 

PS-13 Porlock Avenue, West Harrow – shops / / school / bus stop 

 
2.25 Plans of the schemes can be seen in Appendix B. 

 
Strategic Cycling (TfL) 
 

2.26 Cycling scheme proposals were developed based on the Council’s 
aspirational cycle network set out in the Transport Local Implementation Plan 
and Walking, Cycling & Sustainable Transport strategy documents. 
 

29



2.27 TfL subsequently took a London wide strategic approach to cycling schemes 
across London and did not support any schemes being promoted by London 
boroughs. Therefore no schemes in Harrow were approved by TfL as a 
consequence. 
 

2.28 Additional funding was subsequently provided by the Department for 
Transport directly to the borough to support walking and cycling and this has 
therefore been used to support the delivery of strategic cycling measures. 
Please refer to the section below regarding the Emergency Active Travel 
Fund. 
 
Low traffic neighbourhoods (TfL) 

 
2.29 These proposals were developed by identifying neighbourhoods with 

established problems with vehicular traffic cutting through estates and 
causing environmental and road safety problems for local residents. These 
are locations where vehicle traffic levels maybe be artificially low at the 
current time due to the impact of the health crisis but where there is a 
significant risk of traffic levels increasing and causing detrimental impacts on 
road safety and health. Creating reduced traffic levels is extremely important 
to making cycling and walking more pleasant, more safe and attractive 
locally. 
 

2.30 All the schemes propose strategically placed modal filters within the 
residential estates to restrict vehicles which will permit pedestrians and 
cyclists only to pass through. This will remove any through traffic and reduce 
traffic volumes to a lower level by local residents and visitors only. 
 

2.31 The proposed method for implementing these schemes is to use an 
experimental traffic order to introduce the restrictions and to operate the 
schemes as a trial for 6 months. There is no statutory consultation required 
in advance of introducing the measures with this method and the first 6 
months of operation would be the statutory consultation period when 
representations can be made by the public. 
 

2.32 The Modal filters would be implemented using temporary materials such as 
planters to physically introduce the restrictions on vehicles. This would make 
them be easy to install and remove as necessary. 
 

2.33 It is suggested that any trials of low traffic neighbourhoods would be regularly 
reviewed to test the impact of schemes on the movement of traffic and the 
Corporate Director - Community would have delegated authority to review 
the schemes and make amendments or end them if required.  A report will 
come back to TARSAP following the 6 month representation period to enable 
this committee to provide advice to the Portfolio holder – Environment.  The 
options available to the Portfolio Holder – Environment would be to remove, 
extend to a maximum of 18 months or make permanent the schemes on an 
individual basis. 
 

30



2.34 These measures are being proposed in 9 locations in the borough and the 
list of schemes is shown in the table below: 
 

LTN-01 Kingshill Avenue area, Kenton West (scheme suspended) 

LTN-02 Pinner View area, Headstone South 

LTN-03 Francis Road area, Greenhill 

LTN-04 Vaughan Road area, West Harrow 

LTN-05 Green Lane area, Stanmore 

LTN-06 Southfield Park area, North Harrow 

LTN-07 Byron Road area, Wealdstone 

LTN-08 Dennis Lane area, Stanmore 

LTN-09 Princes Drive area, Wealdstone 
 

2.35 An additional scheme in the Kingshill Avenue area  (LTN-01) was one of the 
approved proposals, however officers have reconsidered this in light of 
representations made and it has been decided to suspend implementation of 
this scheme.    
 

2.36 In respect of the Pinner View area scheme (LTN-02) this has already been 
subject to some prior public engagement for a low traffic neighbourhood 
undertaken last year. Members will recall that a petition was received by 
TARSAP in February 2019 from residents in the Headstone South area 
requesting that a low traffic neighbourhood scheme be implemented and that 
TARSAP agreed that some funding from the 2019/20 local transport funding 
budget was assigned to develop proposals and do initial engagement with 
the public. The proposed scheme is therefore based on that work already 
undertaken last year. 
 

2.37 If successful these schemes have good potential for being made permanent 
and bringing long lasting change to active travel, less pollution and noise, 
improved road safety and quality of life for local residents. The schemes 
would potentially make a significant contribution to tackling the effects of 
climate change by reducing vehicle emissions if made permanent. 
 

2.38 None of these schemes have been implemented yet. Plans of the schemes 
can be seen in Appendix B. 
 

School streets (TfL) 

 
2.39 The proposals for school streets measures were developed taking account of 

the severity of congestion and access problems at schools, impact on road 
safety, active travel and air pollution and also the receptiveness of the 
schools to work with the Council to implement and operate these types of 
schemes. 
 

2.40 School streets are a new type of intervention where the streets surrounding a 
school are restricted to traffic at opening and closing times except for local 
residents living in the street. They improve air quality, reduce congestion and 
improve safety and encourage more active travel. 

31



 
2.41 Under normal conditions the school run accounts for up to 30% of all traffic in 

the peak hours and so the phased reopening of schools can potentially 
generate a lot of traffic and needs to be mitigated. 

2.42 The proposed method for implementing these schemes is to use an 
experimental traffic order to introduce the restrictions and to operate the 
schemes as a trial for 6 months. There is no statutory consultation required 
in advance of introducing the measures with this method and the first 6 
months of operation would be the statutory consultation period when 
representations can be made by the public. 
 

2.43 The restrictions would be implemented either by using temporary barriers to 
restrict access or CCTV cameras with automatic number plate recognition 
systems. 
 

2.44 It is suggested that the Corporate Director has delegated authority to review 
the schemes and make amendments or end them if required.  A report will 
come back to TARSAP following the 6 month representation period to enable 
this committee to provide advice to the Portfolio holder – Environment.  The 
options available to the Portfolio Holder – Environment would be to remove, 
extend to a maximum of 18 months or make permanent the schemes on an 
individual basis. 

 
2.45 Three primary schools and one secondary school have been proposed as 

shown in the list below. 
 

SS-01 Grimsdyke School, Hatch End 

SS-02 Newton Farm School, Rayners Lane 

SS-03 Marlborough School, Wealdstone 

SS-04 Park High School, Stanmore, Middx. 

 
2.46 If successful, these measures have the greatest potential for being made 

permanent and bringing long lasting change to active travel and quality of life 
for local communities. The schemes would potentially make a significant 
contribution to tackling the effects of climate change by reducing vehicle 
emissions if made permanent. 
 

2.47 None of these schemes have been implemented yet. Plans of the schemes 
can be seen in Appendix B. 

 
Cycling - Emergency Active Travel Fund (DfT) 

 

2.48 Whilst there is no award on cycling from TfL the Department for Transport 
(DfT) has released Emergency Active Travel Funding directly to the London 
boroughs which Harrow is using for cycling. A funding allocation of £100k is 
available and works need to be started within 4 weeks of the funding 
allocation and completed within 8 weeks of the works starting.  As the grant 
decision was issued on the 29 June 2020, the schemes should be 
implemented by 21 September 2020.  The guidance indicates that these 
need to be meaningful measures that reallocate road space from vehicles to 

32



cycles and provide physical segregation. Dft have advised that anything that 
does not meaningfully alter the status quo on the road will not be funded. 
 

2.49 The proposals developed therefore focus on strategic cycling routes on busy 
important routes with wider roads or dual carriageways in order to connect 
with existing strategic cycle routes. The routes have multiple traffic lanes so 
that one lane can be dedicated to cyclists and the other to vehicles in each 
direction and also provide a buffer zone to separate vehicles from cycles and 
keep cyclists safe.  
 

2.50 The measures will be implemented experimentally using temporary or low 
cost interventions that can be made quickly. Mandatory cycle lane road 
markings will be laid and traffic cones used to provide physical segregation. 
 

2.51 Some traffic and parking restrictions are required in parts of the cycle 
schemes where speed limits need to be reduced for safety, to allow cyclists 
to use bus lanes to allow segregation from traffic and to prohibit parking that 
could block cycle lanes. The speed restrictions and bus lane amendments 
have been implemented using experimental traffic regulation orders.  Parking 
restrictions will require a further experimental order to be made. 
 

2.52 It is proposed that authority is delegated to the Corporate Director to review 
the schemes and make amendments or end them if required.  A report will 
come back to TARSAP following the 6 month representation period to 
enable this committee to provide advice to the Portfolio holder – 
Environment.  The options available to the Portfolio Holder – Environment 
would be to remove, extend to a maximum of 18 months or make 
permanent the schemes on an individual basis. 

 
2.53 These routes will be much more direct and convenient and re-allocate the 

road space to cyclists as required by the DfT. The locations are as follows: 
 

SC-01 Honeypot Lane, Queensbury 

SC-03 Sheepcote Road, Greenhill 

SC-09 Uxbridge Road, Harrow Weald  

SC-10 George V Avenue, Hatch End 

 
2.54 The first three schemes have been implemented. The George V Avenue 

scheme is awaiting a planned resurfacing scheme to be completed before 
proceeding. Plans of the schemes can be seen in Appendix B. 
 

2.55 In respect of the George V Avenue cycle scheme Nower Hill Secondary 
School has raised concerns about the proposed waiting restrictions on 
parking along the length of the dual carriageway which is used for workplace 
parking by teachers during term time. There are typically 50 vehicles parked 
in this location which currently has no parking controls.  
 

2.56 Mandatory cycle lanes only prohibit vehicles driving in the lanes but do not 
prohibit parking in the lanes. Therefore implementing waiting restrictions is 
essential for the effective operation of the cycle lanes. 

33



 
2.57 A review of the surrounding residential streets that do not have parking 

controls indicates that there is sufficient capacity for 50 vehicles to park 
within a 5-10 minute walk of the school and there are alternative parking 
options, albeit walking and cycling should also be encouraged where 
practicable.   With regard to coaches being able to drop off and pick up 
passengers for school trips outside the school the proposed measures will 
not prevent that activity from happening as that is permitted on waiting 
restrictions. 

 
2.58 During the first 6 months of the experimental order, members of the public 

and stakeholders can make representations and objections on the order.  In 
addition, officers will contact the school to discuss measures for supporting 
increased walking and cycling by both staff and students. 
 

2.59 If successful, these measures have good potential for being made 
permanent and bringing long lasting change to active travel and accessibility 
for cyclists. The schemes would potentially make a significant contribution to 
tackling the effects of climate change by reducing vehicle emissions if made 
permanent. 

 
Public Engagement 
 

2.60 An online information and engagement portal was set up on 9th June 2020 to 
be a focal point for residents and businesses with regard to the Harrow 
Street Spaces Programme. The link is 
https://harrowstreetspaces.commonplace.is/ 
 

2.61 One section of the portal was developed to seek community feedback about 
any areas with problems that could be suitable for interventions. This was in 
the form of a heatmap page with comment form. Although initial proposals 
had already been submitted to TfL in May due to the short timescales for 
submitting proposals TfL had indicated that applications could continue to be 
submitted and this feedback would be used to consider making further 
applications. The link is https://harrowstreetspacesmap.commonplace.is/ 
 

2.62 An analysis of feedback received to date can be seen in Appendix D. 
 

2.63 Another section of the portal provided details of the schemes developed and 
ready for implementation and allowed the public to provide comments via a 
comment form. The intention of this section of the portal was to provide a 
way of giving feedback on schemes as they are implemented and during 
their operational phase. 
 

2.64 Detailed plans of all our proposals including, pedestrian space, cycling, low 
traffic neighbourhoods and school streets schemes have been available on 
the portal since mid June 2020 and have been regularly updated. The link is: 
https://harrowstreetspacesproposals.commonplace.is/    

 

34

https://harrowstreetspaces.commonplace.is/
https://harrowstreetspacesmap.commonplace.is/
https://harrowstreetspacesproposals.commonplace.is/


2.65 The intention for delivering the higher impact schemes such as low traffic 
neighbourhoods and school streets is to introduce the schemes 
experimentally as a trial. The engagement portal serves as a means of 
providing information about the schemes and monitoring the public views. 
The schemes can then be evaluated after a period of time in operation to 
decide whether they should be made permanent, extended or removed.  

 
2.66 It is the case that any scheme involving road closures or vehicle restrictions 

on traffic is divisive and there will be groups for and against. The short time 
scales for delivery mean that there is insufficient time for a full engagement 
and public consultation to resolve issues beforehand in the usual way.  

 
2.67 Where the schemes are being implemented via the use of experimental 

traffic regulation orders, members of the public and other interested parties 
can make representations and objections within the first 6 months of 
operation.  All orders are published on the Council’s website – 
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/road-maintenance-travel/traffic-management-
orders 
 

2.68 All feedback, whether in the form of formal representations to the 
experimental orders or via the portal will be reviewed during the operational 
period of the schemes and it is proposed that the Corporate Director, 
following consultation with the  Portfolio Holder – Environment, has 
delegated authority to review each scheme and make amendments or end it 
during the initial 6 month period.  After 6 months it is proposed for a further 
report to come to TARSAP, to enable the committee to give further advice on 
the individual schemes to inform a decision by the Portfolio Holder – 
Environment.  For experimental schemes, the decision can be to end the 
scheme, extend it to a maximum of 18 months or make it permanent.    

 

2.69 A summary of the comments on schemes received to date can be seen in 
Appendix D. 
 

2.70 This method of engagement has been used successfully in other London 
boroughs and will allow the Council to communicate with the public about 
changes to travel and the environment. 

 
Next steps 

 

2.71 The time remaining to deliver the programme is now extremely challenging 
as there will be 14 TfL/GLA/DfT approved schemes to deliver by the end of 
September. Appendix B, Table 6 provides an indicative timetable for 
delivery should TARSAP recommend the schemes proceed. 
 

2.72 A condition of receiving the funding from TfL is that projects should be 
delivered quickly or if they are at risk these should be declared to TfL quickly 
so that funding can be reallocated within London. TfL is required by 
government as a condition of receiving grant to fully utilise the funds to 
support the health crisis and deliver all schemes on the ground by the end of 
September.  For the DfT funded cycle schemes, there is a risk that DfT will 

35

https://www.harrow.gov.uk/road-maintenance-travel/traffic-management-orders
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/road-maintenance-travel/traffic-management-orders


claw back funding or reduce any Phase 2 funding if the schemes are not 
implemented by 21 September 2020. 
 

2.73 Any decision to delay, suspend or stop the programme would ultimately, 
mean that the funding approval from TfL is reduced. Currently only partial 
allocations have been confirmed for the Low Traffic Neighbourhoods and 
School Streets programmes because it is recognised that some proposals 
are more difficult to implement. TfL have requested weekly updates to help 
them establish the viability of the programme and to consider whether full 
funding allocations need to be confirmed. Details are shown under the 
“Financial Implications” section of this report. 
 

2.74 In order to take forward the programme it is recommended that: 
 

 The proposed programme and use of experimental traffic orders and 
trials is agreed, 

 That general communications reinforce the purpose of the measures to 
support the health crisis and in advance of implementation of measures 
with directly affected residents, 

 That the schemes are regularly reviewed during the period of operation 
and a monthly progress update provided to TARSAP members.  

 
Staffing/workforce  

 
2.75 The delivery of the programme will be undertaken by existing staff resources 

within the Traffic, Highways & Asset Management team supported by 
technical consultants as necessary. 
 
Ward Councillors’ comments  
 

2.76 All members are receiving a weekly update on progress with the programme. 
 

2.77 Officers have offered and held virtual meetings with all ward councillors 
where schemes are scheduled to be introduced to discuss and enhance the 
officers understanding of the issues and ambitions for the schemes in their 
wards, all these comments will be provided in advance of the meeting. 

 
2.78 Where comments have been previously received about specific schemes in 

the programme for Kingshill Avenue low traffic neighbourhood and George V 
Avenue cycle scheme and these matters are explained in this report.   
 
Performance Issues  

 
2.79 The implementation of schemes in the programme will be monitored for 

traffic levels of different travel modes, operational performance of the road 
network and public opinion. 
 

2.80 The Portfolio holder – Environment will be consulted before any decisions 
are made to end or amend schemes during the first 6 months. TARSAP will 
receive a further report following 6 months of operation of the schemes.   

36



 
Environmental Implications 

 
2.81 There are environmental and health benefits from delivering the street space 

programme. The main benefits are in improving air quality and public health.   
 
2.82 Key air quality benefits identified were from reducing car travel, encouraging 

greener vehicles and reducing congestion. 
 

2.83 Key population and human health benefits identified were from reducing 
casualties, encouraging active travel, health walks and as a result of 
improving air quality.  The benefits associated with increased active travel 
and health walks are reduced diabetes and obesity levels. 

 

Risk Management Implications 
 
2.84 There is a requirement to undertake a design risk assessment during 

scheme development under the Construction (Design & Management) 
Regulations in order to manage any potential health and safety risks. 
 

2.85 The delivery of each scheme in the programme will be subject to separate 
risk assessments. 
 

Legal implications 
 

2.86 With the exception of the pedestrian schemes, all schemes require a formal 
traffic order to make amendments to the road usage, although specific 
elements of some schemes do not need to be covered by the statutory 
order. Appendix A gives details of the orders that have been made or are 
proposed to be made.  
 

2.87 Under sections 9 and 10 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 2004 (“RTRA 
2004”) the Council (as traffic authority) is authorised to make an order 
(“experimental traffic order”) for the purpose of carrying out an experimental 
scheme for traffic control.  Such experimental traffic orders may be made in 
relation to those matters provided under sections 6 (Orders similar to traffic 
regulation orders), 45 (Designation of paying parking places on highways), 
46 (Charges at, and regulation of, designated parking places), 49 
(Supplementary provisions as to designation orders and designated parking 
places) or 83(2) (directions in relation to restricted roads) or 84(1)(a) (speed 
limits on roads other than restricted roads) of the RTRA 1984. 

 
2.88 Once made, the Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 

Wales) Regulations 1996 (“Procedure Regulations 1996”) specify the notice 
and publicity requirements to be satisfied to give effect to the order.  The 
Procedure Regulations 1996 have been subject to amending legislation, 
namely, the Traffic Orders Procedure (Coronavirus) (Amendment) (England) 
Regulations 2020 which came into effect on 23 May 2020 (“the Amending 
Regulations 2020”).  The Amending Regulations 2020 are temporary and will 
remain in force until 30 April 2021. 

37



 
2.89 The Procedure Regulations 1996 provide that, within 14 days of the date of 

making of the order, the Council shall publish “a notice of making” the order 
in a newspaper circulating in the related area.  Such notice should include a 
statement that the order has been made, give the date it was made, and give 
the particulars of the order (reg. 17(2)(a)) with a similar notice to be 
published in the London Gazette (reg. 17(2)(b)).  In relation to making the 
“deposited documents” (to include a copy of the order, map of the relevant 
area and statement of reasons) available for public inspection, the Procedure 
Regulations 1996 require this to be at the Council’s principal offices during 
normal office hours and at any other such places as the Council thinks fit 
(reg. 22(3) and Schedule 2).  

 
2.90 In recognition of the challenges posed by the coronavirus crisis to traffic 

authorities in complying with the requirements to give notice and make 
documents available for public inspection, the Amending Regulations 2020 
have modified the requirements so that, where the Council considers it is not 
reasonably practicable for reasons connected to the effects of the 
coronavirus to comply with these, it must still publish a notice and make the 
deposited documents available for public inspection but may do so through 
“alternative arrangements”. The Amending Regulations 2020 provide that 
such alternative arrangements may include (but are not restricted to) online, 
websites, online newspapers, email or social media, leafletting or by letter as 
the Council thinks are appropriate to inform those likely to be affected by the 
order (reg.27 (Alternative publication and notification requirements) inserted 
by the Amending Regulations 2020).   

 
2.91 Notice of the making of an experimental traffic order must be published for 

not less than seven days before the order can come into force (reg. 22(2)).  
An experimental traffic order can stay in force for a maximum of eighteen 
months.  An experimental traffic order may include a provision permitting a 
specified officer of the Council to modify or suspend any provision in the 
order if it appears essential to them to do so for certain specified reasons, 
e.g. convenient and safe movement of traffic and provision of adequate on-
street parking facilities.  This power is exercisable subject to consultation 
with the relevant head of police and the Secretary of State. 
 

2.92 There is no formal right of objection to an experimental traffic order until it is 
in force (reg. 8 (objections) is expressly excluded by reg. 22(1)).  Once the 
order is in force, objections may be made to the order being made 
permanent and these must be made within six months of the day that the 
order comes into force (Schedule 5, Procedure Regulations 1996).  An 
experimental order can be reproduced and continue in force indefinitely (i.e. 
made permanent) subject to the specified requirements being satisfied which 
include, amongst others, that the order has not been amended after the 
period of twelve months from the date it was made. 

 
2.93 Whilst individual schemes are unlikely to be considered key decisions, the 

programme as a whole is expected to have a significant impact across 
Council wards.  For this reason, the decisions taken collectively constitute a 

38



key decision.  Cabinet is not due to meet until September 2020 and due to 
the tight timescale for implementation of the schemes, it is proposed that the 
Leader of the Council takes this decision in accordance with Paragraph 3 of 
the Appendix to the Executive Procedure Rules set out in the Council’s 
constitution.  To wait until the next scheduled meeting of Cabinet would 
prejudice the interests of the Council, in that the schemes may not be able to 
be fully implemented within the timeframe set out by TfL or the DfT and this 
may risk funding being clawed back, re-allocated elsewhere or restrict 
access to future funding for these schemes.  It will also be difficult to 
convene a special meeting of Cabinet during August, due to holiday 
commitments.   
 

Financial Implications 
 
2.94 TfL have confirmed funding for the London Streetspace programme up to a 

maximum of £683k but has only confirmed a partial allocation of £327.6K to 
date. This is because confirmation of the delivery of the higher risk projects 
such as low traffic neighbourhoods and school streets needs to be provided 
in order to drawdown on the full allocation. Sufficient funding has been 
provided to develop the projects, confirm detailed costings and a delivery 
programme. TfL is reviewing the situation with delivery on a weekly basis 
and adjusting allocations based on progress. 
 

2.95 The emergency active travel fund of £100k provided by DfT is split into £25k 
capital and £75k revenue due to the temporary / experimental nature of the 
measures involved. 
 

2.96 The table below provides funding details: 
 

Type of scheme Maximum 
allocation  

Partial allocation 
approved 

TfL Pedestrian Space Measures  £248k N/A 

TfL Low Traffic Neighbourhoods  £300k £49.5k 

TfL School Streets  £135k £30.1k 

TfL Total £683k  

   

DfT Emergency Active Travel Fund £100k N/A 

Dft TOTAL £100k  

 

Equalities Implications / Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
2.97 The measures proposed in the programme accord with the Council’s 

Transport Local Implementation Plan 3 (LIP). The LIP underwent an 
Equalities Impact Assessment and had due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations  
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and those 
who do not share it as required under section 149 of  the Equality Act 2010. 
 

39



2.98 All schemes will be subject to a design risk assessment which will 
incorporate a review of equality issues to assess the impacts of the 
interventions. TfL have highlighted the need to assess these impacts on all 
protected characteristics and expect these impacts to be generally positive. 
As part of the formal review of schemes, equality impact assessments will be 
undertaken, taking account of any feedback received from the public and 
other interested parties.  The results of these assessments will be included in 
the report to TARSAP following the schemes being operational for 6 months.   
 

2.99 It is considered that the proposed programme will be of particular benefit to  
the groups in the table below:    

 

Protected 
characteristic 

Benefit 

Sex Parents with young children will generally benefit 
most from schemes that prioritise walking and 
cycling because improved road layouts and public 
realm provide improved safety, security and 
convenience and improved access to the town 
centre and facilities.  Mothers are more likely to 
have full time care of young children and are 
therefore more likely to be positively impacted by 
these proposals. 

Disability  People with physical and visual impairment 
generally benefit most from schemes that prioritise 
walking because improved road layouts and public 
realm provide ease of access with fewer 
obstructions, improved safety, security and 
convenience to access the town centre and 
facilities. 
The wider benefits of active travel and more healthy 
lifestyles can reduce or prevent the affects of health 
conditions that affect mobility such as diabetes or 
heart disease and these proposals could in the long 
term reduce people developing disabilities. 

Age Young children and elderly people generally benefit 
most from schemes that prioritise walking and 
cycling because improved road layouts and public 
realm provide improved safety, security and 
convenience and improved access to the town 
centre and facilities. A reduction in the influx of 
traffic into an area will reduce particulate emissions 
and air pollution, to which children are particularly 
sensitive. 
Older children may benefit from enhanced cycling 
schemes as they provide a safer means of cycling 
to school and other activities.   
A number of the schemes are targeted around 

40



school areas and form part of wider school travel 
planning, which should see longer term health 
impacts for children and young people.   

 
Council Priorities 

 
2.100 The proposed programme detailed in the report supports the Harrow 

Ambition Plan and will contribute to achieving the administration’s priorities: 
 

Corporate priority Impact 

Building a Better 
Harrow  

Measures to control the level of traffic will 
reduce pollution from vehicle emissions and 
encourage a greater uptake of walking and 
cycling with wider public health benefits. 
 

Supporting Those 
Most in Need  

Measures to control the level of traffic will 
benefit more vulnerable residents in 
residential estates by reducing air pollution 
and improving road safety and accessibility. 

Protecting Vital 
Public Services 

An improvement in public health will reduce 
pressure on health services particularly during 
the current health crisis. 

Delivering a Strong 
local Economy for All  

Measures to support social distancing will help 
to reduce fear of the risk of infection and 
encourage more people to shop locally and 
thereby support the local economy. 

Modernising Harrow The use of ANPR camera systems for school 
streets schemes will reduce operating costs 
compared and provide more effective 
enforcement than with manual enforcement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 

 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Jessie Man   Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 29 July 2020 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Patrick Kelly   Monitoring Officer 

 
Date:  29 July 2020 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

   
 

Name:  Paul Walker   Corporate Director 

  
Date:  31 July 2020 

   

 

 

 

 

Ward Councillors notified: 

 

 

NO, as it impacts on all Wards 

 

EqIA carried out: 

 

EqIA cleared by:  

 
YES,  
 
Dave Corby, Community - 
Equality Task Group (DETG) 
Chair 
 

 

42



 

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers 

 

Contact:   
 
Barry Philips – Transportation Manager 
Tel:  020 8424 1649,  
E-mail: Barry.Philips@harrow.gov.uk   
 
David Eaglesham – Head of Traffic, Highways & Asset Management 
Tel: 020 8425 - 1500  
E- mail David.Eaglesham@harrow.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers:  
 
TfL Streetspace funding information - https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/boroughs-
and-communities/streetspace-funding 
 
TfL Streetspace for London guidance - http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lsp-
interim-borough-guidance-main-doc.pdf 
 
TfL Healthy Streets for London - http://content.tfl.gov.uk/healthy-streets-
for-london.pdf 
 
Transport Local Implementation Plan 3 – 
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/26428/harrow-transport-local-
implementation-plan 
 
 
Walking, Cycling & Sustainable Transport Strategy -  
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/26432/harrow-walking-cycling-
and-sustainable-transport-strategy 
 
 
 

 
 

43

mailto:David.Eaglesham@harrow.gov.uk
https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/boroughs-and-communities/streetspace-funding
https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/boroughs-and-communities/streetspace-funding
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lsp-interim-borough-guidance-main-doc.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lsp-interim-borough-guidance-main-doc.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/healthy-streets-for-london.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/healthy-streets-for-london.pdf
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/26428/harrow-transport-local-implementation-plan
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/26428/harrow-transport-local-implementation-plan
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/26432/harrow-walking-cycling-and-sustainable-transport-strategy
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/26432/harrow-walking-cycling-and-sustainable-transport-strategy


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Table 1 - Pedestrian Space Measures (funded by TfL) 

Ref. No. Scheme  Measures implemented Traffic orders  Status Notes 

PS-01 
Station Road, Harrow -
Civic Centre, shops & 
Mosque 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None Completed Measures implemented by 
17/05/20 at shops only 

PS-02 
Harrow and Wealdstone 
Station 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to station 

None Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 17/05/20 

PS-07 Streatfield Road, 
Queensbury - shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

Disabled bay 

(relocation) 

Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 02/07/20 

PS-08 
Honeypot Lane, Canons 
Park - shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 01/07/20 

PS-09 
Northolt Road, Northolt - 
shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 01/07/20 

PS-10 
Kenton Road, Kenton - 
shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 29/06/20 

PS-11 
Kenton Lane, Belmont - 
shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 29/06/20 

PS-12 
High Road, Harrow Weald 
– shops - relocate bus stop 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to bus stop and shops, 
bus stop relocated 

None Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 18/05/20 

PS-13 
Porlock Avenue, West 
Harrow – shops - relocate 
bus stop 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to bus stop and school, 
bus stop relocated 

None Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 17/05/20 

 
The exact details of the schemes are shown in Appendix C. In all schemes sections of carriageway adjacent to potential pedestrian 
crowding areas have been cordoned off using barriers to increase the effective width of footway for pedestrians. Where there are existing 
parking bays in these locations these have been suspended by covering over the signs and providing advisory street notices. No traffic 
regulation orders are required to do this. All measures are temporary and will be removed when government social distancing restrictions 
are ended.  

45



Table 2 – Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (funded by TfL) 

Ref. No. Scheme  Measures proposed Traffic orders  Status Notes 

LTN-01 
Kingshill Avenue area, 
Kenton 

2 modal filters 2 closures except 

cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-02 
Pinner View area, 
Headstone South 

5 modal filters, 20mph 
speed limit 

5 closures except 

cycles, 20mph limit 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-03 
Francis Road area, 
Greenhill 

1 modal filter, 20mph 
speed limit 

1 closure except 

cycles, 20mph limit 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-04 
Vaughan Road area, West 
Harrow 

2 modal filters 2 closures except 

cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-05 Green Lane area, Stanmore 
1 modal filter 1 closure except 

cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-06 
Southfield Park area, North 
Harrow 

1 modal filter, 20mph 
speed limit 

1 closure except 

cycles, 20mph limit 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-07 
Byron Road area, 
Wealdstone 

1 modal filter, 20mph 
speed limit 

1 closure except 

cycles, 20mph limit 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-08 
Dennis Lane area, 
Stanmore 

1 modal filter 1 closure except 

cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-09 
Princes Drive area, 
Wealdstone 

1 modal filter 1 closure except 

cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

 

The exact details of the schemes are shown in Appendix C. The modal filters will be created by placing large planters at specific points 

in roads within the areas to restrict vehicles passing through. Cyclists would be able to pass through the gaps between the planters 

provided to allow cycle permeability. Experimental traffic regulation orders will be made to prohibit vehicles at modal filters and for 

creating 20mph speed limits on the roads in the areas. The schemes will be experimental and the decision to remove or retain them will 

be determined based on statutory consultation during the trial in the first 6 months of operation.  

46



Table 3 – School streets (funded by TfL) 

Ref. No. Scheme  Measures proposed Traffic orders  Status Notes 

SS-01 
Grimsdyke School, Hatch 
End 

Prohibition of vehicles in sections of 
roads around the school (Mon –Fri, 
8:15am-9:15am & 2:30pm-4:00pm) 

Prohibition of 
vehicles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

SS-02 
Newton Farm School, 
Rayners Lane 

Prohibition of vehicles in sections of 

roads around the school (Mon –Fri, 

8:15am-9:15am & 2:30pm-4:00pm) 

Prohibition of 

vehicles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

SS-03 
Marlborough School, 
Wealdstone 

Prohibition of vehicles in sections of 

roads around the school (Mon –Fri, 

8:15am-9:15am & 2:30pm-4:00pm) 

Prohibition of 

vehicles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

SS-04 
Park High School, 
Stanmore, Middx. 

Prohibition of vehicles in sections of 

roads around the school (Mon –Fri, 

8:15am-9:15am & 2:30pm-4:00pm) 

Prohibition of 

vehicles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

 

The exact details of the schemes are shown in Appendix C. The schemes involve placing restrictions on vehicles entering sections of 

roads within the area around the school during week day school opening and closing times. The roads permit access by pedestrians and 

cyclists only and identified vehicles that require access within the area such as residents. Experimental traffic regulation orders will be 

made to prohibit vehicles at the restricted times on the roads in the areas. The schemes will be experimental and the decision to remove 

or retain them will be determined based on statutory consultation during the trial in the first 6 months of operation. 

  

47



Table 4 – Strategic Cycling (funded by DfT) 

Ref. No. Scheme  Measures proposed Traffic orders  Status Notes 

SC-01 
Honeypot Lane, 
Queensbury 

Mandatory cycle lanes (nearside 
lanes), 30mph speed limit 

30mph speed 
limit 

Completed Measures fully implemented by 
10/07/20 

SC-03 
Sheepcote Road, 
Greenhill 

Mandatory cycle lanes (nearside 

lanes), permit cycles to use bus 

lane 

Bus lane use 
amendment  

Completed  Measures fully Implementation by 
17/07/20 

SC-09 
Uxbridge Road, 
Harrow Weald  

Mandatory cycle lanes (nearside 

lanes), 30mph speed limit 

30mph speed 

limit 

Completed  Measures fully Implementation by 
24/07/20 

SC-10 
George V Avenue, 
Hatch End 

Mandatory cycle lanes (nearside 

lanes), 30mph speed limit, 

waiting restrictions (at any time) 

30mph speed 

limit, waiting 

restrictions 

On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

 

The exact details of the schemes are shown in Appendix C. The schemes involve installing mandatory cycle lanes in the nearside traffic 

lanes and including a buffer zone marked in hatching that separates it from the offside vehicle lane to reduce conflict between vehicles 

and cycles. Traffic cones further reinforce the segregation. On dual carriageways the 40mph speed limit is reduced to 30mph for 

improved road safety. Existing bus lanes will be amended to permit cyclist to use them. Waiting restrictions will be implemented in 

sections of road to prevent parking in the cycle lanes where there may be demand to do so in order to ensure the safety of cyclists. 

Experimental traffic regulation orders will be made to introduce waiting restrictions, reduce speed limits and amend usage of bus lanes on 

these roads. The restrictions in the traffic regulation orders will be experimental and the decision to remove or retain them will be 

determined based on statutory consultation during the trial in the first 6 months of operation. 

Further consideration will be given to reinforcing segregation between vehicles and cyclists as suggested by cycle lobby groups by using 

more bollards or wands in the hatching buffer zone. This will be determined after a period of review of the schemes in operation. 

  

48



Table 5 - Schemes not approved by TfL 
 

Ref. No. Programme type Scheme  Status 

PS-03 Pedestrian Space The Broadway, Hatch End - shops Not approved 

PS-04 Pedestrian Space Stanmore Broadway - shops Not approved 

PS-05 Pedestrian Space Pedestrian signals timing review - Boroughwide Not approved 

PS-06 Pedestrian Space Wealdstone Town Centre improvement scheme 
Not approved 

PS-14 Pedestrian Space 
Wealdstone, High street shops (bus stop opposite Mir Foods) 
relocate bus stop 

Not approved 

SC-04 Strategic Cycling Cycle Way, Bonnersfield Lane / Sheepcote Road, Greenhill Not approved 

SC-05 Strategic Cycling Cycle Way, Harrow Weald - Kenton Not approved 

SC-06 Strategic Cycling Bakerloo cycle route Not approved 

SC-07 Strategic Cycling Cross Harrow cycle route Not approved 

SC-08 Strategic Cycling Borough wide cycle lanes Not approved 

 
  

49



Table 6 – Revised indicative implementation schedule (subject to approval) 
 

Ref. No. 
Scheme type 

Scheme  
Revised implementation dates 
(from week commencing) 

SC-10 Strategic Cycling George V Avenue, Hatch End 24 August 2020 

SS-01 School Streets Grimsdyke School, Hatch End 31 August 2020 

SS-02 School Streets Newton Farm School, Rayners Lane 31 August 2020 

SS-03 School Streets Marlborough School, Wealdstone 31 August 2020 

SS-04 School Streets Park High School, Stanmore, Middx. 31 August 2020 

LTN-06 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Southfield Park area, North Harrow 07 September 2020 

LTN-09 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Princes Drive area, Wealdstone 07 September 2020 

LTN-02 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Pinner View area, Headstone South 14 September 2020 

LTN-03 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Francis Road area, Greenhill 14 September 2020 

LTN-04 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Vaughan Road area, West Harrow 21 September 2020 

LTN-07 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Byron Road area, Wealdstone 21 September 2020 

LTN-01 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Kingshill Avenue area, Kenton 28 September 2020 

LTN-05 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Green Lane area, Stanmore 28 September 2020 

LTN-08 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Dennis Lane area, Stanmore 28 September 2020 

 
This indicative programme indicates an extremely tight delivery time line for the remaining schemes in the programme to be delivered by 
the end of September. This assumes that approval for the schemes is granted.  

50



M

A

N

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

B

R

A

M

P

T

O

N

 

G

R

O

V

E

S

E

D

G

E

C

O

M

B

E

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

C

H

R

I
S

T

C

H

U

R

C

H

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

K

E

N

T

O

N

 

L

A

N

E

S

H

O

O

T

E

R

S

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

M

A

Y

F

I

E

L

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

P

R

E

S

T

W

O

O

D

 
C

L

O

S

E

K

E

N

T

O

N

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

K

I
N

G

S

H

I
L
L
 
A

V

E

N

U

E

K

E

N

T

O

N

 

L

A

N

E

K

E

N

T

O

N

 

P

A

R

K

 

R

O

A

D

H

U

G

H

E

N

D

E

N

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

B

O

N

N

E

R

S

F

I

E

L

D

 

L

A

N

E

W

O

O

D

W

A

Y

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

K

I

N

G

S

H

I

L

L

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

W

IN
C

H
F

IE
L
D

 C
L
O

S
E

C

H

R

I
S

T

C

H

U

R

C

H

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

B

O

X

M

O

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

S

T

 

M

A

R

Y

S

 

V

I

E

W

H

U

N

T

E

R

S

 
G

R

O

V

E

C

A

R

L

T

O

N

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

H

I

L

L

B

U

R

Y

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

W

Y

K

E

H

A

M

 

R

O

A

D

B

E

C

M

E

A

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

W

I

L

L

O

W

C

O

U

R

T

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

E

L

M

S

L

E

I

G

H

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

AVENUE

P
R

E
S

T
W

O
O

D

C

L

O

S

E

AVENUE

ALICIA AVENUE

R

O

W

B

R

A

D

E

N

H

A

M

 
R

O

A

D

ADDISCOMBE CLOSE

ALICIA AVENUE

T

O

T

T

E

R

N

H

O

E

 

C

L

O

S

E

E

L

M

S

L

E

I
G

H

ALICIA

E

L

M

W

O

O

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

B

E

A

U

F

O

R

T

 
A

V

W
O

O
D

C
O

C
K

 
H

I
L
L

N

O

R

C

O

M

B

E

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

A

V

E

N

U

E

S

T

 

L

E

O

N

A

R

D

S

K

E

N

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

A

L

I

C

I

A

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

A

L

I
C

I
A

 
C

L

O

S

E

K

E

N

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

DAINTRY

P

E

N

N

 
C

L

O

S

E

R

A

D

S

T

O

C

K

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

A

V

E

N

U

E

B

R

A

M

P

T

O

N

 

G

R

O

V

E

K

E

N

Y

N

G

T

O

N

 
P

L
A

C

E

PROPOSED ALICIA AVENUE

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

K

E

N

M

O

R

E

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

PROPOSED KINGSHILL AVENUE

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

1.5m1.5m

KINGSHILL AVENUE AREA LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSULTATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

KEY:

DRIVER ACCESS FROM

KENTON ROAD

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

USING PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS FROM

CHRISTCHURCH AVENUE

APPENDIX B

E

N

U

E

51



Yeading B
rook

Y

e

a

d

i

n

g

B

r

o

o

k

Y

e

a

d

i

n

g

 

B

r

o

o

k

D

r

a

i

n

Y

e

a

d

i

n

g

 

B

r

o

o

k

D

r

a

i

n

Water

W

a

t

e

r

W

a

t
e

r

I

s

s

u

e

s

W

a

t

e

r

W

a

t

e

r

W

a

t

e

r

W

a

t

e

r

W

a

t

e

r

PROPOSED KINGSFIELD AVENUE

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

PROPOSED PINNER VIEW

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

PROPOSED CANTERBURY ROAD

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

PROPOSED CUMBERLAND ROAD

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

PROPOSED PINNER VIEW

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

PROPOSED VICTOR ROAD

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

O

A

K

L

E

Y

 
R

O

A

D

GREENHILL WAY

S
P

R
I
N

G
F

I
E

L
D

 
R

O
A

D

S

T

 
K

I
L

D

A

'
S

 
R

O

A

D

H

E

A

D

S

T

O

N

E

 
R

O

A

D

L
Y

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

S

T

A

T

I

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

R

A

D

N

O

R

 
R

O

A

D

W

A

R

R

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

H

I
N

D

E

S

 
R

O

A

D

G

R

E

E

N

H

I
L
L
 
W

A

Y

S

U

S

S

E

X

 

R

O

A

D

D

O

R

S

E

T

 

R

O

A

D

O

X

F

O

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

R

U

T

L

A

N

D

 

R

O

A

D

P

I

N

N

E

R

 

V

I

E

W
B

E

D

F

O

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

P

I

N

N

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

D

E

V

O

N

S

H

I
R

E

 
R

O

A

D

R

O

X
B

O

R

O

U

G

H

 
R

O

A
D

P
IN

N
E

R
 R

O
A

D

S

U

R

R

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

S

O

M

E

R

S

E

T

 

R

O

A

D

C

O

R

N

W

A

L

L

 

R

O

A

D

G

R

A

F

T

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

C

H

A

N

D

O

S

 
R

O

A

D

A
L
T

H
O

R
P

E
 R

O
A

D

K

I
N

G

S

F

I
E

L
D

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

A

L

L

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

H

O

L

S

W

O

R

T

H

 
C

L

O

S

E

A

P

S

L

E

Y

 
C

L

O

S

E

C

A

N

T

E

R

B

U

R

Y

 
R

O

A

D

P

I
N

N

E

R

 
V

I
E

W

S

U

S

S

E

X

 
R

O

A

D

H

I
N

D

E

S

 
R

O

A

D

B
E

R
E

S
F

O
R

D
R

O
A

D

S

A

L

I
S

B

U

R

Y

 
R

O

A

D

B

A

L

F

O

U

R

 
R

O

A

D

H

A

R

R

O

W

 
V

I
E

W

B

U

C

K

I

N

G

H

A

M

 

R

O

A

D

C

R

O

S

S

 

R

O

A

D

R

A

D

N

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

C

U

N

N

I

N

G

H

A

M

 

P

A

R

K

E

L

M

P

I

N

N

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

I

M

P

E

R

I

A

L

 

D

R

I

V

E

N

O

R

F

O

L

K

 

R

O

A

D

D
U

R
H

A
M

 
R

O
A

D

W

E

S

T

M

O

R

L

A

N

D

 
R

O

A

D

C

A

M

B

R

I

D

G

E

 

R

O

A

D

C

A

N

T

E

R

B

U

R

Y

 

R

O

A

D

G

L

O

U

C

E

S

T

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

C

U

M

B

E

R

L

A

N

D

 
R

O

A

D

C

A

N

T

E

R

B

U

R

Y

 
R

O

A

D

H
O

O
K

IN
G

 G
R

E
E

N

P

I
N

N

E

R

 
R

O

A

D

K

I
N

G

S

F

I
E

L

D

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

S

T

A

T

I

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

P

A

R

K

S

I

D

E

 

W

A

Y

M

A

N

O

R

 

W

A

Y

P

R

I

O

R

Y

 

W

A

Y

H

E

A

D

S

T

O

N

E

 

L

A

N

E

H

A

Z

E

L

W

O

O

D

S

O

U

T

H

F

I
E

L

D

 
P

A

R

K

Y

E

W

T

R

E

E

 
C

L
O

S

E

C
L
O

S
E

E

L

M

C

R

O

F

T

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

H

O

L

M

D

E

N

E

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

E

D

W

A

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

A

L

B

E

R

T

 

R

O

A

D

B

R

O

O

K

 

D

R

I

V

E

B

O

L

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

H

I

D

E

 

R

O

A

D

C

H

U

R

C

H

F

I

E

L

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

K

I

N

G

S

W

A

Y

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

W

O

O

D

B

E

R

R

Y

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

P

I
N

N

E

R

 
V

I
E

W

M

O

A

T

 

D

R

I

V

E

H

I

L

L

F

I

E

L

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

H

E

A

D

S

T

O

N

E

 
G

A

R

D

E

N

S

L

O

N

G

L

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

M

A

R

L

B

O

R

O

U

G

H

 

H

I

L

L

W

A

L

T

O

N

 

D

R

I

V

E

H

A

R

R

O

W

 

V

I

E

W

H

A

R

L

E

Y

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

H

A

R

L

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

V

I

E

W

 

C

L

O

S

E

B

R

O

O

K

 
D

R

I
V

E

C

R

O

S

S

 

R

O

A

D

P

I

N

N

E

R

 

V

I

E

W

S

I

D

N

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

F

A

I

R

F

I

E

L

D

 

D

R

I

V

E

V

I

C

T

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

A

T

H

E

R

T

O

N

 

P

L

A

C

E

H

A

R

R

O

W

 

V

I

E

W

H

E

A

D

S

T

O

N

E

 
D

R

I
V

E

W

A

L

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

1.5m1.5m

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

KEY:

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

USING PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS FROM

PINNER ROAD

PROPOSED 20mph LIMIT

BOUNDARY

DRIVER ACCESS FROM

PARKSIDE WAY

DRIVER ACCESS FROM

HARROW VIEW

DRIVER ACCESS FROM

HEADSTONE GARDENS

HEADSTONE SOUTH LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSTULATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

52



PROPOSED FRANCIS ROAD

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

E

L

M

G

R

O

V

E

 

C

R

E

S

C

L

O

S

E

B

O

N

N

E

R

S

F

I

E

L

D

 

L

A

N

E

C

R

O

F

T

S

 

R

O

A

D

W

O

O

D

W

A

Y

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

M

A

N

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

G

E

R

A

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

H

A

W

T

H

O

R

N

E

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

F

L

A

M

B

A

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

R

U

F

F

O

R

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

B

O

N

N

E

R

S

F

I

E

L

D

 

L

A

N

E

GAYTON ROAD

E

L

M

W

O

O

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

B

O

N

N

E

R

S

F

I

E

L

D

 

L

A

N

E

M

A

N

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

G

R

A

N

G

E

 

R

O

A

D

C

O

U

R

T

F

I

E

L

D

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

R

I

C

H

A

R

D

S

 

C

L

O

S

E

H

I
L

L

 
C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

H

I

L

L

 

R

O

A

D

C

R

O

F

T

S

 

R

O

A

D

F

R

A

N

C

I

S

 

R

O

A

D

M

O

E

L

Y

N

 
M

E

W

S

E

L

M

G

R

O

V

E

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

E

L

M

G

R

O

V

E

 
G

A

R

D

E

N

S

E

L

M

G

R

O

V

E

 

R

O

A

D

L
Y

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

S

H

E

E

P

C

O

T

E

 

R

O

A

D

S

T

 

J

O

H

N

'

S

 

R

O

A

D

V

I

C

T

O

R

I

A

 

C

L

N

O

R

T

H

W

I

C

K

 

P

A

R

K

 

R

O

A

D

B

O

N

N

E

R

S

F

I

E

L

D

 

L

A

N

E

G

R

E

E

N

H

I
L
L
 
W

A

Y

C

O

U

R

T

F

I

E

L

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

C

O

U

R

T

F

I

E

L

D

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

B

E

C

K

E

T

F

O

L

D

D

U

F

F

I

E

L

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

C

e

n

t
r
a

l
 
P

a

r
a

d

e

S
T

A
T

I
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

D
o
m

i
n
i
o
n
 
P

a
r
a
d
e

E

L

M

G

R

O

V

E

 

R

O

A

D

G

L
E

N

W

O

O

D

 
C

L
O

S

E

E

L

M

G

R

O

V

E

 

C

R

E

S

WOODLANDS ROAD

C

R

Y

S

T

A

L

 

W

A

Y

C

A

T

H

E

R

I

N

E

 

P

L

A

C

E

S

O

V

E

R

E

I
G

N

 
P

L

A

C

E

B

O

N

N

E

R

S

F

I

E

L

D

E

L

M

W

O

O

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

F

R

A

N

C

I

S

 

R

O

A

D

E

L

M

G

R

O

V

E

 

R

O

A

D

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

MAX 1.5M GAP

BETWEEN PLANTERS

OR STREET

FURNITURE

FRANCIS ROAD, GREENHILL LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSULTATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

KEY:

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM STATION ROAD

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

USING PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM SHEEPCOTE ROAD

PROPOSED 20mph

LIMIT BOUNDARY

53

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Boro Const & LB Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Ward Bdy



PROPOSED VAUGHAN ROAD

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

PROPOSED BLENHEIM ROAD

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

B

O

U

V

E

R

I

E

 

R

O

A

D

B

O

U

V

E

R

I
E

 
R

O

A

D

B
L
E

N
H

E
IM

 R
O

A
D

T

H

E

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

D

O

R

S

E

T

 

R

O

A

D

O

X

F

O

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

R

U

T

L

A

N

D

 

R

O

A

D

B

E

D

F

O

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

N

O

R

T

H

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

P

I

N

N

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

B
A

D
G

E
R

S
C

L

O

S

E

VAU
G

H
AN

 R
O

AD

N
E

P
T

U
N

E
 
R

O
A

D

D

E

V

O

N

S

H

I
R

E

 
R

O

A

D

R

O

X
B

O

R

O

U

G

H

 
R

O

A
D

P
IN

N
E

R
 R

O
A

D

B
E

S
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 
R

O
A

D

S

U

R

R

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

S

O

M

E

R

S

E

T

 

R

O

A

D

C

O

R

N

W

A

L

L

 

R

O

A

D

S

U

S

S

E

X

 
R

O

A

D

G

R

A

F

T

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

S

U

S

S

E

X

 
R

O

A

D

GRAFTON ROAD

H

I
N

D

E

S

 
R

O

A

D

R

O

X

B

O

R

O

U

G

H

 
R

O

A

D

L
A

N
C

E
 R

O
A

D

C
O

L
B

E
C

K
 R

O
A

D

D
R

U
R

Y
 
R

O
A

D

H
E

A
T

H
 R

O
A

D

B

O

W

E

N

 

R

O

A

D

M

E

R

I
V

A

L

E

 
R

O

A

D

W

I

L

S

O

N

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

V

A

U

G

H

A

N

 
R

O

A

D

B
U

T
L
E

R
 R

O
A

D

W
H

IT
M

O
R

E
 R

O
A

D

S
U

M
N

E
R

 R
O

A
D

W

I

L

S

O

N

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

W

H

I
T

M

O

R

E

 
R

O

A

D

K
IN

G
S

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

B
E

S
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 
R

O

A
D

CHARLES CRESCENT

T

R

E

V

E

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

B

O

W

E

N

 

R

O

A

D

L

A

S

C

E

L

L

E

S

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

C

H

A

R

L

E

S

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

H

A

W

K

I

N

S

 

C

L

O

S

E

V

A

U

G

H

A

N

 

R

O

A

D

B

U

T

L

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

B

U

T

L

E

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

M

A

R

S

H

A

L

L

C

L

O

S

E

S

p

r

i

n

g

w

a

y

F

O

R

D

C

L

O

S

E

W

O

O

D

C

L

O

S

E

POOL ROAD

F
A

R

M

B

O

R

O

U

G

H

 
C

L
O

S

E

A

N

D

R

E

W

S

 
C

L

O

S

E

A

L

F

R

I

S

T

O

N

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

E

L

M

 

D

R

I

V

E

L

A

N

C

A

S

T

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

P

A

R

K

T

H

O

R

N

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

T

H

E

 

R

I

D

G

E

W

A

Y

B

E

A

U

M

O

N

T

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

S

A

N

D

H

U

R

S

T

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

G

R

O

S

V

E

N

O

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

P

A

R

K

T

H

O

R

N

E

 

C

L

O

S

E

E

L

M

C

L

O

S

E

B

L

E

N

H

E

I

M

 

R

O

A

D

A

R

G

Y

L

E

 

R

O

A

D

E

L

M

 

D

R

I

V

E

B

L

A

D

O

N

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

P

I

N

N

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

C

O

L

L

A

P

I

T

 

C

L

O

S

E

I

M

P

E

R

I

A

L

 

D

R

I

V

E

N

O

R

F

O

L

K

 

R

O

A

D

D
O

R
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

 
A

V
E

N
U

E

T
H

E

 
R

E

T
R

E

A

T

A

L

F

R

I

S

T

O

N

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

R

O

M

N

E
Y

 
C

L
O

S
E

T

W

Y

F

O

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

W

E

L

B

E

C

K

 

R

O

A

D

F

U

R

N

E

S

S

 

R

O

A

D

T

H

E

 

R

I

D

G

E

W

A

Y

F

E

R

N

B

R

O

O

K

D

R

I

V

E

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

MAX 1.5M GAP

BETWEEN PLANTERS

OR STREET

FURNITURE

VAUGHAN ROAD AREA LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSULTATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

KEY:

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM BESSBOROUGH ROAD

AND WHITMORE ROAD

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

USING PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM IMPERIAL DRIVE

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM PINNER ROAD

54

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Boro Const and Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Boro Const and Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Paddling Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Boro Const and

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Ward Bdy



PROPOSED GREEN LANE

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

E

M

B

R

Y

 

W

A

Y

O

L

D

F

I

E

L

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

O

L

D

 
L

O

D

G

E

 
W

A

Y

W

I

N

S

C

O

M

B

E

 

W

A

Y

H

O

L

L

A

N

D

W

A

L

K

B

E

N

 
H

A

L
E

 
C

L
O

S

E

C

O

V

E

R

D

A

L

E

C

L

O

S

E

S

T

A

N

M

O

R

E

 

H

I

L

L

H

O

L
L
A

N

D

 
C

L
O

S

E

G

R

E

E

N

 
L

A

N

E

P

Y

N

N

A

C

L

E

S

 

C

L

O

S

E

R

A

Y

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

U

X

B

R

I
D

G

E

 
R

O

A

D

L
I
N

D
E

N
 
C

L
O

S
E

C

H

U

R

C

H

 

R

O

A

D

E

L

M

 

P

A

R

K

W
O

O
D

S
ID

EC
L
O

S
E

B
O

W
L
S

 
C

L
O

S
E

A

D

E

L

A

I
D

E

E

M

B

R

Y

 

C

L

O

S

E

E

M

B

R

Y

 

W

A

Y

G

R

E

E

N

 
L

A

N

E

C

U

L
V

E

R

L
A

N

D

S

 
C

L
O

S

E

S

T

A

N

M

O

R

E

 

H

I

L

L

H

I

L

L

 

C

L

O

S

E

H

A

L

S

B

U

R

Y

 

C

L

O

S

E

S

T

A

N

G

A

T

E

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

C

L

O

S

E

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

MAX DISTANCE

OF 1.5m

BETWEEN

PLANTERS AND

STREET

FURNITURE

GREEN LANE LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSULTATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

KEY:

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

USING PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM UXBRIDGE ROAD

55

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Boot Pond



P

I
N

N

E

R

 
R

O

A

D

S

O

U

T

H

 
W

A

Y

G

E

O

R

G

E

 

V

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

K

I
N

G

S

F

I
E

L

D

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

S

T

A

T

I

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

P

A

R

K

S

I

D

E

 

W

A

Y

M

A

N

O

R

 

W

A

Y

P

R

I

O

R

Y

 

W

A

Y

H

I

L

L

V

I

E

W

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

H

E

A

D

S

T

O

N

E

 

L

A

N

E

H

A

Z

E

L

W

O

O

D

S

O

U

T

H

F

I
E

L

D

 
P

A

R

K

Y

E

W

T

R

E

E

 
C

L

O

S

E

C

L

O

S

E

E

L

M

C

R

O

F

T

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

E

L

M

C

R

O

F

T

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

H

O

L

M

D

E

N

E

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

P

A

R

K

S

I

D

E

 

W

A

Y

C

H

U

R

C

H

F

I

E

L

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

K

I

N

G

S

W

A

Y

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

W

O

O

D

B

E

R

R

Y

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

PROPOSED SOUTHFIELD PARK

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

H

E

A

D

S

T

O

N

E

 

L

A

N

E

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

1.5m1.5m

SOUTHFIELD PARK LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSULTATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

KEY:

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

USING PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM STATION ROAD

/ PARKSIDE WAY

PROPOSED 20mph

LIMIT BOUNDARY

56

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Yeading

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Yeading Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Yeading Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Drain



PROPOSED BYRON ROAD

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

S

A

N

D

R

I
D

G

E

 
C

L

O

S

E

M

A

S

O

N

S

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

BYRON ROAD

H

E

R

G

A

 

R

O

A

D

GEORGE GANGE WAY

L

O

C

K

E

T

 
R

O

A

D

T

H

O

M

S

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

G
R

A
N

T
 
R

O
A

D

HIGH STREET

GLADSTONE WAY

P

A

L

M

E

R

S

T

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

T

H

E

 

B

R

I

D

G

E

E

L

L

E

N

 

W

E

B

B

 

D

R

I

V

E

O

X

F

O

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

P

A

L

M

E

R

S

T

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

P
E

E
L
 
R

O
A

D

C
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
R

O
A

D

G

R

A

N

T

 
R

O

A

D

STIRLING ROAD

ABERDEEN R
OAD

LORNE R
OAD

BYRON ROAD

STUART ROAD

R
O

N
A

R
T

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

GEORGE GANGE W
AY

WARHAM ROAD

BYR
O

N
 R

O
AD

L

O

C

K

E

T

 
R

O

A

D

M

O

N

T

R

O

S

E

 

R

O

A

D

L

O

R

N

E

 
R

O

A

D

A

B

E

R

D

E

E

N

 
R

O

A

D

P
E

E
L
 
R

O
A

D

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

MAX DISTANCE

OF 1.5m

BETWEEN

PLANTERS AND

STREET

FURNITURE

BYRON ROAD AREA LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSULTATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

KEY:

PROPOSED ROAD

CLOSURE USING

PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM LOCKET ROAD

PROPOSED 20mph LIMIT

DRIVER ACCESS

FROM MASONS AVENUE

EXISTING 20mph ZONE

57

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Swimming

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Swimming

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Water



B

E

N

 
H

A

L
E

 
C

L
O

S

E

C

O

V

E

R

D

A

L

E

C
L
O

S
E

G

R

E

Y

F

E

L

L

C

L

O

S

E

S

T

A

N

M

O

R

E

 

H

I

L

L

W
O

O
D

S
ID

E

C
L
O

S
E

S

T

A

N

M

O

R

E

H

I

L

L

H

E

R

I

O

T

S

C

L

O

S

E

O

L

D

 

F

O

R

G

E

 

C

L

O

S

E

W

A

Y

P

I

N

E

C

L

O

S

E

H

A

L

L

 

F

A

R

M

 

C

L

O

S

E

D

E

N

N

I

S

 

L

A

N

E

E

A

T

O

N

 

C

L

O

S

E

S
P

R
IN

G
L

A

K

E

G

R

E

E

N

 
L

A

N

E

S

T

A

N

M

O

R

E

 

H

I

L

L

H

I

L

L

 

C

L

O

S

E

H

A

L

S

B

U

R

Y

 

C

L

O

S

E

H

E

W

E

T

T

C

L

O

S

E

S

T

A

N

G

A

T

E

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

W

O

O

D

 
L

A

N

E

S

T

A

N

M

O

R

E

 

H

I

L

L

D

E

N

N

I

S

 

L

A

N

E

R

A

I

N

S

F

O

R

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

D

E

N

N

I
S

 
G

A

R

D

E

N

S

D

E

N

N

I

S

 

L

A

N

E

O

A

K

 

L

O

D

G

E

 

C

L

O

S

E

L

O

N

D

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

B

E

L

G

R

A

V

E

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

A

R

A

N

 
D

R

I
V

E

D

E

N

N

I

S

 

L

A

N

E

L

A

B

U

R

N

U

M

 

C

O

U

R

T

V

A

L

E

N

C

I

A

 

R

O

A

D

K

N

I

G

H

T

S

 

R

O

A

D

R

U

S

P

E

R

 

C

L

O

S

E

C

O

P

L

E

Y

 

R

D

M

E

R

R

I

O

N

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

W

H

I

T

E

 

H

O

U

S

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

A
R

A
N

 
D

R
I
V

E

L

O

N

D

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

PROPOSED DENNIS LANE

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

MAX 1.5M GAP

BETWEEN PLANTERS

OR STREET

FURNITURE

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

KEY:

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

USING PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS FROM

STANMORE BROADWAY /

UXBRIDGE ROAD

DENNIS LANE LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSULTATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

58



PROPOSED PRINCES DRIVE

ROAD CLOSURE LOCATION

REFLECTIVE STRIPS

(FRONT AND BACK)

ROAD SIGNS

(FRONT AND BACK)

1.5m1.5m

PRINCES DRIVE LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD - PUBLIC CONSULTATION PLAN (NTS)

OVERVIEW

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE PLANTERS

E

A

R

L

S

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

D

U

K

E

S

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

P

R

I

N

C

E

S

 

D

R

I

V

E

S

A

N

D

R

I
D

G

E

 
C

L

O

S

E

B

A

R

O

N

S

 
M

E

A

D

K

I
N

G

S

 
W

A

Y

Q

U

E

E

N

S

 

W

A

L

K

W

A

L

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

M

A

R

L

B

O

R

O

U

G

H

 

H

I

L

L

M

A

R

L

B

O

R

O

U

G

H

 
H

I
L

L

P

R

I

N

C

E

S

 

D

R

I

V

E

E

A

R

L

S

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

H

E

A

D

S

T

O

N

E

D

R

I
V

E

D

A

N

E

S

 
G

A

T

E

E

L

L

E

N

 

W

E

B

B

 

D

R

I

V

E

KEY:

PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

USING PLANTERS

DRIVER ACCESS FROM

MARLBOROUGH HILL

59

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
Ward Bdy



T
his page is intentionally left blank



C

O

L

B

U

R

N

4

5

6

1

8

2 9

2

8

6

1

4

6

9

0

S

Y

L

V

I

A

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

N

E

W

L

A

N

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

D

E

R

W

E

N

T

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

L

Y

N

D

O

N

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

C

O

L

B

U

R

N

A

V

E

N

U

E

2

2

3

8

4

9

3

5

3

3

2

7

1

2

3

2

1

6

3

0

4

4

7

0

7

2

4

3

2

9

1

5

1

5

1

2

1

6

3

0

4

4

8

0

1

1

7

1

0

7

1

3

8

a

S

Y

L

V

I

A

 

 

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

C

O

L

B

U

R

N

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

H

I
L

L

V

I
E

W

 
C

L

O

S

E

School

House

G

r

i
m

s

d

y

k

eF

i
r

s

t
 
a

n

d

M

i
d

d

l
e

 
S

c

h

o

o

l
s

2

5

2

0

1

0

3

9

9

8

7

7

5

7

1

5

9

4

7

3

5

2

5

1

5

3

4

3

2

9

5

4

4

2

3

2

2

4

1

2

1

0

8

2

7

2

3

1

8

1

0

8

2

7

0

6

0

5

9

4
9

8

5

0

5

2

4

3

a

4

5

5

4

a

5

4

5

2

a

1

1

0

a

5

5

1

3

7

1

O

a

k

 

T

r

e

e

H

o

u

s

e

4

9

a

4

9

H

I

L

L

V

I

E

W

 

R

O

A

D

A

V

E

N

U

E

TB

MB

MB

MB

TB

MB

MB

MB

9

1

8

9

5

8

6

4

6

2

6

6

4

6

4

8

6

9

6

7

6

5

9

3

GIMSDYKE SCHOOL

 ANPR  CAMERA

 ANPR  CAMERA

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK19/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

19/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

SCHOOL STREET

GIMSDYKE SCHOOL, HATCH END

TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE

T/DWG/GIMSDYKE SCHOOL_SS-01

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\SS\DWG\Park High School.dwg

JA

B

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

PROPOSED SCHOOL STREET

PROPOSED TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE

DURING THE PERIOD OF RESTRICTION

FOR INFORMATIONB VK25/06/20

61

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
N



W

A

Y

C

L

O

V

E

L

L

Y

4

0

3

8

6

1

1

1

1

1

9

8

1

1

8

9
6

86

7

4

1

0

4

L

U

L

W

O

R

T

H

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

NEWQUAY

4

4

3

4

4

3

9

2

5

8

1

5

4

2

0

5

1

9

3

8
a

1
0

L

Y

N

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

C

L

O

V

E

L

L

Y

 

W

A

Y

R

A

V

E

N

S

W

O

O

D

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

L

U

L

W

O

R

T

H

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

K

I

N

G

S

 

R

O

A

D

K

I

N

G

S

R

O

A

D

D
R

A
K

E

R
O

A
D

1

1

7

1

2

9

2

0

7

1

9

5

1

5

5

1

4

1

1

2

7

1

1

5

2

1

3

2

1

5

1

6

2

2

0

9

2

5

1

2

2

1

2

3

3

2

3

9

Surgery

1

1

3

2

5

3

7

4

9

6

3

7

5

8

7

9

9

2

0

4

1

9

2

1

8

0

1

6

6

1

5

2

1

3

8

1

2

6

1

1

4

1

0

2

2

0

6

2

1

6

2

1

6

a

2

1

6

b

1
1
9

1
0
7

9
5

8
3

7
1

5
9

3
7

1

3

4

1

4

2

4

2

7
8

6
4

5
2

3
8

2
6

1
4

2

2

3

2

2

1

8

2

1

5

2

3

0

4

4

5

8

.

7

2

7

4

8

8

1

0

2

1

1

4

1

2

8

6

4

6

6

2

4

2

5

1

a

9
0

2
5

1

7

6

101

107

2

1

8

a

3

3

9

3

4

5

1
3

Newton Farm

First and Middle School

1

4

1

6

7

1

8

2

4
9

2

0

6

a

1

0

1

9
5

8
5

2

3

6

M

A

L

V

E

R

N

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

5

1

3

5

0

3

5

8

3

5

2

3

3

7

3

2

5

3

1

5

6

0

3

8

5

0

D

r

a

k

e

 

C

o

u

r

t

L

u

c

a

s

 

C

o

u

r

t

C

l
i
t

h

e

r

o

e

 

C

o

u

r

t

A

L

E

X

A

N

D

R

A

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

TEMPORARY CLOSURE

WITH CONCERTINA

BARRIERS DURING

SCHOOL START TIME

AND FINISH TIME

TEMPORARY CLOSURE WITH

CONCERTINA BARRIERS

DURING SCHOOL START

TIME AND FINISH TIME

TEMPORARY CLOSURE WITH

CONCERTINA BARRIERS

DURING SCHOOL START

TIME AND FINISH TIME

TEMPORARY CLOSURE WITH

CONCERTINA BARRIERS

DURING SCHOOL START TIME

AND FINISH TIME

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK16/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

16/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

SCHOOL STREET

NEWTON FARM NURSERY, INFANT AND

JUNIOR SCHOOL,

TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE

T/DWG/NEWTON FARM SCHOOL_SS-02

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\SS\DWG\Park High School.dwg

JA

B

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

PROPOSED SCHOOL STREET

PROPOSED CONCERTINA BARRIER

FIGURE 1:CONCERTINA BARRIER

FOR INFORMATIONB VK25/06/20

62

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
CAPTHORNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
72a

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
223

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
236

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
349

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
355

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
223a

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
362

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
368

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
N



M

a

r

l

b

o

r

o

u

g

h

R

A

N

M

O

O

R

C

L

O

S

E

M

A

R

L

B

O

R

O

U

G

H

 

H

I

L

L

W

A

L

T

O

N

 

D

R

I

V

E

H

A

R

L

E

Y

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

Marlborough

Court

4

2

5

4

6

6

1

0

3

9

1

7

 

t

o

 

1

2

1

 

t

o

 

6

4

0

4

1

4

6

4

7

3

7

4

9

5

1

3

7

2

5

1

3

1

2

7

8

9

1

0

1

3

5

1

3

7

1

6

3

1

6

5

1

4

0

1

4

2

1

4

1

5

1

1

1

2

2

0

2

1

3

2

3

2

2

2

B

A

D

M

I

N

T

O

N

 

C

L

O

S

E

R

A

N

M

O

O

R

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

R

U

S

L

A

N

D

P

A

R

K

 

R

O

A

D

L

O

W

I

C

K

 

R

O

A

D

R

U

G

B

Y

 

C

L

O

S

E

R

A

N

M

O

O

R

 

G

D

N

S

Marlborough

Junior and Infants

School

Rusland

Heights

Vicarage

1

3

4

1

2

1

2

2

1

3

1

1

3

3

1

2

7

1

2

9

3

6

3

7

3

2

3

3

3

0

3

1

2

6

2

7

2
8

2

9

1

1

1

1

1

3

1

1

2

1

0

0

1

0

1

2

1

4

1

1

1

3

1

5

2

5

8

3

6

9

1

4

7

3

9

3

3

2

1

4

2
4

1
9

1

1

3

3

1

2

9

6

2

4

2

4

6

9

0

6

5

6

7

7

3

1

2

5

6

7

8

1

1

1

2

1

2

1

3

2

1

3

0

5

5

L

O

W

I

C

K

 

R

O

A

D

5

3

2

4

5

7

3

4

3

7

2

5

3

8

2
3

3

7

2
8

L

E

Y

S

 

C

L

O

S

E

R

A

D

N

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

9

8

8

9

8

7

a

8

7

7

7

1

4

 

t

o

 

1

9

2

0

 

t

o

 

2

5

5

8

1

4

8

2

C

o

u

r

t

M

a

r

l

b

o

r

o

u

g

h

Surgery

9

0

9

4

5

7

5

5

9

2

TEMPORARY CLOSURE WITH

CONCERTINA BARRIERS

DURING SCHOOL START

TIME AND FINISH TIME

TEMPORARY CLOSURE WITH

CONCERTINA BARRIERS

DURING SCHOOL START

TIME AND FINISH TIME

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK16/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

16/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

SCHOOL STREET

MARLBOROUGH PRIMARY SCHOOL,

MARLBOROUGH HILL

TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE

T/DWG/MARLBOROUGH PRIMARY SCHOOL_SS-03

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\SS\DWG\Park High School.dwg

JA

B

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

PROPOSED SCHOOL STREET

PROPOSED CONCERTINA BARRIER

FIGURE 1:CONCERTINA BARRIER

FOR INFORMATIONB VK25/06/20

63

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
BM 59.85m

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
N



2

1

P

I
C

K

E

T

T

 
C

R

O

F

T

C

R

O

W

S

H

O

T

T

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

8

5

2

4

7

3

1

0

1

0

3

7

7

4

3

5

9

.

1

m

2

9

Centenary Park

D

e

f

C

F

2

4

7

1

2

L

A

D

Y

C

R

O

F

T

 

W

A

L

K

4

6

1

1

2

2

L

A

D

Y

C

R

O

F

T

 

W

A

L

K

2

9

Surgery

4

1

1

3

1

8

5

7

1

1

5

4

1

4

6

3

LB

1

5

4

4

B

U

R

N

E

L

L

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

4

9

6

0

7
4

1

1

9

a

1

2

9

El Sub Sta

W

a

r

d

 

B

d

y

4
7

1

3

3

1

2

3

9

5

5

6
4

4

3

7
6

2

5

52.4m

C

U

L

V

E

R

 

G

R

O

V

E

C

F

8

1

3

2

5

C

R

O

W

S

H

O

T

T

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

1

3

1

53.9m

5

2

5

6

2

4

7

7

4

0

1

1

9

2

6

L

A

M

O

R

N

A

 

G

R

O

V

E

1

1

4

2

5

5

2

1

2

6

1
1
9

1

0

67.4m

T

H

I

S

T

L

E

C

R

O

F

T

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

2

9

1

2

1

3

8

TCB

El

7

6

4

0

3

4

3

0

3

4

7

9

C

R

58.3m

Sub Sta

5

2

1

1

0

9
6

6

4

.

0

m

1

7

L

A

M

O

R

N

A

 

G

R

O

V

E

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

CR

C

P

P

A

R

K

 

H

I

G

H

 

S

C

H

O

O

L

 ANPR CAMERA

 ANPR CAMERA

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK19/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

19/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

SCHOOL STREET

HIGH PARK SCHOOL,STANMORE

TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE

T/DWG/PARK HIGH SCHOOL_SS-04

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\SS\DWG\Park High School.dwg

JA

B

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

PROPOSED SCHOOL STREET

PROPOSED TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE

DURING THE PERIOD OF RESTRICTION

FOR INFORMATIONB VK25/06/20

64

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
N



M
OO

RH
OU

SE
 R

OA
D

213

236

262

7

6
25

240

397 to 407

21
1

153

207 28

30

26

17

5

411

22

423

699

LB

38

ANMERSH GROVE

55

63

53

42

1

MARSH LANE
13

24

1

Cou
rt

W
ATE

RSFI
ELD

 W
AY

2

1

Pa
th

62
.2m

2

490

1

45

DALSTON GARDENS

Work
s

87

81

29

134

8

440

464

73

49

1

13

1

1

13

106

25

480

22

7

12b

Elizabeth House

18

Hou
se

Mon
arc

h C
ou

rt

77

17
 to

 44

Cou
rt1 t

o 3
0

Brin
dle

y C
ou

rt

W
hit

ch
urc

h F
irs

t S
ch

oo
l &

 N
urs

ery

893

Li
ne

 O
f P

os
ts

CF

CF

CF

Def

Def

CF

Def

CF

1a

244

189

12
9

2

Ban
k

70

TC
Bs

5

29

409

27

10

421

ESS

9

LB

14
1

12
9

W
oo

dm
an

s 
C

ou
rt

Ban
k

70

217

7

246

16
10

240

31

1

24

2

334

34

2

Clin
ic 

an
d

Hert
for

d

4

Dep
ot

103

494

Sub
 S

ta

12

35

Pos
ts

Work
s

574

57

Shelter

W
ork

s

Surg
ery

LB

53

88

94

449

437

2

647

428

13

27

85

125

118

73

30

11
1

99

Bea
u C

ou
rt

CF

42 to
 62

583

857

891

Po
sts

LE
TC

HW
ORTH

 R
OAD

582

Shelter

Def

Def

CF

Def

CF

CF

7

8

397 to 407

21
1

14
1

20
3

Queensbury Circle Parade

23

26

1520

1

22

395

18
7

TC
Bs

385

215

389-393

18
7

421

1

Depot

Dep
ot

693

PEARESWOOD GARDENS

43

19

51

75

ANMERSH GROVE

88

1

Li
ttl

ec
ot

13

14

909

23

4

8

15 500

Sub
 S

ta

GARLAND ROAD

Ho
ne

yp
ot

 B
us

in
es

s 
Ce

nt
re

75

DA
LS

TO
N 

GA
RD

EN
S

26

12

466

75

25

8

1 to 12

5

Sov
ere

ign

18 to 37

Moo
re

Cou
rt

429

603

575

543

513 515

859
855

895

CF

Def

De
f

De
f

CF

CF

Def

W
oo

dfi
eld

 C
ou

rt

6

21

1

LB

17913

23

207

215

19
8

272 11

PO
R

TL
AN

D
 C

R
ES

C
EN

T

PO

2

28

17 24

393

She
lte

r

387

244

189

20
3 8

381

PO
R

TL
AN

D
 C

R
ES

C
EN

T

2
14

391

3
15

ESS

13

15

Ten
nis

 C
ou

rts

2

13

63

103

41

64

Willo
w

HONEYPOT LANE

64
.0m

1 to 5

GP

6

14

Hall

Cou
rt

BRICK LANE

1

498

496

W
ork

s

10

673

Shelter

685

W
IG

TO
N 

GAR
DE

NS

El

Dep
ot

69

W
ork

s

Ta
nk

FA
IR

W
AY

S

50

62

2

53

404

452

478

75

95

115

37

484

1

1 to 12

H
O

W
AR

D
 R

O
AD

65

Vict
ori

a
Cou

rt

1 to 16

1 to 17

1 t
o 1

6

Hen
ry

1 t
o 2

3

El S
ub

 S
ta

El S
ub

 S
ta

861

895

Shelters

ESS

De
f

De
f

Def

CF

CF

199

217

383

8

80

10

3

12

44

21

1
M

OO
RH

OU
SE

 R
OA

D

23
1262

23

19

8
TC

Bs

12

28

26
29

1

10

59
.4m

Th
e L

od
ge

13

60
.4m

44

12

54

BR
AM

BL
E 

CL
O

SE

318

33

901

13

99

13
0

Shelter

25

LB

Work
s

W
ork

s

108

38

74

605

451

635

63

85

137

70

13

61

3

23a

1 t
o 1

5

Mas
t (T

ele
co

mmun
ica

tio
n)

Ward Bdy

22
 to

 41

491

489

541

721

701

899
897

CF

Def

CF

Def

CF

2

20
1

W
oo

dm
an

s 
C

ou
rt

153

252

385

28

381

42

12

423

ESS

20
1

13

272

6

409

238

157

W
are

ho
us

e

14

HONEYPOT LANE

39

47

45

26

Drain

W
EM

BO
RO

UG
H 

RO
AD

Cou
rt

2

Pon
d

Can
on

s H
all

1to16

W
HIT

CHURCH LA
NE

4

25

35

13

LANGLAND CRESCENT

Work
s

439

416

37

35

2

12a

Sylv
ia 

Hou
se

4

Dev
on

sh
ire

10a

Und

1 t
o 5

5

431

465

883
885887

843

Mon
arc

h C
ou

rt

CF

CF

CF

De
f

CF

De
f

508

9

387

TC
Bs

30

391

242

16
10

411

2 4

199

179

236

80

10

11

PO

23

242

42

395

12

Fire
 Stat

ion

1

Pav
ilio

n

9

Spo
rts

 G
rou

nd

10
8

29

98

64

FB

1 to 6

1

GP

Edgware Brook

322

M
AY

CH
UR

CH
 C

LO
SE

LB

13

101

63

Work
s

W
are

ho
us

e

663

Work
s

El

PA
R

R
 R

O
AD

47

W
ork

s

Work
s

TAUNTO
N W

AY

146

41

120

77

1

15

20

105

147

58

1

49

12

2

572

1 to 15

El S
ub

 S
ta

20
Reg

en
cy

 C
ou

rt

1 t
o 2

3

Def

UNWIN WAY

Mad
ele

ine
 C

ou
rt

Attle
e C

ou
rt

581

467

881

867

723

6

Cyc
le 

tra
ck

Shelter

De
f

Def

Def

CF

Def

Drain

506

21
9

4

23
1

246

14

389-

26

238

157

21
9

213

2

252

383

Queensbury Circle Parade

20 2425

44

27

She
lte

r
ESS

26

27

13

23

Ten
nis

 C
ou

rts

94

ESS

LANGLAND CRESCENT

54

37

Lib
rar

y

Bart
ho

lom
ew

8

2

Ce
da

r H
ou

se

31
3

580

1

49

W
ork

s

HONEYPOT LANE

LB

2

651

W
ork

s

HONEYPOT LANE

W
ork

s

W
ork

s

CO
LL

IN
S 

AV
EN

UE

H
O

LL
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

65

99 89

14

90

619

621

2

10

61

25

45

94

82

46

5

Ambe
r H

ou
se

Balmoral House

186

627

87

10

Cou
rt

CR

CF

1 t
o 6

0

601

573

703

Shelter

CF

CF

CF

Def

Def

M
as

t (
Te

lec
om

m
un

ica
tio

n)

STREATFIELD
 R

OAD

BR
OA

DC
RO

FT
 A

VE
NU

E

CR
O

W
SH

O
TT

 A
VE

NU
E

PEARESWOOD GARDENS

BR
O

M
EF

IE
LD

Ju
bile

e C
ycl

e R
ou

te 
to

Stan
more

 Stat
ion

Ju
bil

ee
 C

yc
le 

Ro
ut

e 
to

Qu
ee

ns
bu

ry
 S

ta
tio

n

6

213

236

262

7

6
25

240

397 to 407

21
1

207 28

30

26

17

5

411

423

2

55

1

699

17

LB

PICKETT CROFT

CR
O

W
SH

O
TT

 A
VE

NU
E

43

85

87

24

73

10

56

38

ANMERSH GROVE

10

73

LB

52

95

37

13

5

26

52

9

37

55

63

121

7

43

40

63

145

59.1m

181

53

42

29

BR
O

AD
CR

O
FT

 A
VE

NU
E

11a

PO
RTL

AN
D

a

2

45

1

MARSH LANE

13

24

1

Cou
rt

20

13

19

14

2

1

Pa
th

62
.2m

BR
O

M
EF

IE
LD

13

Hou
se

21
4

223

41

2

2

490

1

45

Work
s

72

87

37

114

81

29

134

8

440

464

73

49

1

13

1

1

13

44

106

25

123

32
2

MP .75

480

22

7

12b

21

48

Can
on

s P
ark

St
ati

on
 P

ar
ad

e

Surgery

HOWBERRY ROAD

7

Elizabeth House

18

Hou
se

21
2a

1 
to

 6

Mon
arc

h C
ou

rt

77

17
 to

 44

Pos
ts

Cou
rt1 t

o 3
0

Und

63 to 91

Brin
dle

y C
ou

rt

W
hit

ch
urc

h F
irs

t S
ch

oo
l &

 N
urs

ery

97

893

26
2

Li
ne

 O
f P

os
ts

CF

CF

CF

Def

De
f

Def

CF

CF

Def

CF

L T
wr

L T
wr

FF

1a

226

244

189

2

Ban
k

TC
Bs

5

29

409

27

10

421

ESS

243

16

9

210

LB

W
oo

dm
an

s 
C

ou
rt

Ban
k

217

7

246

16
10

240

33

30

24

31

71

24

1

19

25

34

2

LADYCROFT WALK

47

7

BR
AI

TH
W

AI
TE

 G
AR

DE
NS

41

2

13

36

10

68
.3m

109

37

31

85

24

46

64

34

7

Sub
 S

ta

11

64

133

22

LADYCROFT WALK

29

5

14

2

GREEN VERGES

334

34

2

Clin
ic 

an
d

Hert
for

d

67
.7m

67
.1m

36

4

Dep
ot

ALDRIDGE AVENUE

94

103

494

Sub
 S

ta

12

MP 10

35

Pos
ts

Work
s

118

574

61
.6m

57

26

255

W
ork

s

Surg
ery

LB

53

88

94

449

437

2

647

428

13

27

85

125

87

118

73

14

179

31
8

30

AVENUE

28

8

2

304

268

1

258

1

14

59

1

HIT
CHIN

 LA
NE

11
1

99

Pos
ts

Bea
u C

ou
rt

CF

Play
 A

rea

42 to
 62

Mar
yla

ke
 C

ou
rt

583

857

891

Po
sts

LE
TC

HW
ORTH

 R
OAD

582

Def

Def

CF

Def

CF

C
F

CF

7

Drain

8

4

397 to 407

21
1

20
3

Queensbury Circle Parade

26
20

395

18
7

TC
Bs

385

215

389-393

18
7

421

Surg
ery

30

7

1

Depot

Dep
ot

41

El

28

8

52a

13

18

57

1

LY
O

N 
M

EA
DE

693

1

56

25

22

56
.4m

2

81

W
EM

BO
RO

UG
H 

RO
AD

48

14

34

CR
ES

CE
NT

14

63

32

43

15

44

BURNELL GARDENS

13
2

19

15
4

51

49

75

15
2

60

51

25

13
8

88

74

13

25

HO
W

BE
RR

Y

38

62
.2m

1

Li
ttl

ec
ot

HOWBERRY ROAD

13

14

909

23

42

Iss
ue

s

4

8

2

15

1

75

239

DALE AVENUE

500

Sub
 S

ta

GARLAND ROAD

8

W
are

ho
us

e

Ho
ne

yp
ot

 B
us

in
es

s 
Ce

nt
re

75

14

40

Sub
 Sta

26
6

C
AM

R
O

SE
 A

VE
N

U
E

66.4m

ALDRIDGE AVENUE

26

12

466

75

25

14

68

8

167

31

64
.6m

7

2 16

W
AT

ER
SF

IE
LD

 W
AY

Surg
ery

1 to 12

5

Sov
ere

ign

18 to 37

Lig
hti

ng
 C

olu
mn

Lig
hti

ng
 C

olu
mn

Moo
re

Cou
rt

Ward Bdy

42 to
 62

Blet
ch

ley
 C

ou
rt

429

603

575

543

513 515

859
855

895

21
6

21
8

CF

Def

De
f

De
f

CF

CF

CF

Def

Und

W
oo

dfi
eld

 C
ou

rt

6

210

21

1

LB

17913

23

207

215

19
8

272 11

PO
R

TL
AN

D
 C

R
ES

C
EN

T

PO

28

17

393

She
lte

r

4
2

216

387

244

189

20
3

154

8

381

PO
R

TL
AN

D
 C

R
ES

C
EN

T

391

ESS

13

37

13

BR
O

M
EF

IE
LD

47

15

Ten
nis

 C
ou

rts

13

3

2

1

13

13

2

39

55

1

64
.9m

21

64

25

85

2

58

24

14

14

BROMEFIE
LD

43

11

1

63

76

103

41

25

53

12
0

64

35

LB

45a

20

32

Willo
w

306

38

13

25

Stan
more

 M
ars

h

1 to 5

47

GP

38

6

14

8

Hall

Cou
rt

BRICK LANE

30
3

12

Surg
ery

9

67

Sch
oo

l

88

2a

25

Sh
el

te
r

23
8

1

SL

498

496

W
ork

s

10

673

685

El

Dep
ot

69

W
ork

s

Ta
nk

281

18

14

1

El

SL

50

62

2

53

404

452

478

75

95

115

2

128

37

52

40

28

1

143

133

31
6

484

1

18

2

1

294

1 to 12

7

H
O

W
AR

D
 R

O
AD

65

15

55

Vict
ori

a
Cou

rt

1 to 16

1 to 17

Lig
hti

ng
 C

olu
mn

Lig
hti

ng
 C

olu
mn

1 t
o 1

6

Hen
ry

1 t
o 2

3

CF

CS

El S
ub

 S
ta

El S
ub

 S
ta

1 t
o 2

1

(LU
)

28
4

861

895

She
lte

r

ESS

De
f

De
f

Def

CF

CF

CF

Spo
rts

 C
ou

rt

199

1

217

383

8

156

10

44

6

21

226

1

1

262

23

19

8
TC

Bs

156

LANGLAND CRESCENT

28

26
29

10

8

13

80

25

59
.4m

Th
e L

od
ge

2

13

60
.4m

1

CR
O

W
SH

O
TT

 A
VE

NU
E

2

79

1

1

131

60

82

107

1

23

71

58

52

44

56

12

54

169

24

77

40

33

43

20

4

318

13

33

Sink
s

33

901

65

FB

229

237

9

Ed
gw

ar
e 

Br
oo

k

106

13

99

W
are

ho
us

e

60

13
0

25

267

27
0

293

BR
ID

G
EW

AT
ER

 G
AR

D
EN

S

102

52

PORTLAND CRESCENT

LB

Work
s

W
ork

s

FB

SL

LB

108

38

74

605

451

635

63

85

137

36

138

70

13

61

SL

3

89

15

280

22
9

6

38

23a

1 t
o 1

5

L C
ol

Lig
hti

ng
 C

olu
mn

Lig
hti

ng
 C

olu
mn

Mas
t (T

ele
co

mmun
ica

tio
n)

Ward Bdy

Ward Bdy

Un
d

22
 to

 41

491

489

95

541

721

701

899
897

De
f

CF

Def

CF

Def

CF

D
ef

Spo
rts

 C
ou

rt

L T
wr

Def

216

2

20
1

W
oo

dm
an

s 
C

ou
rt

252

385

28

381

42

12

423

20
1

13

272

6

409

238

26

LAMORNA GROVE

77

1

14

2

19

43

22

W
are

ho
us

e

55

21

26

14

52

68

25

26

Sub
 S

ta

67

39

BUSH GROVE

LYON MEADE

46

93

119

8

83

HOME MEAD

8

38

13

28

CO
LE

DA
LE

 D
RI

VE

19

GYLES PARK

16

166

37

119

39

LANGLAND CRESCENT

10

65

1

47

66
.1m

El

45

Park
 H

igh
 S

ch
oo

l

9

52

THISTLECROFT GARDENS

26

42
29

CL
O

YS
TE

R 
W

O
O

D

1

Drain

BUSH GROVE

24

9

35

16

1

23

17

Cou
rt

LONGCROFTE ROAD

11

2

Pon
d

CORNBURY ROAD

Can
on

s H
all

35

1to16

49

W
EM

BO
RO

UG
H 

RO
AD

64
.3m

11

El S
ub

 S
ta

52

40

4

25

35

84

13

13

2

126

243

35

LANGLAND CRESCENT

Work
s

DEAN DRIVE

WOODSTOCK CLOSE

439

416

37

35

2

155

32
0

152

12a

Stat
ion

26

13

22 5

SL

Sylv
ia 

Hou
se

4

Dev
on

sh
ire

29

10a

1 t
o 2

1

(F
oo

tba
ll G

rou
nd

)

1 t
o 5

5

91

431

465

883
885887

843

63 to 91

Mon
arc

h C
ou

rt

CF

CF

CF

De
f

CF

De
f

De
f

1 t
o 7

5

508

243

9

387

TC
Bs

30

LANGLAND CRESCENT

391

242

16
10

411

2

199

179

236

10

11

PO

242

42

395

12

Fire
 Stat

ion

38

1

26

31

Pav
ilio

n

16

19

TCBEl

32

9

44

1

Spo
rts

 G
rou

nd

58

2

ST ANDREWS DRIVE

35

38

22

70

121

76

40

59

37

78

34

42

30

CARISBROOKE CLOSE

157

87

10
8

29

34

98

64

76

79
22

C
LO

SE

9

36

FB

1 to 6

1

GP

1

Edgware Brook

322

M
AY

CH
UR

CH
 C

LO
SE

30

LB

13

17

80

Sh
el

te
r

221a

26
4

23
6

101

63

Work
s

SL

W
are

ho
us

e

663

Work
s

El

PA
R

R
 R

O
AD

47

25

16

13

49

115

5

W
ork

s

Work
s

TAUNTON WAY

TURNER ROAD

146

41

120

77

1

15

20

105

147

58

1

49

62

12

2

29
2

286

SL

23

Surg
ery

24

572

1 to 15

El S
ub

 S
ta

20

8

Reg
en

cy
 C

ou
rt

1 t
o 2

3

L C
ol

Ta
nk

s

Def

UNWIN WAY

Mad
ele

ine
 C

ou
rt

2 t
o 1

4

29
5

1

Attle
e C

ou
rt

28
6

27
2

581

467

881

867

26
0

723

CR

6

She
lte

r

Cyc
le 

W
ay

De
f

Def

Def

CF

CF

Def

Drain

L T
wrClem

en
t C

ou
rt

506

16

2

21
9

154

246

389-

26

238

21
9

213

2

252

383

Queensbury Circle Parade

20 25

44

27

She
lte

r

52b

26

58
.3m

27

2
24a

13

23

Ten
nis

 C
ou

rts

Sub
 S

ta

36

40

49

26

96

52

13

110

LB

96

19

61

94

ESS

180

22

17

LANGLAND CRESCENT

LAMORNA GROVE

54

15

37

32

Lib
rar

y

43

Pav
ilio

n

2

Bart
ho

lom
ew

8

2

31

Ce
da

r H
ou

se

GP

26

23

17

40

31
3

13

Dr
ain

35

El S
ub

 S
ta

1

24

ST
 B

RI
DE

'S
 A

VE
NU

E

21
2

221

1

39

29

65
.2

m

12

65
.8m

580

1

49

W
ork

s

LB

2

651

W
ork

s

48

SHALDON ROAD

24

25

26
8

Surgery

2

HONEYPOT LANE

W
ork

s

W
ork

s

CO
LL

IN
S

H
O

LL
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

TCB

SL

El S
ub

 S
ta

65
.5m

65

99 89

14

90

619

621

2

10

61

25

45

26

94

82

46

2

140

29
4

5

LB

290

13

1

Ambe
r H

ou
se

Balmoral House

186

627

43

87

10

Cou
rt

The
 H

ive
 Foo

tba
ll C

en
tre

Lig
hti

ng
 C

olu
mn

CR

CR

CR

CF

Und

22
 to

 41

29
3

1 t
o 6

0

27
4

93

601

573

703

CR

CF

CF

CF

De
f

Def

Def

She
lte

r

She
lte

r

Tan
k (

co
v)

FBs

M
as

t (
Te

lec
om

m
un

ica
tio

n)

BUS
STO

P

BUS STO
P

BUS STO
P

BUS
STOP

BUS
STOP

BUS
STOP

BUS STO
P

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE
PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY
OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND
MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

HONEYPOT LANE CYCLE ROUTE - TFL STREETSPACE PROGRAMME OVERVIEW COUNCIL
LONDON

KEY
Proposed 2 metre wide mandatory cycle
lane with hatched buffer

Proposed reduction in speed limit from
40 MPH to 30 MPH

Traffic light controlled pedestrian crossing

Existing bus stopBU
S

STO
P

Existing Jubilee Cycle Route between
Queensbury Station and Stanmore Station

Speed Camera - modify to enforce new
30mph vehicle speeds

Cycle
lane

Traffic lane

Traffic lane

2.00m

Cycle
lane

0.8m

3.4m

Hatched
buffer area

Traffic lane
3.4m

2.00m

Cycle
lane

Hatched
buffer area

2.00m

0.8m

3.4m

Hatched
buffer area

0.8m

Hatched
buffer area

Traffic lane

3.4m

Cycle
lane

2.00m

0.8m

Typical plan and elevation view of proposals

Above dimensions are indicative, exact dimensions may vary on site

BAKERLOO ROUTE

CROSS HARROW ROUTE

HEART OF HARROW ROUTE

JUBILEE ROUTE

METROPOLITAN ROUTE

NORTHERN ROUTE

STANMORE TO THAMES
ROUTE

Harrow Cycling Connectivity Map

HATCH
END

PINNER
GREEN

HEADSTONE

NORTH
HARROW

WEST
HARROW

HARROW
T.C.

W'STONE

KENTON
KINGSBURY

QUEENSBURY

CANONS
PARK

BELMONT

HARROW
WEALD

STANMORE

SOUTH
HARROW

PINNER

65



BUS
LANE

BUS
&

ONLY

20

SHEEPCOTE ROAD

SHEEPCOTE ROAD

KENTON ROAD

SHEEPCOTE ROAD

To
Northwich Park

Hospital

To
 H

ar
ro

w
To

w
n 

C
en

tre

BUS
STOP

BUS STO
P

BUS STO
P

BUS
STOP

borough

boundary

LB HARROW
LB BRENT

KENTON ROAD

NORTHWICK

PARK

HOSPITAL

COUNCIL
LONDON

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE
PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY
OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND
MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

SHEEPCOTE ROAD CYCLE ROUTE - TFL STREETSPACE PROGRAMME OVERVIEW 

KEY
Proposed 2m wide mandatory cycle lane
with hatched buffer
Southbound bus lane to be made 24 hrs
and accessible for cyclists

Traffic light controlled pedestrian crossing

Existing bus stopBU
S

STO
P

Proposed TfL Wembley to Harrow Weald
Cycleway

Cycle
lane

Traffic lane

Traffic lane

2.00m

Cycle
lane

0.8m min

3.4m

Hatched buffer
area

Traffic lane
3.4m

2.00m

Cycle
lane

Hatched buffer
area

2.00m

0.8m min

3.4m

Hatched buffer
area

0.8m min

Hatched buffer
area

Traffic lane

3.4m

Cycle
lane

2.00m

0.8m min

Typical plan and elevation view of proposals

Above dimensions are only indicative, exact dimensions may vary on site

Bus lane to be accessible
to cyclists at all times

BAKERLOO ROUTE

CROSS HARROW ROUTE

HEART OF HARROW ROUTE

JUBILEE ROUTE

METROPOLITAN ROUTE

NORTHERN ROUTE

STANMORE TO THAMES
ROUTE

Harrow Cycling Connectivity Map

HATCH
END

PINNER
GREEN

HEADSTONE

NORTH
HARROW

WEST
HARROW

HARROW
T.C.

W'STONE

KENTON
KINGSBURY

QUEENSBURY

CANONS
PARK

BELMONT

HARROW
WEALD

STANMORE

SOUTH
HARROW

PINNER

66

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
259

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
BONNERSFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
NORTHWICK PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
GAYTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
5b

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
4 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
West House

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
24 to 31

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
16 to 23

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
7 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
Blackthorne

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
St James's

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
Harrow High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Thurlby Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
SD2

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
HAVELOCK PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
WILLIAM CAREY WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
347 to 353

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
339

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
337

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
331

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
329

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
323 to 327

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Post Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
ASHBURNHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
GAYTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
COLLEGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
LYON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
ST JOHN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
St Ann's Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
GREENHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
VICTORIA CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
NORTHWICK PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
BONNERSFIELD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
Murray

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Sonia Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
Signal

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
Congress

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
Lyon House

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Wilton

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Charville

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Lime

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
Gayton

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
Petherton

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
YMCA

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
Tempsford Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
St John's Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Equitable

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
Platinum House

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
The Havelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
St John the Baptist's

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Chester

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
Harrow Baptist

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Tennis Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Manor Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
Manor Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
Wks

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
313

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
307

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
303

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
305

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
295

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
289

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
275 to 287

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
273

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
269

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
271

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
267

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
249

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
249c

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
245

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
237

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
190 to 194

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
13 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
19 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
1 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
48 to 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
42 to 47

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
36 to 41

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
26 to 31

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
20 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
14 to 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
5 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
276

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
284

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
286

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
288

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
292

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
304

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
314

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
322

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
315

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
323 to 327

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
333

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
339 337

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
341

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
345

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
343

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
347 to 353

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
328

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
332

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
330

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
334

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
336

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
338

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
340 to 352

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
354

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
355

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
361

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
365

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
364 to 368

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
362

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
1 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Harrow

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
High

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
329

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
331

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
297

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
301

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
306

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
Brandreth

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
Hanbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
1 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
1 to 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
Cymbeline Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
Shepherds

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
Garth Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
1 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
Knowles Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
Tapley Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
Enterprise

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
Job Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
1 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
Kensington

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
Nightingale

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
1 to 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
21 to 39

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
Chalfont Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
1 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
GREENHILL WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
190

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
182 to 186

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
219

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
229c

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
231

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
233

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
Rothwell Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
1 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
BONNERSFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
WATFORD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
ASHBURNHAM GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
NUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
GAYTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
GAYTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
Halfords

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
STATION ROAD



UXBRIDGE ROAD (HARROW WEALD)

UXBRIDGE ROAD (HARROW WEALD)

UXBRIDGE ROAD (HARROW WEALD)

COUNCIL
LONDON

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE
PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY
OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND
MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

UXBRIDGE ROAD CYCLE ROUTE - TFL STREETSPACE PROGRAMME OVERVIEW 

KEY
Proposed 2m wide mandatory cycle lane
with hatched buffer

Traffic light controlled pedestrian crossing

Existing bus stop/standBU
S

STO
P

Northern Cycle Route between Pinner and
Edgware - part constructed

BAKERLOO ROUTE

CROSS HARROW ROUTE

HEART OF HARROW ROUTE

JUBILEE ROUTE

METROPOLITAN ROUTE

NORTHERN ROUTE

STANMORE TO THAMES
ROUTE

Harrow Cycling Connectivity Map

HATCH
END

PINNER
GREEN

HEADSTONE

NORTH
HARROW

WEST
HARROW

HARROW
T.C.

W'STONE

KENTON
KINGSBURY

QUEENSBURY

CANONS
PARK

BELMONT

HARROW
WEALD

STANMORE

SOUTH
HARROW

PINNER

Cycle
lane

Traffic lane

Traffic lane

2m

Cycle
lane

0.8m

3.4m

Hatched buffer
area

Traffic lane
3.4m

2m

Cycle
lane

Hatched buffer
area

2m

0.8m

3.4m

Hatched buffer
area

0.8m

Hatched buffer
area

Traffic lane

3.4m

Cycle
lane
2m

0.8m

Typical plan and elevation view of proposals

Above dimensions are indicative, exact dimensions may vary on site

67

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
Shaftesbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
281

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
Hatch End High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Hatch End High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
ROWLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
THE LAWNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
UXBRIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
HEADSTONE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
BONIFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
BONIFACE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
UFFORD CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
UFFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
TILLOTSON

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
OXHEY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
Free Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
Presby

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
St Teresa's

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
RC Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
Fairelms

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
Hatch End

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
183

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
195

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
39 to 45

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
47 to 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
291

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
285

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
307

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
297

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
319

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
309

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
Hatch End

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
118a

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
ROSS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
CARRINGTON SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
BIRCH PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
HUTTON WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
HUTTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
HUTTON GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
MEPHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
MEPHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
CHICHELEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
LANGTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
TILLOTSON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
COURTENAY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
WHITTLESEA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
STAFFORD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
CHICHELEY GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
Neelkunj

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
Lindholm

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
Whittlesea Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
Clinic

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
Whittlesea School

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
99 to 105

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
107 to 113

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
Cedars County

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
Oak Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
The Bannister Sports Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
Artillery Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
Cedars

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
9A

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
BELSIZE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
HUTTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
KYNASTON WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
WEST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
BELLFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
HUTTON WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
223

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
BELLFIELD AV

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
BELLFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
TEMPLARS

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
WARBURTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
WEST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
WEST DRIVE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
44a

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
34a

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
110a

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
17A

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
WHITTLESEA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
COURTENAY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
220

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
217

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
215a

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
Shaftesbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
Chantry First

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
and Middle School

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
Cedars First and Middle School

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
WATF'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
WATF'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
The Bannister Sports Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
BOXTREE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
TO HATCH END BROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
TO HARROW WEALD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
NORTHERN CYCLE ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
NORTHERN CYCLE ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
NORTHERN CYCLE ROUTE



27

2

79
.2m

18

4

Sun
da

wn

24

32

177

Eas
t E

nd
 Fa

rm

72
.8m

32

34

7

San
da

l C
ott

ag
e

53
.9m

64

15

Hall

Melo
s

56
.9m

203

10

to

675 137

26

90

1 to 4

6

Allo
tm

en
t G

ard
en

s

10

1

86

20

73

12
6

15

44

14

42

1

16

111

27

23

56

56
.7m

33

18 to 23

42

32

16

5

Allo
tm

en
t G

ard
en

s

Boro Const & Ward Bdy

El S
ub

 S
ta

37

1

2

639

99

ESS

1

FB

WAXWELL LANE

136

110

47

1

6

11

18

59
.4m

58
.8m

59

LB

ST THOMAS' DRIVE

Nug
en

ts 
Lo

dg
e

Avon Mews

27

1

ETL

CLOSE

Lit
tle

 M
ere

Drain

Holl
ies

A e

El

Saiv
illa

Drain

ETL

8

Stam
for

d
Th

e

Brid
ge

48

Arde
n C

ott
ag

e

Grig

Lit
tle

Lit
tle

co
te

BA
R

R
O

W
 P

O
IN

T 
LA

N
E

4b

Tw
o

LB

Lin
gw

oo
d

22a

Hou
se

Cott
ag

e

58
.8m

67

373

1 to 12427

Ba
nk

CORNWALL ROAD

to

St
 A

ns
el

m
's 

Ha
ll

to 29
0

15

to

59
.7m

1

House
House

Gara
ge

Gara
ge

45
2

61
.6m

Drain

The
 B

un
ga

low

2

Man
or

York House

Unit 1

1

3

Und

FF

Und

FF

FF

U
nd

Boro Const & Ward Bdy

Und

44
8

28

1

507

39
8

397

42
0

28
2

341

Rive
rsi

de

28
4

Drain

FB

Def

Allo
tm

en
t G

ard
en

s

32

181

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

68

Mou
nt 

View

TE
RR

IL
AN

DS

17

Lit
tle

 A
cre

Th
e

2

48

12

11

1

96

11

Drain

15

10

55
.2m

Hay
woo

d

PAINES

Rigg
sid

e

2a

Surg
ery

29

57

51

Elm
de

ne

141

18

1a

677

LB

4

8

PINNER ROAD

3

2

11

59

PARK

11

1

Hea
ds

ton
e M

an
or 

Rec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

33

43

42

103

G
R

EE
N

FI
EL

D
 W

AY

2

24

DRIVE

58
.2m

115

55

41

1

11

37

14

37

ELMCROFT CRESCENT

17

2

15

49

48

50

11

1

51

472

55
 to

 60

7

37

1

673

56
.1m

76

15

466

13

635

Und

CF

Ju
nio

r In
fan

t a
nd

 N
urs

ery

35
36

4
3

18

61
 to

 66

43
 to

 48

36
33

1

108

645
647

641

38

37

5

FB

98

D
ra

in

2

5

45

Fou
r O

ak
s

Pathways

17

70

Ashcroft

H
ol

yw
oo

d

6

Hou
se

Sum
merl

an
d

FB Glen
 C

ott
ag

e

8

The

25

BR
IA

N
TS

 C
LO

SE

27

Pinn
er 

La
wn T

en
nis

 C
lub

7

FB

13

Th
e

82

79

7 to 12

38

The

1

54
.3m

As
hw

oo
d

Croila

12

Stel
la 

Mari
s

15

65

W
ain

sto
ne

s

LI
TT

LE
 M

O
SS

 L
AN

E

W
yc

k

38

55

Cott
ag

e

Speldhurst

5

58

Alba
ny

2

FB

94

Newlyn

475

H
EL

ST
O

N
 C

LO
SE

355

LB

471

Trur
o H

ou
se

1 t
o 8

349

29
8

Che
stn

uts

32
2

to

28
6

1 to 6
1 to 6

26
8

2

95

61
.9m

Pinn
er 

Park

St
ra

tto
n

Hou
se

1 t
o 1

2

Grey
ho

lm
e C

ou
rt

Pho
en

ix 
Cou

rt

7

Unit 5

Bo
ro

 C
on

st
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

121
Hou

se
43

6

5

24
8 361

517

40
0

41
8

35
8

36
4

U
XB

R
ID

G
E 

R
O

AD

Te
nn

is

Cou
rt

U
XB

R
ID

G
E 

R
O

AD
 (H

AT
C

H
 E

N
D

)

64
.9m

Blac
kg

ate

SH
EL

BO
UR

NE
 C

LO
SE

Tr
ac

k

14

Orch
ard

9

6

88

1

58

Bl
ac

k G
at

es
 (P

at
h)

3

El S
ub

 S
ta11

30

58

11

22

20

23

Ove
rst

on

Un
ite

d 
Fr

ee
 C

hu
rc

h

Sun
co

urt

20

Dev
ero

n

Gard
en

s

Now
er 

Hill
Grey

sto
ke

22

18

2b

682

1 t
o 2

3

17

690

16

72c

48

Cop
pe

rfie
ld 

Cou
rt

66

26

1

FB

MANOR

11

24

8

1

13
2

30

AVENUE

15

58
.2m

Ten
nis

 C
ou

rts

14

30

54
.6m

30

15

37

11

24

17

33

GREYSTOKE AVENUE

26

16

54

30

7

AINSDALE CRESCENT

69

BI
R

KD
AL

E 
AV

EN
U

E

31

76

15

25

39

2

625

El

15

21

SO
UT

H 
W

AY

59
1

45

86

28

Surg
ery

WOODLANDS

2

GREEN

12

91

61

63

Sch
oo

ls

3

26

2

49
 to

 54

35 3

106

She
lte

r

Ch
ap

el

53
.0m

W
ax

well

46

1

1

5

Alfri
sto

n

Cav
an

 P
lac

e

1 
to

 6

2

Pine
tre

es

4

58
.5m

l8

W
EL

LI
N

G
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E

Cou
rt

Gree
na

cre

Tall
 Tree

s

4

42

12

14

Noo
k

10

14

Hall

1 to 4

Nugents Court

FB

25

Surg
ery

6

11

O
LD

 H
AL

L 
C

LO
SE

5

7 to 12

1 to 6

2

Dari
en

FB

42

6

1

FB

2a

74

Pi
nn

16

1

Darl
an

ds

LITTLE 11

26

29

Password

The

22

18

13 to 16

Marl
bo

rou
gh

 C
ott

ag
e

WOODHALL AVENUE

Oak
 H

ou
se

34

Dori
c Meri

lyn
s

11

44

Cas
a

5 to 8

ORCHARD CLOSE

Tr
ee

s

Corn
wall

 C
ou

rt

32
0

19 to 24

Dunford Court

30
0

453

39
4

371

38
4

Han
ov

er

The

431

343

ANSELM ROAD

37

469

13 to 18

6

7

32
8

433

31
8

25

to

Play
ing

 Fi
eld

s

18
0

129

64
.6m

Farm
 C

ott
ag

e

3

C
as

sa
nd

er

FW

FW

Ward Bdy

Bo
ro

 C
on

st
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

76a

Olym
pic

48

13

339

35
4

Ten
nis

Ward Bdy

Hea
ds

ton
e M

an
or 

Rec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

185

103

199

HILL

Dorm
er 

Cott
ag

e

19

15

1

70

Eas
tw

ay

56
.7m

3

693

HILL

65
.9m

1b

Elm
de

ne
 C

ott
ag

e

LB

1

201

45

74

72b

CO
PP

ER

24

119

46

3

AV
EN

U
E

25

GARDENS

Allo
tm

en
t G

ard
en

s

El S
ub

 Sta

11

H
EA

D
ST

O
N

E 
LA

N
E

ELMCROFT CRESCENT

1a

4

ANGLESMEDE CRESCENT

113

63

AN
G

LE
SM

ED
E 

W
AY

Pon
d

72

49

67

33
49

31

69

83

57

15

60

34

42

2

44

50 to 72

27

THRUSH

GEORGE V AVENUE

High
 S

ch
oo

l

Sta

14

2

24

El S
ub

 S
ta

101

60
3

61
3

24

31

19

690b

CR

39

to

40

101a

124

Park

1

6

5

15

56

10

34

W
eir

34

FB

38

D
EV

O
N

SH
IR

E 
R

O
AD

66

SE
YM

O
U

R
 C

LO
SE

2a

Th
e L

im
es

23

PAINE'S LANE

St Thomas' Court

HALL

29

Alth
am

577

11

23

1 to 6

1 
to

 6

HOLLY

Siet
e

31

Mart
inh

oe

Cuilin

Pon
d

GP

9

M
O

SS
 C

LO
SE

11

28

70

BURHILL

15

49

47

Pain
e's

Chest

Holl
ies

2

20

Pen
en

nis

56
.7m

Mia

48a

10

64

419

1

30
2

6

13

7 to 12

FB

35
6

37
0

Av
on

 M
ew

s

1 to 6

6

15

479

to

345

PO

29
6

R
iv

er
 P

in
n

5

63
.7m

1

GEORGE V AVENUE

Dr
ain

11

429

5

FF

Und

FF

FF

C
R

22

3

389

24
6

515

1

35
2

Hou
se

FB

FB

FF

FF
FF

FF

M
AR

C
O

 D
R

IV
E

1

183

Iro
n G

ate
s

D Fn

Bloomsbury Court

C
hi

sw
ic

k 
C

ou
rt

Cha
rnw

oo
d

Tud
or 

Cott
ag

e

EA
ST

G
LA

DE

1

42

Bay
 H

ou
se

8

Coa
ch

 H
ou

se

W
AK

EH
AM

S

SQ
UI

RR
EL

S

6

The
 S

tep
s

LE
IG

HT
ON 

AV
EN

UE

Pi
nn

er

66

MELR
OSE R

OAD

7

692

Bou
lev

ard
e

72d

31

62
.6

m

24 to 2

33

1b

10
2

1

11
4

31

55
.5m

2

1

15
2

2

92

40

27

55

1

TCB

9

2

33

14

11

121

Pa
th

111

54
.1m

2a

22

10

HEADSTO
NE LANE

11

5

663

4

27

39

4

28
27

ETL

Fn

Tige
rs 

Le
ap

(T
he

 G
rai

l)

CLOSE

54
.6m

125

WAXWELL

36

Tho
rns

ide

Lu
thl

ori
en

7

58

The

10

4

Silv
er 

Birc
he

s

30

W
oo

dla
nd

s

5

28

Lit
tle

co
te 

Plac
e

Cas
a

Ash
bro

ok
e

12

15

MOSS LANE

Pine
 R

idg
e

1a

15

6

Squ
irre

ls

23

Th
e

WOODHALL
 AVENUE

NUGENT'S PARK

579

OLD

Lo
dg

e

Drain

97

93

63

8

19

1

14

79

1

7

Cott
ag

e

4

W
ei

r

1

60
.0m

The

Man
es

ty

68

39

OAKHILL AVENUE

19

19

52

51

31

Cotters

93

85

Moa
t H

ou
se

Nort
hm

oo
r

17

Apri
l C

ott
ag

e

69

30

Foll
y

18a

50

Pon
d

91

Nort
hc

rof
t

70

357

1

1

36
6

451

421

to

353

423

30
6

465

359

1 to 6

30
8

31

1729
2

351

Ex
ch

an
ge

45
4

59
.1m

Iss
ue

s

16
6

The
 C

ott
ag

es

MOSS LANE

Ash
well

35a

40a

FF

FF

R
H

RH

C
R

RH

RH

76

36

43
8

12

2

6

4

2

9
11

509

521

36
2

She
lte

r

17

88

28

17

8

88

El S
ub

 S
ta

18

5

60

1

70
.1m

60
.7m

175

101

23

NOWER

55
.5m

Sev
en

 E
lm

s

29

23

LA
NE

20a

696

37

62

16
2

1

54
.3m

Pav
ilio

n

9

87

14
0

2

57
.3m

127

53
.0m

Pos
ts

101

15

10

2

HOLMDENE AVENUE

GEORGE V AVENUE

74

59

19

36

21

86

29

15

38

19

53

13

El Sub Sta

Pinn
er 

Cou
rt

22

12

PC

to

58
1

Fire
 an

d

26

14

17

81

to

Now
er 

Hill

58

Orch
ard

 H
ou

se

CF

CF

Und

71

15

25

1

34

643

ETL

LB

1

3

63

23

5

Rou
gh

 C
los

e

Oak
rid

ge

Fox
en

d

Willo
w M

ea
d

Bee
ch

woo
d

W
O

O
D

R
ID

IN
G

S 
AV

EN
U

E

The
 End

 H
ou

se

57

12

W
hit

e L
od

ge

46

24

PA
R

K 
VI

EW

56
Holl

y

15

b

DRIVE

c

2

84

13

GEORGE V AVENUE

Pav
ilio

n

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Pond Bay

GP

Nutw
oo

d

BARROW POINT AVENUE

Cott
ag

e

51
.5m

1

43

El S
ub

 S
ta

PAINE'S LANE

24

13

81

27

56

11a

6

End

El

Th
e

Coll
ind

en
e

Moll
an

d

Kinr
os

s

50

38
8to HATCH E

ND

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

39
8

455

523

Cou
rt

5

409

8

467

25 to 30

461

D
ra

in

9

89

El S
ub

 Sta

NUGENT'S

1

CR

CP

Tk H

U
nd

SD

Tk H

18

35

50 52
54

10

363

519 511
513

365

3

Sink
s

Cou
rt

ESS

Def

TC
B

377

32

17

24

Cott
ag

e
El S

ub
 Sta

94

9

8

BE
EC

HE
NG

RO
VE

7

8

24

68

CLOSE

78

72

W
oo

dp
ec

ke
rs

13

20

CAPEL GARDENS

Lo
dg

e
57

.4m

88

1

4

20

690a

11

WAY

9

120

54
.6m

18

PARKFIELD

27

15

53
.9m

G
R

EY
ST

O
KE

8

7

61

46

43

58

26

30

37

89

15

LB

11

25

39

23

96

Drain

2

30

PC

Cem
ete

ry

40

CL
OSE

9

BETJE
MAN

20

Sub

C
H

69

27

2

16

13

20
19

72

Elm
 P

oin
t

Grac
e H

ou
se

ESS

ESS

Allo
tm

en
t G

ard
en

s

29 to 56

7

Farm
 H

ou
se

D
ev

on
sh

ire
 C

ou
rt

ETL

Villa

66

17

14

25

The
 C

rof
t

1 
to

 9

4

Nay
lan

d

2

78

577a

Nort
h E

nd
 H

ou
se

591

5

47
4

Flo
res

ta

37

62
.5m

High
tre

es

30

LB

G
RO

VE

Chu
rch

ill 
Cou

rt

11

27

15

ST THOMAS' DRIVE

607

26

Ten
nis

 C
ou

rts

R
iv

er

2b

Drain

29

GROVE

Kno
ck

cre
e

Sou
thw

oo
d

Red
roo

f

Knig
hto

ns

VALE

Brec
on

 C
ott

ag
e

Tree
s C

ott
ag

e

14

MOSS LANE

Orch
ard

79
.5

42

High
vie

w

Ri
ve

r P
inn

W
eir

83

Pos
ts

39

LB

Mara
la

to

2

52
.1m

LA
W

N

48b

31
0

11

Falmouth

4

381

to

481 to 493

2

407

Ban
k

31
6

425

413

347

3

1

TILBURY CLOSE

Unit 4

SD

FF

RH Ward Bdy

45
0

27

11

17
36

15

12

21

39
239
0

87a

Bell
ev

ue

TCB

28

ETL

10

THE
The

 Five
s C

ou
rt

2

Now
er 

Hill

16

5

10

CL
OS

E

61
.0m

1

4

The
 O

ld

MOSS LANE

Eas
t E

nd
 H

ou
se

46

Ade
lai

de

180

AMBERLE
Y

4

Mari
ba

r

57
.3m

103

7

EA
ST

 E
ND

 W
AY

1

Cem
ete

ry

Cott
ag

e

1

PAINE'S LANE

22

17

M
AY

FI
EL

D 
DR

IV
E

Con
ist

on

Elm
ba

nk

679

72f

Fiol
a

15

Tu
do

rs

FIE
LD

CHURCH

72e

47

2

130

108

21

MELBOURNE

68

12
8

100

14

88

34

H
O

LM
D

EN
E 

AV
EN

U
E

56
.1m

2

2

65

GP

119

36

HILLVIEW GARDENS

62

67

79

101

28

25

1

57
.3m

69

34

1

54

653

55
.2m

5 to 8

Ambu
lan

ce
 S

tat
ion

Cha
pe

l

ESS

131

25

34

4

64

30

PINNER ROAD

Bou
lev

ard
e G

ard
en

s

66
0

Pum
p H

ou
se

Pinn
er 

Park

25

14

33
34

17

67

4

39

6371 to 28

Hall

8

127

(p
riv

at
e)

40

Orch
ard

 E
nd

PARK

The
 R

idg
e

Lo
dg

e

Vitra
gi

3

Rey
no

lds

4

Ben
ed

ict

34

35

Ding
wall

3

Tan
gle

woo
d

Ri
ve

r P
in

n

Bay
for

d

2

WELLINGTON ROAD

Sub
 S

ta

LONSDALE

56
.4m

Lo
dg

e

Pinb
urn

1

Karm
an

 V
illa

2a

1

21

1 to 6

1 to 6

1 to 6
d

FB

2

7a

82

95

Ten
nis

 C
ou

rts

81

99

D
ra

in

2

38

4a

42

87

6

Tr
es

co

The

The

Hou
se

W
hit

e

Sub
 S

ta

BARROW
DENE C

LO
SE

Rigi

Fa
ir L

aw
ns

R
iv

er
 P

in
n

Broc
ton

18

3

415

1 to 6

459

2

to

Te
le

ph
on

e

16

36

477

32
6

26

387

369

417

to

33
0

to

61
.9m

Pon
d

Pinn
er 

Park
 Farm

49

C
ou

rt

89

The
 W

oo
dy

1 t
o 4Pickwick Walk

Pl
ac

e

CS

CW

CR

Def

21

1

20

19

1

2

367

Club

She
lte

r

19

FB

She
lte

rs

LB

375

U
XB

R
ID

G
E 

R
O

AD
 (P

IN
N

ER
)

8

Hea
ds

ton
e M

an
or 

Rec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

17

N
or

th
er

n 
C

yc
le

 R
ou

te
to

 H
at

ch
 E

nd
 S

ta
tio

n

No
rth

er
n 

Cy
cle

 R
ou

te

to
 P

in
ne

r S
ta

tio
n

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE
PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY
OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND
MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS. LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

GEORGE V AVENUE CYCLE ROUTE - TFL STREETSPACE PROGRAMME OVERVIEW COUNCIL
LONDON

KEY
Proposed 2 metre wide mandatory cycle
lane with hatched buffer

Proposed reduction in speed limit from
40 MPH to 30 MPH

Existing Nothern cycle route

Speed Camera modified to enforce new
30mph vehicle speeds

BAKERLOO ROUTE

CROSS HARROW ROUTE

HEART OF HARROW ROUTE

JUBILEE ROUTE

METROPOLITAN ROUTE

NORTHERN ROUTE

STANMORE TO THAMES
ROUTE

Harrow Cycling Connectivity Map

HATCH
END

PINNER
GREEN

HEADSTONE

NORTH
HARROW

WEST
HARROW

HARROW
T.C.

W'STONE

KENTON
KINGSBURY

QUEENSBURY

CANONS
PARK

BELMONT

HARROW
WEALD

STANMORE

SOUTH
HARROW

PINNER

Cycle
lane

Traffic lane

Traffic lane

2.00m

Cycle
lane

0.8m

3.4m

Hatched
buffer area

Traffic lane
3.4m

2.00m

Cycle
lane

Hatched
buffer area

2.00m

0.8m

3.4m

Hatched
buffer area

0.8m

Hatched
buffer area

Traffic lane

3.4m

Cycle
lane

2.00m

0.8m

Typical plan and elevation view of proposals

Above dimensions are indicative, exact dimensions may vary on site

68



7

6

7

0

1

1

TCBs

W

a

t

e

r

3

3

Works

4

2

C
R

3

9

5

4

W

o
r
k
s

W

a

t

e

r

2
a

2
0

8

0

4

3

1

1

9

2
4

5

4

W

o
r
k
s

3

9

1

a

W

a

t

e

r

5

8

Court

Lodge

4

1

1
3

5

3

3

9

3

3

1

6

Works

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

5

0

4

2

1

3

1

1

a

2

Forest

W
a
r
d
 
B

d
y

3
5

8

4

9

8

1

53.0m

2
3

N
IB

T
H

W

A
IT

E
 R

O

A
D

3

3

9

29

2

2

4

5

1

0

9

4

3

2
4

N
IB

T
H

W

A
IT

E
 R

O

A
D

F

R

O

G

N

A

L

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

53.6m

3

1

 
t
o

 
3

7

2

3

Court

6

2

7

M

I

L

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

1

3

5

2

Granby

Forest

3
5

3
7

7

6

8

4

1
4

4
7

2

TCBs

1

1

3

9

P

O

4

5

2
a

1
4

W

a

t

e

r

1

1

2

1

F

R

O

G

N

A

L

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

5

0

1

1

a

S

T

A

T

I

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

S
h
e
l
t
e
r

1 to
 14

6

2

7

8

1

2
3

1
4

2

1

2

53.0m

1

a

5

W

a

t

e

r

5

8

5

2

C
R

3
7

4

3

4

1

3

9

1
3

7

8

2

1
4

5

3

3

9

Works

ROSSLYN

4

0

2

8

2

1

 
-
 
3

1

W
a
r
d
 
B

d
y

Harrow

9

8

9

5

53.0m

R

O

S

S

L

Y

N

 
C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

1

1

5

B

L
A

W

I
T

H

 
R

O

A

D

3

3

ROSSLYN

4

0

S

T

A

T

I

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

2

S
h
e
l
t
e
r

1 to
 14

Mosque

1

0

9

9

5

4
7

1

1

5

1
1

1

6

P

O

3

1

 
t
o

 
3

7

2

3

2
0

t
o

Mosque

8

0

1

1

9

7

0

1

0

7

7

M

I

L

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

Works

29

Lodge

t
o

Central

1

0

7

R

O

S

S

L

Y

N

 
C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

B

L
A

W

I
T

H

 
R

O

A

D

2

53.0m

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

2
a

2

7

5

Central

4

3

2
a

W

a

t

e

r

1

1

1
1

9

2

8

2

7

Granby

2

1

 
-
 
3

1

Harrow

TEMPORARY RAMP FOR

WHEEL CHAIR USERS

SUSPEND PARKING BAYS(2NOS)

USING LEGO BLOCK BARRIER

TEMPORARY COVERING OF

PARKING PERMIT SIGN

SUSPEND PARKING BAYS(3NOS)

USING LEGO BLOCK BARRIER

TEMPORARY COVERING

OF PARKING PERMIT SIGN

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK09/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

09/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

SPACE AT TOWN CENTRE

STATION ROAD, HARROW

SHOPPING PARADE AND MOSQUE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/STATION ROAD

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\TPR0240_PS\DWG\PS_Proposed Layout.dwg

JA

B

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

PARKING BAY TO BE SUSPENDED

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

FOR INFORMATIONB VK10/06/20

69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
N



2

5

2

9

 

t

o

 

3

3

1

3

1

7

1

F

B

1

9

PH

1

3

1

7

5

H

a

r

r

o

w

 

a

n

d

 

W

e

a

l

d

s

t

o

n

e

 

S

t

a

t

i

o

n

2

1

2

7

 

t

o

 

3

3

1

1

5

L

B

1

5

9

1

1

2

5

5

1

2

5

1

3

1

5

2

3

2

3

2

9

 

t

o

 

3

3

1

9

L

B

T

H

E

 

B

R

I

D

G

E

2

1

1

9

2

5

2

3

2

7

 

t

o

 

3

3

9

2

7

1

F

B

TCBs
1

9

PH

Shelters

1

5

1

1

2

3

1

52.1m

2

7

1

3

1

1

1

52.1m

1

1

H

a

r

r

o

w

 

a

n

d

 

W

e

a

l

d

s

t

o

n

e

 

S

t

a

t

i

o

n

T

H

E

 

B

R

I

D

G

E

TCBs

Shelters

T
A

X
I
S

O
N

L
Y

TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF

NEARSIDE TRAFFIC LANE

USING LEGO BLOCK BARRIER

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK09/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

09/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

SPACE AT TOWN CENTRE

HARROW AND WEALD STATION

 TRAFFIC LANE CLOSURE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/HARROW & WEALD STATION

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\PS-01 Station Road_os mosque\PS_ALL new.dwg

JA

A

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

MAGENTA REPRESENTS REMOVAL

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
M A S O N S  A V E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
T H E  B R I D G E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
11-13 MASONS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
15 MASONS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
9 THE BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
5 THE BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
WORLD NEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
4A MASONS AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
1-3 MASONS AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
HARROW  & WEALDSTONE STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
ELIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
ELIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
ELIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
ELIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
ELIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
ELIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
N



7

M

O

O

R

H

O

U

S

E

 
R

O

A

D

2
1
3

2

3

6

2
6
2

7

3
2
0
 
t
o
 
3
3
2

3

2

3

2

3

8

6

2

5

1

2

3

4

3

6

1

9

2
4
0

D

e

f

F

F

F

F

2

6

0

3

9

7

 
t
o

 
4

0

7

2
1
1

1

5

3

2
0
7

2

8

3

0

8

2

1

4

2

6

1

7

5

4

1

1

2

2

6

3

4

3

0

4

2

3

8

1

2

9

1

3

4

1

E

l
i
z

a

b

e

t
h

 
H

o

u

s

e

2

2

6

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

244

1
8
9

1

2

9

2

Bank

9

7

0

9

9

TCBs

t

o

2

0

7

5

2
9

4

0

9

3

3

2

7

1

0

2

2

3

2

7

4

2

1

9

2

1

0

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

1

1

9

1

4

1

1

2

9

W

o

o

d

m

a

n

s

 

C

o

u

r

t

C
H

I
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

 
C

O
U

R
T

Bank

7

0

2
1
7

7

H

O

N

E

Y

P

O

T

 

L

A

N

E

246

C

R

1

6

1
0

2

9

2
4
0

D

e
f

F

F

Surgery

5

3

4

4

9

4

3

7

1

3

3

9

7

 
t
o

 
4

0

7

2

1

3

4

2

2
1
1

1

4

1

2

2

5

48.4m

2

5

0

2
0
3

3

4

5

3

0

6

2

3

2

6

9

3

1

9

1

5

2
0

1

2

2

3
9
5

1

8

7

2

8

3

2

5

2

1

3

Surgery

TCBs

3

8

5

2
1
5

4

5

U

n

d

3

8

9

-

1

0

3

3

3

3

7

3
9
3

1

8

7

2

8

4

2

1

2

6

1

 
t
o

 
1

2

4

2

9

2

1

0

1

1

2

1

1

1
7
9

1

3

2

3

2
0
7

2
1
5

1

9

8

2
7
2

1

1

PO
2

2

8

1

7

1

2

4

1

1

3
9
3

Shelter

F

F

2

1

6

3

8

7

244

1
8
9

9

2
0
3

1

5

4

3

3
2
0
 
t
o
 
3
3
2

8

3

8

1

W

a

r
d

2

1

4

3

9

1

3

t

o

7

1

5

3

3

9

3

6

2

2

F

F

4

0

4

1

 
t
o

 
1

2

S

h

e

l
t

e

r

s

1
9
9

1

2
1
7

1

2

0

3

8

3

8

5

8

0

1

5

6

1
0

B

d

y

C

R

3

1

2

1

0

4

4

2

5

3

3

9

3

3

7

3

0

t

o

2

2

3

2

1

2

2

6

1

M

O

O

R

H

O

U

S

E

 
R

O

A

D

2

3

1

1

1

2

0

2
6
2

2

3

1

9

8

TCBs

1

5

6

3

2

3

2

3

8

1

2

2

8

2

6

1

4

1

1

2
9

1

1

0

D

e

f

F

F

F

F

3

8

4

5

1

4

9

1

4

8

9

2

1

6

2

2
0
1

2

1

0

Surgery

2

2

3

W

o

o

d

m

a

n

s

 

C

o

u

r

t

C
H

I
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

 
C

O
U

R
T

1

5

3

2
5
2

3

8

5

2

8

H

O

N

E

Y

P

O

T

 

L

A

N

E

2

3

8

1

W

a

r
d

4

2

2

1

1

2

4

2

3

ESS

2
0
1

7

4

2

2

2

5

48.4m

1

3

2
7
2

2

0

6

4

0

9

3

2

7

2
3
8

1

5

7

4

3

9

4

1

6

4

3

1

4

6

5

9

3

8

7

1

1

9

TCBs

3

0

8

U

n

d

3

9

1

4

2
4
2

3

2

1

1

6

1
0

4

1

1

2

6

S
h
e
lte

r

D

e
f

2

4

1
9
9

1

0

7

1
7
9

2

3

6

2

5

0

9

9

8

0

1
0

1

1

3

0

6

PO

2

3

2
4
2

9

4

2

2

1

3
9
5

1

2

3

2

5

t

o

1

9

S
h
e
lte

r

1

4

6

4

1

1

2

0

5

8

1

2

El Sub Sta

4

6

7

2

6

0

2
1
9

4

2

2

3

1

1

0

7

1

5

4

246

1

4

3

8

9

-

1

4

2

6

2

9

6

2
3
8

1

3

F

F

1

5

7

2
1
9

2

1

0

1

1

2
1
3

2

2

2
5
2

3

8

3

5

Q

u

e

e

n

s

b

u

r

y

 

C

i

r

c

l

e

 

P

a

r

a

d

e

B

d

y

3

2

1

3

1

9

2
0

2

4

2

5

4

4

2

5

1

2

2

7

2

6

1

3

Shelter

ESS

H

O

L

L

Y

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

1

4

2

5

4

6

5

B

a

l
m

o

r

a

l
 

H

o

u

s

e

2
0
9

L

A

N

G

L

A

N

D

 
C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

L

A

N

G

L

A

N

D

 
C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

P

O

R

T

L

A

N

D

S
T

R
E

A
T

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

B

DISABLED

WIDENED FOOTWAY

BY 2m USING LEGO

BLOCK BARRIER

INSTALL DISABLED BAY

MARKINGS TO TSRGD 1028.4

D

IS

A

B

L

E

D

WIDENED FOOTWAY

BY 2m USING LEGO

BLOCK BARRIER

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK19/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

19/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

TOWN CENTRE PEDESTRIAN SPACE

STREATFIELD ROAD (HONEYPOT LANE )

SERVICE ROADS - SHOPPING PARADE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/STREATFIELD ROAD PS-07

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\TPR0240_PS\DWG\PS-07_Streatfield Road.dwg

JA

A

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING AREA

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
N



B

R

O

M

E

F

I

E

L

D

M

A

Y

C

H

U

R

C

H

 
C

L

O

S

E

B

R

A

M

B

L

E

 

C

L

O

S

E

B

R

I

C

K

 

L

A

N

E

9

0

9

1

1

3

1

8

2

P

O

Clinic and

3
3
4

8

9

3

Canons Hall

Hertford

Court

1

 

t

o

 

5

2

1

3

4

Willow

Court

1

 

t

o

 

6

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

B
U

S

S
T

O
P

B
U

S

S
T

O
P

B

U

S

S

T

O

P

TURN
LEFT

LOOK RIGHT

LOOK RIGHT

LOOK LEFT

LOOK LEFT

SUSPEND PARKING BAYS(50m)

USING LEGO BLOCK BARRIER

SUSPEND PARKING BAYS(50m)

USING LEGO BLOCK BARRIER

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK19/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

19/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

TOWN CENTRE PEDESTRIAN SPACE

HONEYPOT LANE SERVICE ROAD

NEAR WEMBOROUGH ROAD SHOPPING PARADE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/HONEYPOT LANE SERVICE ROAD

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\TPR0240_PS\DWG\PS-08.dwg

JA

A

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

PARKING BAY TO BE SUSPENDED

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
MT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
867

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
843

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
881

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
857

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
883

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
885

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
859

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
887

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
861

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
HONEYPOT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
GREEN MAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
891

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
865

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
897

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
151mFSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
ASA1L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
ASA1T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
ASA2L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
ASA2T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
895

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
899

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
901

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
HONEYPOT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
DLINK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
DLINK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
DLINK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
N



D

O

R

C

H

E

S

T

E

R

 

C

L

O

S

E

S

O

M

E

R

V

E

L

L

 
R

O

A

D

S

T

R

O

U

D

 

G

A

T

E

N

O

R

T

H

O

L

T

 

R

O

A

D

A

L

E

X

A

N

D

R

A

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

Shelter

B

a

n

k

1

6

5

0

4

1

6

4

9

3

4

6

5

4

5

5

4

5

3

7

 

 

8

2

1

S

o

m

e

r

v

e

l
l
 
C

o

u

r

t

4

6

9

 

t

o

 

4

9

1

Garage

1

2

1

4

PO

4

9

6

4

2

1

2

1

0

1

2

5

0

5

WIDENED FOOTWAY BY 2m USING

LEGO BLOCK BARRIER

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK19/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

19/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

TOWN CENTRE PEDESTRIAN SPACE

NORTHOLT ROAD SERVICE ROAD

 (NEAR PETTS HILL) SHOPPING PARADE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/PS-09

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\TPR0240_PS\DWG\PS-09.dwg

JA

B

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING AREA

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
N



Field House

7

1

8

2

4

B

o

r

o

 
C

o

n

s

t
 
&

 
L

B

 
B

d

y

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

3

6

4

9

House

7

3

4

1

6

7

2

0

6

1

5

6

9

8

6

5

3

6

5

9

6

7

1

6

5

1

6

6

5

6

7

5

7

0

8

7

1

4

K

E

N

T

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

43.8m

2

Hotel

1

8

6

8

5

6

5

5

6

6

9

6

4

5

1

 

t

o

 

1

2

7

1

8

7

2

4

2

H

o

u

s

e

7

0

0

6

5

7

6

6

7

4

6

Shelter

Shelter

7

0

6

1

4

7

0

4

1

 

t

o

 

6

7

2

2

6

2

5

7

0

0

6

7

3

6

3

9

6

4

1

5

0

7

2

2

Hotel

6

1

7

6

2

1

6

7

7

6

6

1

6

8

3

5

0

1

 

t

o

 

1

2

El Sub Sta

2

7

3

4

1

6

7

3

6

6

1

9

6

8

1

6

7

1

6

6

5

AR Centre

ESS

El Sub Sta

1

4

7

0

4

7
1
2

2

M

E

L

B

U

R

Y

 
R

O

A

D

1

 

t

o

 

6

O

l
i
v

e

r

43.8m

1

8

1

8

Trees

6

3

1

6

3

5

6

2

9

6

7

3

6

4

3

AR Centre

7

1

0

7
1
2

43.2m

1

1

8

H

o

u

s

e

Trees

6

2

1

6

3

1

6

3

5

6

6

1

6

5

7

4

6

Shelter

7

1

6

6

2

5

6

5

5

6

6

9

6

4

9

6

4

5

6

3

9

Kenton Grove

7

1

6

M

E

L

B

U

R

Y

 
R

O

A

D

7

3

2

6

1

5

6

2

9

6

6

7

6

6

3

6

5

1

6

7

9

6

4

7

6

4

3

K

E

N

T

O

N

 
R

O

A

D

6

3

7

6

6

3

6

7

9

6

4

1

House

H

O

N

E

Y

P

O

T

 

L

A

N

E

6

2

3

6

9

8

6

5

9

6

7

5

S

h

e

l
t

e

r

7

0

6

1

2

4

H

O

N

E

Y

P

O

T

 

L

A

N

E

6

2

3

6

3

3

6

8

1

6

8

5

S

h

e

l
t

e

r

ESS

O

l
i
v

e

r

7

2

4

7

2

0

D

e

f

6

3

7

6

7

7

6

5

3

6

8

3

4

2

Shelter

Kenton Grove

7

0

8

7

1

4

Field House

7

1

0

7

3

2

7

3

6

B

o

r

o

 
C

o

n

s

t
 
&

 
L

B

 
B

d

y

D

e

f

6

1

9

6

2

7

6

4

7

4

2

WIDENED FOOTWAY BY 2m USING

LEGO BLOCK BARRIER

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK19/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

19/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

TOWN CENTRE PEDESTRIAN SPACE

KENTON ROAD -SERVICE ROAD

NEAR KINGSBURY CIRCLE SHOPPING PARADE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/KENTON ROAD PS-10

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\TPR0240_PS\DWG\PS10_Kenton Road.DWG

JA

A

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING AREA

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
N



2

0

Garage

Car

4

0

2

2

Community

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

4

1

2

K

E

N

T

O

N

 

L

A

N

E

P

a

r
a

d

e

BELMONT

t

o

5

7

4

8

1

PH

3

3

8

0

5

1

Shelter

Cycle Way

Shelter

Belmont

5

5

TCB

27

3

9

7

3

8

6

Warwick

P

C

s

Park

t

o

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

C

y

c

l
e

 
W

a

y

1

6

2

2

4

0

5

3

5

6

 

t

o

 

3

7

8

t

o

58.8m

1

2

4

3

9

5

1

Cycle Way

5

6

3

8

8

3

9

6

3

5

4

57.9m

Association

9

56.4m

3

9

4

4

1

0

B

E

L

M

O

N

T

 

C

I

R

C

L

E

SUSPEND PARKING BAY USING

LEGO BLOCK BARRIER

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK19/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

19/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

TOWN CENTRE PEDESTRIAN SPACE

KENTON LANE -SERVICE ROAD

NEAR BELMONT CIRCLE SHOPPING PARADE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/KENTON LANE PS-11

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\TPR0240_PS\DWG\PS10_Kenton Road.DWG

JA

A

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

SUSPEND PARKING BAYS

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
N



2
3
8

F

W

F

F

H

I

G

H

 

R

O

A

D

D

e

f

2

6

8

2

6

6

TCB

2

5

8

2

4

1

F

F

2

5

2

2

7

0

D

e

f

1

2

4

4

W

a

r
d

 
B

d

y

2

7

2

F

F

3

2

B
U

S

S
T

O
P

S

L

O

W

L

A

N

E

B

U

S

TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF

BUS STOP LAY BY USING

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER

TEMPORARY RAMP FOR

WHEEL CHAIR USERS

2

4

2

REMOVE LOADING AND

WAITING RESTRICTION

SIGN PLATES ON EXISTING

LAMP COLUMN 11

REMOVE TREE AND REINSTATE

TREEPIT WITH TARMAC

TEMPORARY BUS STOP

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK09/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

09/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

SPACE AT TOWN CENTRE

HIGH ROAD -WL WEALD LANE

 BUS STOP CLOSURE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/HIGH ROAD

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\TPR0240_PS\DWG\PS_Proposed Layout.dwg

JA

B

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

FOR INFORMATIONB VK11/06/20

76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
71.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
274

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
275

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
272

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
273

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
Bus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
487

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
Stop

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
N



C

I
R

C

L

E

F

E

R

R

I

N

G

 

C

L

O

S

E

P

O

R

L

O

C

K

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

1

1

5

1

7

1

9

1
8
 
t
o
 
2
1

1

1

1

4

1

6

1

2

1

5

1

7

1

7

b

1

7

c

S

P

L

C

TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF

BUS STOP LAY BY USING

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER

TEMPORARY

PROPOSED HARD

STANDING

3m POST FOR TEMPORARY

BUS STOP

COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE

TRAFFIC, HIGHWAYS & ASSET MANAGEMENT

LONDON

COUNCIL

P.O. Box 39, Civic Centre,

Harrow, Middlesex. HA1 2XA

Tel: 020 8863 5611

Fax: 020 8424 1040

FOR INFORMATIONA VK09/06/20

Details of Revision InitialRevision Date

Drawn

Date

VK

Scale

NTS

09/06/2020

Checked

Acad file Location

Drawing No. Revision

Drawing Title

Project Title

LONDON STREETSPACE  PROGRAMME

SPACE AT TOWN CENTRE

PORLOCK AVENUE

 BUS STOP CLOSURE

TEMPORARY FOOTWAY WIDENING

T/DWG/PORLOCK ROAD

Issued for: 

INFORMATION

C:\Harrow Traffic Scheme 2020\Transition programme\TPR0240_PS\DWG\PS_Proposed Layout.dwg

JA

B

LEGO BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE

GENERAL KEY

GREY REPRESENTS EXISTING

BLACK REPRESENTS PROPOSED

TEMPORARY WATER FILLED LEGO

BLOCKS BARRIER WITH FENCE TOP

FOR INFORMATIONB VK11/06/20

77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
no

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
entry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
29077

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
This map is reproduced from or based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 1000119206.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
N



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Working together on COVID-19 recovery: 
The Streetspace for London Plan
May 2020

APPENDIX C

79



Contents

1. Background

2. The Streetspace for London plan

3. Interventions

4. Working together

5. Case-making appendices80

Presenter
Presentation Notes




Background

81



Background
As lockdown lifts, demand for travel will increase. This is likely to be phased and 
incremental and will pose a series of challenges:
• TfL will need to run public transport at much lower levels of capacity than pre-

coronavirus in order to provide space for social distancing
• Travel by car is likely to become more attractive however a car-based recovery poses 

significant risks to:
o road safety
o public health and health inequalities
o economic recovery 
o the environment
o the Mayor’s Transport Strategy

We therefore need to urgently reconsider use of street space to provide safe and 
appealing spaces to walk and cycle as an alternative to car use in the context of reduced 
capacity on the public transport network. Suppressing motorised traffic while allowing 
essential journeys to take place is key to ensuring we manage our road and public transport 
networks to maximise our ability to keep people moving safely.

82

Presenter_1
Presentation Notes




The Streetspace
for London plan

83



The Streetspace for London Plan

The Streetspace for London plan will transform London’s streets by:

Providing additional 
space for people 

walking and cycling 
in town centres and 

at
transport hubs, 

including widening of 
footways on local 

high streets to 
enable people

to queue safely

Accelerating delivery 
of low traffic 

neighbourhoods and 
school streets by 

working
with boroughs to 
reduce through 

traffic on residential 
streets

Providing temporary 
cycle routes to 

extend the strategic 
cycle network, with
London’s main roads 

repurposed for 
temporary cycle lanes 
and wider footways

84

Presenter_2
Presentation Notes




Benefits of the Streetspace plan

Realising London’s recovery ambitions will have a 
range of benefits for London and Londoners:
• Restored confidence in public transport, by 

providing sufficient space for social 
distancing, prioritising use for the groups 
who need to travel (e.g. key workers who 
cannot work from home) and those who are 
unable to travel by alternative modes (e.g. 
those with reduced mobility)

• Economic regeneration of local high streets and town centres, by supporting 
Londoners to shop locally 

• Improved health and wellbeing, by enabling all Londoners to achieve the 20 minutes of 
walking or cycling each day recommended for good health and wellbeing (which will 
reduce risks of diabetes and heart disease, both of which are risk factors for severe 
COVID-19 disease) as well as by reducing exposure to air pollution 

85

Presenter_3
Presentation Notes




The ambition of the Streetspace plan
The Streetspace for London plan aims to make it 
easy and safe for Londoners to choose to walk 
or cycle as an alternative to public transport 
use. It has been developed in order to help 
respond to the immediate imperatives around:

• Support the health and wellbeing of Londoners, by providing space for 
active travel, good air quality and safe roads, to reduce susceptibility to 
severe COVID-19 and relieve pressure on the NHS from other 
conditions and injuries

• Improving the public transport offer into the longer term, as capacity 
can be increased and people become ready to use our network again.

• Enable London’s economic regeneration by facilitating more walking 
and cycling to local high streets and town centres; supporting local 
businesses by maintaining freight access and encouraging clean ‘last-
mile’ freight solutions

• Enabling social distancing on street;
• Encouraging Londoners to avoid unnecessary 

use of public transport
• Focusing on strategic movement to prioritise 

walking and cycling

However, the strategy also has benefits into the medium term recovery phase and into the longer 
term benefits for London, including:

86

Presenter_4
Presentation Notes




The scale of the Streetspace Plan

• In order to achieve the objectives set out in the 
Streetspace for London plan, London will need to be 
ambitious and make change on a significant scale.

• It is estimated there will need to be around an 80% 
reduction in public transport capacity in order to support 
social distancing.

• If all 80% of public transport journeys were switched to 
active modes instead, some boroughs would need to 
accommodate almost double the pre-coronavirus levels 
of walking and cycling by their residents (see scale of 
opportunity map).

• Conversely, if all car-owning households switched their 
usual public transport journeys to car, some boroughs 
would see a near doubling in the number of private 
transport journeys, causing massive congestion issues 
(see scale of challenge map). 

87

Presenter_5
Presentation Notes




Scale of opportunity: active travel
It is estimated there will be around an 80% reduction in public transport capacity.

88

Presenter_6
Presentation Notes




Scale of challenge: car trips

89

Presenter_7
Presentation Notes




Interventions90



Temporary strategic cycle network
Case for intervention: Extensive evidence from TfL and boroughs has shown that a network of safe, 
attractive cycle routes is required to make cycling a viable alternative form of transport for most 
Londoners. 

Key principles are that the network should:

• Provide a coherent, useable and comprehensive network for Londoners to use during the recovery 
period

• Serve the corridors of highest demand during the recovery period, including routes that parallel 
crowded Underground and bus corridors

• Be attractive and safe for everyone to use
• Be planned jointly with other Streetspace for London plan measures
• Support the requirements of buses and freight during the recovery period, reflecting the important 

role these modes will play in London’s social and economic recovery

91

Presenter_8
Presentation Notes




Interchanges, stations and town centres
Case for intervention: In order to enable Londoners to make sustainable local journeys and reduce 
their need to use public transport and the private car we need to make London’s town centres and high 
streets safe and attractive places to visit and shop. For the remaining public transport journeys these 
will all start or finish on foot or by cycle, which means the areas around stations and/or bus stops are 
very busy pedestrian environments.

Key principles are that interventions should:

• Provide additional space for people to access 
goods, services and public transport while 
socially distancing 

• Encourage people to walk or cycle to town 
centres and stations 

• Supporting businesses in the town centres by 
maintaining local delivery and servicing. 

• Support the requirements of buses and freight 
during the recovery period, reflecting the 
important role these modes will play in 
London’s social and economic recovery.

92

Presenter_9
Presentation Notes




Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
Case for intervention: During London’s lockdown period residents have been able to experience the 
benefits of lower traffic volumes on residential streets, using them for daily exercise by active travel 
means. Safe outdoor space to effectively social distance will be essential to support health and 
wellbeing of Londoners. Low Traffic Neighbourhoods will form a key part of this.

Key principles are that interventions should ensure:

• Reduced road danger and preventing rat-running
• Links to the temporary and permanent cycle networks
• Offer outdoor space in locations of limited public and 

private green space 
• Focus on health and inequality outcomes
• Spaces and designs that reduce crime and anti-social 

behaviour, that are attractive and safe for everyone to 
use

• Severance reduction measures
• Accurate wayfinding
• Improved access to cycling

93

Presenter_10
Presentation Notes




School Streets
Case for intervention: As lockdown is eased, social distancing will remain, so we urgently need to 
prevent crowding outside school gates. It is likely that when schools reopen, start/finish times will be 
staggered and/or year groups will return incrementally. This will reduce the volume of students and 
parents outside the school gates at any one time. However, even with these strategies additional space 
will be needed to facilitate social distancing and to prevent the need for vulnerable road users being 
forced onto the carriageway with traffic. 

Key principles are:

• School Streets (timed road closures at the start and end of the school day) should be considered 
outside of all primary schools in London. Where schools are located on main roads or public 
transport corridors, and it is not possible for School Streets measures to be introduced then 
alternative, pavement widening may be required.

• Effective enforcement is necessary 
• Access should be maintained for residents living within the zone as well as blue badge holders
• School Streets schemes should be included as part of all proposals for Low Traffic Neighbourhoods

94

Presenter_11
Presentation Notes




Working 
together

95



Urgency of the challenge
While traffic levels have been low during lockdown, they have already started to rise. The opportunity
to trial temporary measures and achieve the levels of active travel that will be necessary to keep 
London moving when public transport capacity is reduced will become more difficult as congestion 
rises.

This is a considerable challenge and we want to work with boroughs and other stakeholders to find 
the solutions that work for their local areas as well as for London as a whole. We will continue to work 
with you to identify options for improvements, overcome barriers and ultimately deliver for our 
communities. Temporary measures can enable interventions to be reconfigured or even removed if 
necessary.

Given the urgency of the crisis, TfL are 
looking to work with Boroughs on 
implementing measures as quickly as 
possible, which, in some instances, will 
mean the use of cheap or readily available 
materials. 

All projects that form part of this 
programme must demonstrate an urgent 
and swift response to the crisis and should 
be implemented as soon as possible. 

96

Presenter_12
Presentation Notes




Funding
As part of our negotiations with Government TfL are seeking emergency funding 
for investment in projects on borough roads that support social distancing. We 
now have a settlement from the DfT for the next four months and will be able to 
confirm shortly the budget for borough expenditure on the Streetspace for 
London plan (including sunk costs). This funding would be used for the following:

• Delivery of strategic cycle routes using temporary materials
• Reallocation of road space where crowding is an issue, such as town centres, 

interchanges and key hubs
• Low traffic neighbourhoods on borough roads to give space and security for 

local walking and cycling, and an enhanced ability to maintain social distancing. 
This also reflects views about enhanced local quality of life from reduced 
motor traffic during the lock down.

Full details on how to apply for funding and the considerations that will be taken 
into allocation of funding can be found in the Streetspace for London plan 
Borough Guidance

97

Presenter_13
Presentation Notes




Value of joint working
We need to work with local authorities and other stakeholders to:

• Ensure ambitions for the TLRN are supported by and coordinated with 
ambitions for local authority roads. TfL will support local authorities in 
delivering infrastructure changes needed on borough networks.

• Harness local knowledge and intelligence to direct interventions to where they 
are most needed. TfL will work with boroughs to support knowledge sharing 
and decision-making.

• Ensure that local residents and community stakeholders are informed, bought 
into the recovery approach, and contribute knowledge and feedback. TfL will 
work with local authorities to develop behaviour change and communications 
messaging for local residents and stakeholders.

• Monitor progress of temporary interventions and keep changes under review

98

Presenter_14
Presentation Notes




Further guidance, tools and resources are available on the 
Streetspace for London website: 

https://tfl.gov.uk/travel-information/improvements-and-
projects/streetspace-for-london

99

https://tfl.gov.uk/travel-information/improvements-and-projects/streetspace-for-london


Case-making 
appendices

100



Appendix 1: Case making
Londoners have already shown an incredible ability to adapt their behaviours to protect their own 
health and wellbeing, as well as to keep others safe. The lockdown period has given Londoners the 
chance to experience many of these ‘rewards’ in the forms of:

• Cleaner air
• Quieter streets
• Less time spent commuting
• Convenience of on-line ordering and home deliveries
• More time spent exploring local neighbourhoods

• Significantly more Londoners have reported walking more in the early stages of lockdown compared 
to the previous 12 months, as well as reporting expecting to walk more in the coming year. In a 
recent YouGov poll, 85% of people reported wanting to see some of the personal and social 
changes they have experienced during lockdown to continue, with only 9% wanting things to revert 
to life as before.

• There is greater awareness and understanding of the impact of personal choices and behaviour on 
health, with Londoners potentially more likely to change their travel behaviour for personal health 
reasons, as well as to protect the health of others. A recent YouGov poll found around 40% of 
Londoners say they will use public transport less once lockdown measures are relaxed, with 50% of 
those saying they will walk instead, 17% saying they will cycle instead and 41% saying they plan to 
drive instead.

101

Presenter_15
Presentation Notes




Appendix 2: Health benefits
In the short term, the Streetspace for London Plan will:
• Enable Londoner’s to maintain the social distancing that is required to prevent an increase in 

COVID-19 infections.
• Enable more Londoners to get the 20 minutes of physical activity each day that is recommended 

for good health and wellbeing. Average public transport trips involve between 8-15 minutes of 
active travel (compared with less than 1 minute for average car trips) so it is important that those 
who were previously travelling by public transport are supported to choose a more active mode 
(walking or cycling) as an alternative where possible. 

• Ensure Londoners are protected from injuries due to road danger, and from poor air quality.

In the longer-term, streets that encourage Londoners to switch to active travel and reduce the 
number of vehicles contributing to air and noise pollution will lead to:
• A reduction in the number of people with health conditions such as heart and lung disease and 

cancers that are associated with physical inactivity and exposure to poor air quality and excess 
noise

• Improving the health of Londoners is important in order to reduce the proportion of Londoners who 
are susceptible to more severe COVID-19 (those with underlying heart and lung conditions) as well 
as reducing the burden on the NHS from non-COVID-19 related conditions (such as injuries from 
traffic collisions).

Further information on the health impacts of transport can be found here: 
https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/corporate-and-social-responsibility/transport-and-health

102

Presenter_16
Presentation Notes


https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/corporate-and-social-responsibility/transport-and-health


Appendix 3: Equity benefits
• COVID-19 has disproportionately affected vulnerable populations, including those living in more 

deprived areas. Londoners living in more deprived areas are already more likely to be impacted by 
exposure to air pollution and road danger. Low-income Londoners are also more likely to work in 
frontline key-worker roles, which mean they cannot work from home and are less likely to be car-
owners, so will be most affected by the reduced capacity on public transport. 

• The Streetspace for London plan, which provides safe space for walking and cycling and enables 
social distancing on public transport for those who need to use it most, is therefore an essential 
part of protecting vulnerable Londoners. Providing additional space for walking and cycling will 
therefore help support the most vulnerable, including those who are less mobile and those who 
may be new to cycling. 

• Walking is one of the easiest forms of physical activity that is suitable for Londoners of all ages and 
abilities. Our plans - which provide space for people to exercise in areas where there is less access 
to public or private outdoor space such as parks and gardens - are an important part of supporting 
the health and wellbeing of the most vulnerable. 

• It is important that any interventions to support walking and cycling are designed holistically to 
ensure that all Londoners can move around in safety. When making any changes to street layouts, 
boroughs must adhere to existing guidance and legislation to ensure that these changes don’t 
detract from current accessibility levels and enhance them where possible.

103

Presenter_17
Presentation Notes




Appendix 4: Economic benefits
• Ensuring reliable travel times for businesses is an essential part of economic 

recovery. In addition, by encouraging Londoners to make fewer longer journeys 
and more frequent shorter journeys, there is the opportunity to encourage 
increased use of small businesses on local highstreets. 

• Supporting Londoners to visit high streets and town centres on foot or by bike 
will bring additional benefits, as evidence shows that on average those who 
walk to a high street spend 40 per cent more than those who drive, and that 
high street walking, cycling and public realm improvements can help to 
increase retail sales by up to 30 per cent.

• In addition there will be economic benefits from increasing people’s ability to 
comply with public health social distancing, thereby reducing numbers of new 
infections and the resultant impact on the economy from sickness absence.

Further information on the economic case for walking and cycling can be found 
here: https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/publications-and-reports/economic-benefits-of-
walking-and-cycling

104

Presenter_18
Presentation Notes


https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/publications-and-reports/economic-benefits-of-walking-and-cycling


Appendix D 

Public Engagement Portal Feedback 

 

Harrow Street Spaces Map 

 

The Harrow Street Spaces Map asked visitors to identify areas on a map that were a 

problem, to explain the issues and to indicate possible solutions. Comments were received 

widely across the borough as shown in the map below. The following question was asked. 

Chart 1 shows the results. 

 

 

 
 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Chart 1 - Issues 

105



The following questions were asked about possible solutions and views about making 

solutions permanent. Charts 2 and 3 shows the results. 

 

 

 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

Chart 2 - Solutions 

2% 3% 

93% 

Chart 3 - Would you support these measures being made 
permanent? 

No

Would need to see the evidence

Yes

106



Questions were also asked about how comfortable people felt about walking and cycling. 

Charts 4 and 5 provide the results. 

 

 

 

 

Harrow Street Spaces Proposals 
The Harrow Street Spaces Proposals website provided information and detailed plans 

about the specific schemes developed in four different categories and gave a option to 

provide comments. The categories are: 

 

 Low traffic neighbourhoods 

 Pedestrian space measures 

 School Streets 

 Strategic Cycling 

The responses have been assessed based on people living in the directly affected areas 

via their postcode and where responses have been confirmed. 

 

For low traffic neighbourhoods the following options were available on the form. The 

responses are shown in chart 6. 

18% 

65% 

17% 

Chart 4 -  How comfortable do you feel walking? 

Not comfortable

Somewhat comfortable

Very comfortable

68% 

25% 

6% 

Chart 5 - How comfortable do you feel cycling? 

Not comfortable

Somewhat comfortable

Very comfortable

107



 

 
 

For school streets the following options were available on the form. The responses are 

shown in chart 7. 

 

 
For strategic cycling schemes the following options were available on the form. The 

responses are shown in chart 8. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Chart 6 - Low Traffic Neighbourhoods - comments 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Chart 7 - School Streets - comments 

108



 

 
 

For pedestrian space measures the following options were available on the form. The 

responses are shown in chart 9. 

 

 
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Chart 8 - Strategic Cycling - comments 

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%
50%

Chart 9 - Pedestrian Space - comments 

109



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
28 July 2020 

 
 

To: Local Authority Leaders in England 
 
 
 
 
Local Transport Note (LTN) 1/20: Cycle Infrastructure Design Guidance 
published 
 
The Department for Transport yesterday published revised national guidance 
for highway authorities and designers on cycle infrastructure design. LTN 
1/20 can be viewed here:  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-120 

It updates and replaces guidance previously contained in LTN 2/08. 
 
As set out in the Prime Minister’s Cycling and Walking Plan also published 
yesterday, the core principle behind this guidance is that cycling will become 
mass transit in far more places. Cycling must be placed at the heart of the 
transport network, with capital spending, road space and traffic planners' 
attention befitting that role. Cycling must no longer be treated as marginal, or 
an afterthought. It must not be seen as mainly part of the leisure industry, but 
as a means of everyday transport. It is of the utmost importance that local 
authorities follow this guidance closely in designing any cycle infrastructure 
scheme in future.  
 
As I explain in my foreword, most current cycle provision is squeezed into 
spare space or on the margins of roads. It reflects a belief, conscious or 
otherwise, that hardly anyone cycles, that cycling is unimportant and that 
cycling provision must not affect more important road users, such as motor 
vehicles and pedestrians. However in some places, even without much 
special provision, cycling is already mass transit. 
 

From the Minister of State 
Chris Heaton-Harris MP 
 
Great Minster House 
33 Horseferry Road 
London 
SW1P 4DR 
 
Tel: 0300 330 3000 
E-Mail: chris.heatonharris@dft.gov.uk 
 
Web site: www.gov.uk/dft 
 
Our Ref:  
Your Ref:  
 
 

111



112



Appendix A 
Table 1 - Pedestrian Space Measures (funded by TfL) 

Ref. No. Scheme  Measures implemented Traffic orders  Status Notes 

PS-01 
Station Road, Harrow -
Civic Centre, shops & 
Mosque 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None Completed Measures implemented by 
17/05/20 at shops only 

PS-02 Harrow and Wealdstone 
Station 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to station 

None  Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 17/05/20 

PS-07 Streatfield Road, 
Queensbury - shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

Disabled bay 
(relocation) 

Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 02/07/20 

PS-08 Honeypot Lane, Canons 
Park - shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None  Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 01/07/20 

PS-09 Northolt Road, Northolt - 
shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None  Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 01/07/20 

PS-10 Kenton Road, Kenton - 
shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None  Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 29/06/20 

PS-11 Kenton Lane, Belmont - 
shops 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to shops 

None  Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 29/06/20 

PS-12 High Road, Harrow Weald 
– shops - relocate bus stop 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to bus stop and shops, 
bus stop relocated 

None  Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 18/05/20 

PS-13 
Porlock Avenue, West 
Harrow – shops - relocate 
bus stop 

Pedestrian barriers, tarmac ramps 
adjacent to bus stop and school, 
bus stop relocated 

None  Completed Measures fully implemented 
by 17/05/20 

 
The exact details of the schemes are shown in Appendix BC. In all schemes sections of carriageway adjacent to potential pedestrian 
crowding areas have been cordoned off using barriers to increase the effective width of footway for pedestrians. Where there are existing 
parking bays in these locations these have been suspended by covering over the signs and providing advisory street notices. No traffic 
regulation orders are required to do this. All measures are temporary and will be removed when government social distancing restrictions 
are ended.  

113



Table 2 – Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (funded by TfL) 

Ref. No. Scheme  Measures proposed Traffic orders  Status Notes 

LTN-01 Kingshill Avenue area, 
Kenton 

2 modal filters 2 closures except 
cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-02 Pinner View area, 
Headstone South 

5 modal filters, 20mph 
speed limit 

5 closures except 
cycles, 20mph limit 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-03 Francis Road area, 
Greenhill 

1 modal filter, 20mph 
speed limit 

1 closure except 
cycles, 20mph limit 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-04 Vaughan Road area, West 
Harrow 

2 modal filters 2 closures except 
cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-05 Green Lane area, Stanmore 
1 modal filter 1 closure except 

cycles 
On hold Subject to consideration by 

TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-06 Southfield Park area, North 
Harrow 

1 modal filter, 20mph 
speed limit 

1 closure except 
cycles, 20mph limit 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-07 Byron Road area, 
Wealdstone 

1 modal filter, 20mph 
speed limit 

1 closure except 
cycles, 20mph limit 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-08 Dennis Lane area, 
Stanmore 

1 modal filter 1 closure except 
cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

LTN-09 Princes Drive area, 
Wealdstone 

1 modal filter 1 closure except 
cycles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

 

The exact details of the schemes are shown in Appendix BC. There was an application for LTN-01 in the Kingshill Avenue area, Kenton, 
however officers have reviewed that scheme and decided not to put it forward as a proposal.  The modal filters will be created by placing 
large planters at specific points in roads within the areas to restrict vehicles passing through. Cyclists would be able to pass through the 
gaps between the planters provided to allow cycle permeability. Experimental traffic regulation orders will be made to prohibit vehicles at 
modal filters and for creating 20mph speed limits on the roads in the areas. The schemes will be experimental and the decision to 
remove or retain them will be determined based on statutory consultation during the trial in the first 6 months of operation.   

Formatted Table

114



Table 3 – School streets (funded by TfL) 

Ref. No. Scheme  Measures proposed Traffic orders  Status Notes 

SS-01 Grimsdyke School, Hatch 
End 

Prohibition of vehicles in sections of 
roads around the school (Mon –Fri, 
8:15am-9:15am & 2:4530pm-
4:003:45pm) 

Prohibition of 
vehicles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

SS-02 Newton Farm School, 
Rayners Lane 

Prohibition of vehicles in sections of 
roads around the school (Mon –Fri, 
8:15am30am-9:15am 45am & 
2:4530pm-34:4500pm) 

Prohibition of 
vehicles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

SS-03 Marlborough School, 
Wealdstone 

Prohibition of vehicles in sections of 
roads around the school (Mon –Fri, 
8:15am-9:415am & 2:1530pm-
3:4:030pm) 

Prohibition of 
vehicles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

SS-04 Park High School, 
Stanmore, Middx. 

Prohibition of vehicles in sections of 
roads around the school (Mon –Fri, 
8:15am-9:15am & 2:4530pm-
34:4500pm) 

Prohibition of 
vehicles 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

 

The exact details of the schemes are shown in Appendix BC. The schemes involve placing restrictions on vehicles entering sections of 
roads within the area around the school during week day school opening and closing times. The roads permit access by pedestrians and 
cyclists only and identified vehicles that require access within the area such as residents. Experimental traffic regulation orders will be 
made to prohibit vehicles at the restricted times on the roads in the areas. The schemes will be experimental and the decision to remove 
or retain them will be determined based on statutory consultation during the trial in the first 6 months of operation. 

  

115



Table 4 – Strategic Cycling (funded by DfT) 

Ref. No. Scheme  Measures proposed Traffic orders  Status Notes 

SC-01 Honeypot Lane, 
Queensbury 

Mandatory cycle lanes (nearside 
lanes), 30mph speed limit 

30mph speed 
limit 

Completed Measures fully implemented by 
10/07/20 

SC-03 Sheepcote Road, 
Greenhill 

Mandatory cycle lanes (nearside 
lanes), permit cycles to use bus 
lane 

Bus lane use 
amendment  

Completed  Measures fully Implementation by 
17/07/20 

SC-09 Uxbridge Road, 
Harrow Weald  

Mandatory cycle lanes (nearside 
lanes), 30mph speed limit 

30mph speed 
limit 

Completed  Measures fully Implementation by 
24/07/20 

SC-10 George V Avenue, 
Hatch End 

Mandatory cycle lanes (nearside 
lanes), 30mph speed limit, 
waiting restrictions (at any time) 

30mph speed 
limit, waiting 
restrictions 

On hold Subject to consideration by 
TARSAP on 10/08/20 

 

The exact details of the schemes are shown in Appendix BC. The schemes involve installing mandatory cycle lanes in the nearside 
traffic lanes and including a buffer zone marked in hatching that separates it from the offside vehicle lane to reduce conflict between 
vehicles and cycles. Traffic cones further reinforce the segregation. On dual carriageways the 40mph speed limit is reduced to 30mph for 
improved road safety. Existing bus lanes will be amended to permit cyclist to use them. Waiting restrictions will be implemented in 
sections of road to prevent parking in the cycle lanes where there may be demand to do so in order to ensure the safety of cyclists. 
Experimental traffic regulation orders will be made to introduce waiting restrictions, reduce speed limits and amend usage of bus lanes on 
these roads. The restrictions in the traffic regulation orders will be experimental and the decision to remove or retain them will be 
determined based on statutory consultation during the trial in the first 6 months of operation. 

Further consideration will be given to reinforcing segregation between vehicles and cyclists as suggested by cycle lobby groups by using 
more bollards or wands in the hatching buffer zone. This will be determined after a period of review of the schemes in operation. 

  

116



Table 5 - Schemes not approved by TfL 
 
Ref. No. Programme type Scheme  Status 
PS-03 Pedestrian Space The Broadway, Hatch End - shops Not approved 
PS-04 Pedestrian Space Stanmore Broadway - shops Not approved 
PS-05 Pedestrian Space Pedestrian signals timing review - Boroughwide Not approved 

PS-06 Pedestrian Space Wealdstone Town Centre improvement scheme Not approved 

PS-14 Pedestrian Space Wealdstone, High street shops (bus stop opposite Mir Foods) 
relocate bus stop 

Not approved 

SC-04 Strategic Cycling Cycle Way, Bonnersfield Lane / Sheepcote Road, Greenhill Not approved 
SC-05 Strategic Cycling Cycle Way, Harrow Weald - Kenton Not approved 
SC-06 Strategic Cycling Bakerloo cycle route Not approved 
SC-07 Strategic Cycling Cross Harrow cycle route Not approved 
SC-08 Strategic Cycling Borough wide cycle lanes Not approved 

 
  

117



Table 6 – Revised indicative implementation schedule (subject to approval) 
 

Ref. No. Scheme type Scheme  Revised implementation dates 
(from week commencing) 

SC-10 Strategic Cycling George V Avenue, Hatch End 24 August 2020 
SS-01 School Streets Grimsdyke School, Hatch End 31 August 2020 
SS-02 School Streets  Newton Farm School, Rayners Lane 31 August 2020 
SS-03 School Streets  Marlborough School, Wealdstone 31 August 2020 
SS-04 School Streets  Park High School, Stanmore, Middx. 31 August 2020 
LTN-06 Low Traffic Neighbourhood  Southfield Park area, North Harrow 07 September 2020 
LTN-09 Low Traffic Neighbourhood  Princes Drive area, Wealdstone 07 September 2020 
LTN-02 Low Traffic Neighbourhood  Pinner View area, Headstone South 14 September 2020 
LTN-03 Low Traffic Neighbourhood  Francis Road area, Greenhill 14 September 2020 
LTN-04 Low Traffic Neighbourhood  Vaughan Road area, West Harrow 21 September 2020 
LTN-07 Low Traffic Neighbourhood  Byron Road area, Wealdstone 21 September 2020 
LTN-01 Low Traffic Neighbourhood Kingshill Avenue area, Kenton 28 September 2020 
LTN-05 Low Traffic Neighbourhood  Green Lane area, Stanmore 28 September 2020 
LTN-08 Low Traffic Neighbourhood  Dennis Lane area, Stanmore 28 September 2020 
 
This indicative programme indicates an extremely tight delivery time line for the remaining schemes in the programme to be delivered by 
the end of September. This assumes that approval for the schemes is granted.  

Formatted Table

118



TARSAP  

10 August 2020  

Supplementary report 

1) There is a statement in the TARSAP report which requires clarification: 

 

We want to encourage people to walk or cycle where previously they may have 

used the car. So these improvements will try to support those that are able to walk 

where distances are less than 2 km (a 10 minute walk) or cycle if the journey is 

under 5 km. 

 

10 minutes is the average time for a person to walk 1 km, therefore the report 

should have stated 10 minutes for a 1km walk.  Obviously different people will 

walk at different speeds and some will not be able to walk this distance.    This 

paragraph should have read: 

 

We want to encourage people to walk or cycle where previously they may have 

used the car. So these improvements will try to support those that are able to walk 

where distances are less than 2 km (average time to walk 1km is 10 minutes) or 

cycle if the journey is under 5 km. 

 

 

2) We have received several emails relating to the schemes and these are included 

in Appendix 1 of this supplementary report. 

  

3) Over the last few weeks, officers have held meetings with ward councillors to seek 

their comments in respect of the schemes in their wards. Table 1 provides the 

Panel with the comments officers have gathered. 

 

4) There were some important themes expressed by councillors throughout the 

engagement process. 

 

a. Consultation- the programme hasn’t provided suitable levels of consultation 

and this has caused difficulties with residents. 

b. Councillors welcomed the opportunity to discuss the details of the schemes 

with officers but felt the process should have commenced before the schemes 

were applied for, they recognised this wasn’t possible on this occasion but 

would like to see a different approach used in future. 

c. Communication- the portal doesn’t provide enough opportunity for 

communication, a much wider programme with more channels should be 

provided. 

d. Purpose- councillors were not always persuaded as to the overall aim of the 

scheme and better clarity of the aims should be provided. 

119



e. Cycling schemes- local schemes in the context of the whole borough were not 

easily understood, greater clarity is required as a significant number of 

councillors don’t see the current cyclist traffic requiring such schemes. 

f. Cycling Schemes- concern expressed that existing and proposed cycle routes 

join up and do not create unintended pressure on highway network. 

g. Pedestrians- councillors not persuaded on the benefits for the increases in 

pavement space when removing parking for local shops. 

h. Business- a number of councillors expressed concerns over the impact from 

the schemes on the business community so soon after COVID19. 

i. Honeypot Lane- across ward concerns over the design benefits of Honeypot 

Lane and an urgent request to review the scheme. 

j. Review period- widespread support for a post implementation review process 

for schemes that don’t meet the design expectation. 

Officer response to the themes: The use of residential roads as short cuts by 

vehicles and the high volume of vehicles on main roads acts as a significant 

deterrent to cyclists. The exposure of risk to a collision with a vehicle is one of the 

main barriers to people taking up cycling. Reducing the amount of through traffic or 

providing segregation between cyclists and vehicles will remove this barrier and 

encourage more cycling. Currently the level of traffic on the roads is still below the 

levels seen prior to the coronavirus pandemic and so there is still capacity in the 

road network to accommodate the proposed changes from road closures, restrictions 

and cycle lanes. This situation would be monitored very carefully during any of the 

trials because traffic conditions are currently hard to forecast due to the variability of 

the health and economic impacts of the crisis on travel. 

The main impact to businesses is the economic impact of the health crisis and the 

government social distancing requirements and this has had the greatest affect on 

trade. The provision of parking has been shown over many years to be a less 

important factor in influencing trade. 

The fast track nature of the development of schemes and consultation process has 

been driven by the requirements from Government and Transport for London to meet 

challenging timescales to provide an emergency response to the health crisis. 

Funding awards were only confirmed in June and delivery of all schemes is required 

to be completed by the end of September. The normally high standard of 

engagement and consultation that councillors and the public have become 

accustomed to could not be provided within this 4 months window. Officers 

recognise the difficulties the funding process has caused and will ensure that all the 

themes are accounted for in any future programmes and will undertake reviews on 

schemes at the earliest opportunity in line with the report recommendations.  

5) Summary of ward councillor consultation 

a. Low Traffic Neighbourhood schemes 

i. Supported = 4 

120



ii. Not supported = 3 

1. LTN01 Kingshill Avenue 

2. LTN 05 Green Lane 

3. LTN 08 Dennis Lane 

iii. Conditional support = 2 

1. LTN 07 Byron Road 

2. LTN 09 Princess Drive 

b. Strategic Cycling  

i. SC10 George V Avenue is a scheme across two wards one 

supporting and one not supporting but may if changes can be 

made 

c. School Streets 

i. Four schemes all supported with a conditional support on SS03 

Marlborough School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

121



Table 1 

Scheme  Ward For Against Overarching view. 

LTN01 – 

Kingshill 

Avenue 

Kenton 

West 

none Similar scheme had been rejected by the 

community. 

The local business impact is considered to be 

negative. 

Not supportive of 

the scheme 

LTN02 – 

Pinner View 

area 

Headstone 

South 

Supportive of the scheme and were 

keen to ensure emergency services had 

been advised 

 Supportive of the 

scheme 

LTN03 – 

Francis Road 

area 

Greenhill Supportive of safer streets, reduced 

speeding, several requests over the 

years for traffic calming 

Would like to see the scheme made 

permanent if possible 

Not overly keen on increases in traffic. Supportive of the 

scheme 

LTN 04 – 

Vaughan 

Road area 

West 

Harrow 

Very comfortable with the approach, 

especially with a clear review after 6 

months.  

 

 Supportive of the 

scheme 

LTN05 – 

Green Lane 

area 

Stanmore 

Park 

 

Councillor expressed a preference for 

this scheme if having to choose either 

Green Land or Dennis Lane, but don’t 

support both together 

Traffic impacts on Wood Lane/ Stanmore Hill, 

councillors are reporting a 2,000+ petition 

against scheme, negative impact on Green 

Lane, restricting access to school. 

 

Not supportive of 

the scheme 

122



Scheme  Ward For Against Overarching view. 

LTN06 – 

Southfield 

Park area 

Headstone 

South 

Supportive of the scheme and were 

keen to ensure emergency services had 

been advised 

 Supportive of the 

scheme 

LTN07 – 

Byron Road 

area 

Marlborough Support for scheme subject to review 

and impact assessment 

Concerns over the possible impact on the 

regeneration programme  

Would require clarity on all three schemes and 

don’t support all three together. LTN07, LTN 

09 and SS 03 

Conditional support. 

 

LTN08 – 

Dennis Lane 

area 

Stanmore 

Park 

Canons 

 Traffic impacts on Stanmore  Hill, councillors 

are reporting a 2000+ petition against scheme, 

no additional benefit as cyclists don’t use 

route, it’s a steep hill so wont aid walking. 

Not supportive of 

the scheme 

LTN09 – 

Princes Drive 

area 

Marlborough 

 

Conditional support for the scheme 

subject to post implementation review. 

Concerns about the wider impact on the 

network 

Would require clarity on all three schemes and 

don’t support all three together. LTN07, LTN 

09 and SS 03 

Too much change at once. 

Conditional support. 

Would require 

clarity on all three 

schemes and don’t 

support all three 

together. 

SC 10 – 

George V 

Avenue 

Hatch End 

 

Headstone 

North 

Consider the scheme to be a good idea 

and will further reduce the impact of 

traffic on the area 

 

 

 

 

The impact on the local school just as they are 

Supportive of the 

scheme 

 

Not supportive of 

123



Scheme  Ward For Against Overarching view. 

Could see a possible solution if the 

scheme could be modified (shortened) 

returning to school, impact on local businesses 

and amenities, displacing the commuter 

parking into other residential streets, concerns 

raised by residents about additional parking 

pressures and no real need for the scheme as 

no real numbers of cyclists using it. 

the scheme unless 

changes are made. 

 

SS-01 – 

Grimsdyke 

School 

Hatch End In favour of the scheme as part of the 

overall development of traffic calming in 

the area 

Not supportive of any future CPZ scheme Supportive of the 

scheme 

SS-02 – 

Newton 

Farm School 

Rayners 

Lane 

 

Roxbourne 

View the schemes as being a great 

idea, too many drivers blocking streets 

Councillors on holiday but supportive of 

scheme 

None Supportive of the 

scheme 

Supportive of the 

scheme 

 

SS-03 – 

Marlborough 

School 

Marlborough Supportive of scheme in general Concerned over the overall collective impact of 

the three schemes in the ward. 

 

Conditional support 

and would require 

clarity on all three 

schemes and don’t 

support all three 

together. 

SS-04 – Park 

High School 

Belmont See the scheme as a positive to reduce 

the daily traffic issues in both roads and 

well as sponsoring more walking 

 Supportive of the 

scheme 

 

124



Appendix 1 

Summary of correspondence received in relation to the schemes 

LTN 05 Dennis Lane 

4 submissions from residents of Dennis Lane in support of the scheme: 

 Traffic using the road as a cut through, increased high speeds, pollution, 

rubbish and other environmental damage. 

 Previous request to make top end of road one way out of the lane with no 

entry in. 

 Support for either a full closure at one end or changing the top end to be no 

entry will improve life substantially 

 Proposed change would assist residents despite some inconvenience 

 Support on the basis the proposal is for a trial period with the aim of reducing 

traffic and increasing use of bikes 

Officer response: A full closure will remove all through traffic from Dennis Lane and 

significantly reduce the overall volume of traffic which will be beneficial to 

pedestrians and cyclists by reducing their exposure to collisions. Local traffic would 

be restricted to access via the southern end of the road by Stanmore Broadway. A 

partial closure (from Wood Lane) will only remove southbound through traffic. As 

Dennis Lane has a tidal range of movement with higher flows in one direction in the 

morning and in the other direction due to a commuting pattern of travel the 

northbound through traffic will still pose some risk to pedestrians and cyclists. This 

risk would be reduced relative to normal traffic conditions. 

  
LTN 08 Green Lane 

1 resident not in support: 

 Children will still be brought in cars to the school, concern that road will 

become blocked leading to serious risk to safety of pedestrians, including 

school children and cyclists 

 Delivery trucks and refuse vehicles also need to use the road 

 Concern that ambulance will be unable to turn around easily 

 On previous consideration by the Council to close one end of Green Lane, 

council officers stated that a turning area would be required, as insufficient 

room for larger vehicles to turn around and no consultation with emergency 

services, who may object to the scheme 

Officer response: Consultation has been undertaken with the emergency services on 

the proposed closure and no objections have been raised. Currently the emergency 

services gain access to Green Lane from the southern end (Uxbridge Road) and that 

would continue unchanged with the proposed road closure. Larger vehicles would be 

125



required to turn around in order to leave the road by the southern end and there are 

side roads in Green Lane where these manoeuvres can be undertaken. The removal 

of thorough traffic would reduce any conflicts and allow such manoeuvres to occur 

safely. Where children are being dropped off / picked up for school the same would 

apply although the Council would continue to work with the school on its travel plan 

to try to encourage a reduction in the use of private cars. In respect of refuse 

services these would be adjusted to accommodate route changes caused by the 

closure and would also need to avoid school opening and closing times. 

 

LTN 05 Dennis Lane and LTN 08 Green Lane 

2 residents not supporting either scheme: 

 Policy to increase cycling is unlikely to lead to cyclists choosing to struggle 

uphill or lose control downhill 

 Higher level of older and retired residents will affect level of residents taking 

up cycling 

 Support principle of encouraging walking and cycling, but road alterations 

should be made on new housing estates and in town centres where there are 

present dangers 

 Cyclists rarely seen in Green Lane or Dennis Lane except at weekends 

 Proposals will lead to congestion on Uxbridge Road and London Road, 

increasing pollution 

 Additional congestion at Green Lane / Uxbridge Road junction 

 Access to school will be more difficult and increase parking on Stanmore Hill 

 Proposal would be a waste of resources and would not benefit the 

environment and would cause inconvenience. 

 

Officer response: The narrow width of Green Lane / Dennis Lane in conjunction with 

the use of roads as short cuts by vehicles acts as a deterrent to cyclists. The 

exposure of risk to a collision with a vehicle is one of the main barriers to people 

taking up cycling. Reducing the amount of through traffic will remove this barrier. 

Cyclists have to negotiate hills in the same way as any other road user but these 

routes can act as convenient short cuts for cyclists in the same way that they 

currently do for cars. Currently the level of traffic on the roads is still below the levels 

seen prior to the coronavirus pandemic and so there is still capacity in the road 

network to accommodate changes due to the closure. This situation would be 

monitored very carefully during any trial because traffic conditions are currently hard 

to forecast due to the variability of the health and economic impacts of the crisis on 

travel. 

126



Mr Sean Harriss
Chief Executive
Harrow Council
PO Box 57
Civic Centre
Station Road
Harrow
Middx.
HA1 2XF

 
6 August 2020
 

Our Ref: GT41258
Dear Mr Harriss,
 
Re: Special TARSAP Meeting 10th August 2020
 
I am writing to you with further urgent correspondence regarding the proposed changes to
George V Avenue, Harrow, which I understand will be considered during a special meeting of
TARSAP next week. 
 
As you will be aware, I have previously raised concerns the Headteacher, teaching staff and
Chair of Governors of Nower Hill High School have informed me of in relation to the Council’s
plans to make alterations to George V Avenue. The school staff are concerned that the
changes planned using Transport for London’s (TfL) London Streetspace Programme, will
have a negative impact on the provision of parking, which school staff and parents are reliant
on. Indeed, I understand the school community would like to formally oppose any restrictions
on parking along George V Avenue, which I would like the meeting to be fully aware of and
take into careful consideration whilst deliberating on this matter next week. I would be
grateful, therefore, if you would ensure that the contents of this letter are formally taken
into account at this imminent meeting. 
 
I understand that the current proposal entails the introduction of a 24 hour no waiting
restriction along the length of George V Avenue, which will prevent road parking along the
road concerned. With 2000 pupils and 250 staff, with access to only limited on-site parking,
changes to George V Avenue will result in the loss of the current parking provision that many
members of the school community rely on. The school fears this loss will inevitably force
those needing to park close to the school into utilising neighbouring residential roads,
causing congestion and reducing the availability of parking for local residents. 
 
I also understand the school community expects the removal of road parking along George V
Avenue will create issues beyond the school day, during parents’ evenings, concerts and
other such events when parents and carers will again be required to park on neighbouring
residential roads. This could lead to difficulties for local residents, but the school also fears
this will adversely affect parental attendance at such events, which could negatively impact
the school’s current high levels of parental engagement, which the school has worked very
hard to achieve.
 
I am also of the understanding that the Council hope that the issues caused by the planned
changes can be negated by staff, pupils and parents utilising public transport and reducing
their reliance on personal vehicles. In light of the ongoing Covid-19 risks from shared spaces
like public transport, and the need for parking in close proximity to the school for disabled
school staff and pupils, I would also like the committee to take into consideration that such
an expectation is not feasible for everyone to meet. The loss of the current parking will place
further pressures on the school, at a time when schools are already facing exceptional

127



difficulties returning to operating as normal. Indeed, the school understands the
Government’s Covid-19 guidance actively discourages staff from using public transport on
their return to work in September. Thus, although some staff live close enough to the school
to take up walking, cycling or using public transport, for the vast majority this would simply
not be feasible. Headteacher, Louise Voden has informed me that she is also concerned about
the effect the parking issue will have on the school’s ability to recruit and retain staff who
need to drive to school. I would appreciate the committee giving particular consideration to
this situation - the crux of this issue. 
 
I welcome the funding from TfL, and like the Council, am in favour of improving and increasing
the cycling provision in our Borough, as well as encouraging the public to shift towards
greener and shared modes of transport. However, I also recognise and sympathise with the
understandable issues and reasonable points raised by the school. As such, I would like to see
the Council utilise the funding and implement their plans for increasing cycling provision, but
whilst finding a parking solution that mitigates the likely difficulties that the current plans
would cause the school and its community. 
 
I would be grateful for the committee’s careful consideration of the objections to the current
plans from the school community, as well as the possible future issues for local residents,
should the school’s parking issues spread into the neighbouring roads. I would welcome their
efforts finding a solution to this issue that meets the needs of the school community,
neighbouring residents, cyclists and the wider public. 
 
I would be grateful for your assistance ensuring the above is taken into account by the
committee. I would also appreciate if you would provide me with an update on the outcome
of the meeting, which I could also pass on to Ms Voden. 
 
Please could you also include my reference number on all correspondence. 

Thank you for your continued assistance with this urgent matter.
 
Yours sincerely
 

 
Gareth Thomas MP
Harrow West
 
 

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

128

http://www.tcpdf.org


To the TARSAP Committee,  for the meeting to be held on Monday August 10th 2020 

 

I am writing to you as Port Folio Holder with responsibility for Education and Children’s Social 

Services. 

I believe that this statement is relevant to Appendix A. 

I am writing to the Committee to register my concern at the proposed timetable for the 

implementation of the changes to the Public Space on George V Avenue. 

These works have been put on hold since July following concerns expressed by Nower Hill School. 

I am grateful for the action taken by the Council to delay implementation and I am requesting that 

serious consideration is given to a further delay. 

Everyone now recognises that it is imperative that schools fully reopen in September but it is not 

generally recognised that this will in fact be a tremendous undertaking. 

 Returning to school will I believe be quite a step for many children, young people and families after 

such a long time. 

 There are many things for families to worry about who want safety and protection for their children, 

who will themselves have been affected by so many months at home; so that returning to school will 

feel more like a step into the unknown rather than a simple return to familiar surroundings.  

This will be a particularly stressful time for young people leaving primary school and going to high 

school for the first time. 

In order to protect their children, many families will want to take them to school by car, perhaps 

many more than would usually do so, and this will be made much more difficult with the proposed 

changes. 

Schools will have themselves to adjust to changes and new responsibilities in “The New Normal”   

and they want to make return to school as easy as possible for children and young people.  

We need to support them, to prioritise the return to school and offer support where we can.  

I think we can help by implementing as long a delay as possible before the works are done. 

This will allow  the School and families to settle into the new term and adjust to the many changes 

which they, as part of society are going to face. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Christine Robson 

Port Folio Holder for Children, Young People and Education. 

 

129



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 - 52 - 

 
 
 

TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY 

ADVISORY PANEL (SPECIAL) 

MINUTES 

 

MONDAY 10 AUGUST 2020 

 
 
Chair: * Councillor Jerry Miles 
   
Councillors: * Peymana Assad 

* John Hinkley 
* Ameet Jogia  
 

* James Lee 
* Anjana Patel 
* David Perry 
 

Advisers: 
 

* Mr J Leach 
  Mr N Long 
 

* Dr A Shah 
* Mr A Wood 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

  Marilyn Ashton 
  Philip Benjamin 
  Simon Brown 
  Stephen Greek 
  Vina Mithani 
  Paul Osborn 
  Varsha Parmar 
  Kanti Rabadia 
  Sachin Shah 
 

Minutes 77 and 80 
Minutes 77 and 80 
Minutes 77 and 80 
Minute 80 
Minute 77 
Minutes 77 and 80 
Minute 77 
Minute 80 
Minute 80 

* Denotes Member present 
  
 
 
 
Recording   
 
The recording of this meeting was available by following the link below: 
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/virtualmeeting 
 

131

https://www.harrow.gov.uk/virtualmeeting


 

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 - 53 - 

75. Welcome   
 
On behalf of the Panel, the Chair welcomed Councillor Anjana Patel to the 
Panel and thanked Councillor Baxter, a former Member of the Panel, for his 
contribution to the work of the Panel. 
 

76. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance. 
 

77. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that   
 
(1) the Declarations of Interests published in advance of the meeting on 

the Council’s website were taken as read and the following further 
declarations made at the meeting by Councillors under this item in 
relation to agenda item 5 and during consideration of the same item, 
Harrow Street Spaces Programme – 2020/21, be also noted: 

 
Councillor Marilyn Ashton: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Local Authority 
appointed Governor of Park High School 
Councillor James Lee: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Lived in Canons 
Park 
Councillor Vina Mithani: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Ward Councillor for 
Kenton West where Kenton Park Shopping Parade was situated  
Councillor Paul Osborn: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Lived on Vaughan 
Road, part of the West Harrow Low Traffic Neighbourhood Scheme.  
Councillor Varsha Parmar: (Non-Pecuniary Interest) – Marlborough 
Ward Councillor where schemes were being proposed 

 
(2) Members and Advisers who had declared interests remained in the 

virtual meeting whilst the matters were considered and voted upon. 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

78. Appointment of Vice-Chair and Non-Voting Advisers   
 
RESOLVED: To defer the appointment of Vice Chair and Non-Voting 
Advisers to the next ordinary meeting of the Panel and to suspend Executive 
Procedure Rule 35.4 to allow the following Advisers appointed in 2019/20 to 
participate in the meeting pending their formal appointment at the next 
ordinary meeting of the Panel:  
 
Mr J Leach - London Living Streets 
Mr N Long - Harrow Association of Disabled People 
Dr A Shah - Harrow Cyclists 
Mr A Wood - Harrow Public Transport Users' Association 
 
 

132



 

- 54 -  Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 

79. Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  That, in accordance with Executive Procedure Rules 43.2 and  
48, the following deputations be received in respect of agenda item 5 – 
Harrow Street Spaces Programme – 2020/21: 
 
1.  
 

Title of Deputation Residents concerned about proposed Low Traffic 
Neighbourhoods Green Lane Area and Dennis 
Lane Area 
 

Reason for 
Deputation 
[12 Signatories] 

There is sufficient local unhappiness with Schemes 
LTN-05 and LTN-08 per 
harrowstreetspaces.commonplace.is  
The schemes should not go ahead.  The 
Deputation wants to argue why those Schemes 
should not proceed.   

 
2.   
 

Title of Deputation Residents of Stanmore Hall 
 

Reason for 
Deputation 
[32 Signatories] 

To object to the closure of Dennis Lane, Stanmore. 
 

 
3.    
 

Title of Deputation Honeypot Lane – Barrier 
 

Reason for 
Deputation 
[14 Signatories] 

As a shopkeeper greatly affected adversely by the 
barrier and we are in great danger of losing our 
businesses. 
 

 
4.     
 

Title of Deputation Objection to Low Traffic Neighbourhood LTN-02 
Pinner View, Headstone Scheme GC021238-R1   
 

Reason for 
Deputation 
[12 Signatories] 

Scheme will adversely impact on residents, 
residents do not want the changes, residents have 
not seen any evidence of benefits or alternatives 
options. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

133



 

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 - 55 - 

 
5.     
 

Title of Deputation 
 

The Hillview Community against the imposition of 
School Streets Grimsdyke Primary School Scheme 
SS-01   

Reason for 
Deputation 
[18 Signatories] 

We, the undersigned, representing over 70 
residents in the above community feel strongly that 
the above scheme is badly conceived and instead 
of achieving its aims, it will provide greater 
congestion and pollution, increased traffic flows 
and lead to issues of road safety.      

 
Full details in relation to the deputations, including questions asked and 
answers given, were set out in the audio recording and referenced, in brief, at 
Minute 79 and at Appendix 1 to these minutes.  The recording of this 
item/minute can be found by following the link below: 
https://www.harrow.gov.uk/virtualmeeting 
 

RECOMMENDED ITEMS   
 

80. Harrow Street Spaces Programme - 2020/21   
 
Prior to the consideration of the report of the Corporate Director of 
Community, the Panel heard from the five deputees present at the meeting 
(Minute 78 also refers), full details of which were available by following the link 
at Minute 78 and listening to the audio recording. 
 
In summary, the deputees urged the Panel to reject the schemes that they 
were speaking on and that they were vehemently opposed to proposals 
because of the adverse impact they would have on their communities. Their 
submissions are also set out at Appendix 1 to these minutes. 
 
The deputees responded to questions from Members of the Panel and stated 
that: 
 

- the proposed schemes for Dennis Lane and Green Lane areas were 
counter productive and would not increase the use of public transport 
or walking; 

 
- the pedestrian barriers in the Honeypot Lane area had not encouraged 

people to walk to their local shops and there was evidence that the foot 
fall had dropped considerably which was crippling businesses in the 
area. The situation had been exacerbated by the lack of parking, 
including the provision of parking for people with disabilities; 
 

- the proposals for the Pinner View area (Scheme LTN-02 at revised 
Appendix A to the report referred) would lead to traffic congestion in 
the surrounding roads. A Member cited the proposals previously 
rejected by the Panel for the Goodwill to All junction and asked officers 
how the two proposals were related. An officer responded that there 

134

https://www.harrow.gov.uk/virtualmeeting


 

- 56 -  Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 

were plans to consult on the Goodwill to All junction which had had to 
be delayed due to Covid-19. Another Panel Member stated that in light 
of the officer response it was best that both the schemes were held in 
abeyance and was of the view that the response given appeared to 
give an impression of silo working mentality; 
 

- the School Streets Grimsdyke Primary School Scheme SS-01 was 
poor and would increase traffic flows and congestion and did not 
interact with other schemes in the area. The consultation was poor and 
a 20mph zone was required in Hillview if the scheme were to proceed. 
An officer replied that funding was only available for SS-01 but that he 
would ascertain if a 20mph could be incorporated but he was not 
certain that the parking issue (Grimsdyke Road) could be resolved.   
 

The Chair thanked the deputees for their presentations. 
 

Prior to the consideration of the report of the Corporate Director of 
Community, the Panel also heard from a number of back-benching Members 
who, in brief, were opposed to the implementation of a number of schemes, 
as follows: 
 

- Green Lane/Dennis Lane – the proposals were unrealistic and partial 
closures would impact on the surrounding area and would result in 
traffic gridlocks. Both Green Lane and Dennis Lane had steep 
gradients and would not encourage cycling. The problems would be 
exacerbated when children returned to schools in September 2020.  
The existing width restriction at Dennis Lane would need to be 
removed and were the proposed scheme to fail, it would result in a 
greater volume of traffic, particularly heavy traffic traversing through 
this road. It too would benefit from a 20mph zone;    

 
- Streatfield Road, Queensbury (PS-07) and Cycle lanes at Honeypot 

Lane (SC-01) – had had an adverse impact on businesses and 
restaurants which relied on night time trade as there was no parking 
available.  The cycle lane had been badly designed, it also included a 
bus stop, and would endanger cyclists and lead to rat-running traffic. A 
20mph zone was required for the area which might help improve the 
cycle lane; 
 

- there had been an overall lack of consultation and good decision-
making had been compromised, particularly when the proposals could 
have been presented at programmed meetings of the Panel, including 
the Cabinet. Additionally, the lack of available detail for a number of 
schemes and how they would operate was lacking. The approach 
taken had had reputational damage and it would have been better to 
have fewer schemes in place supported by residents instead of 
imposing schemes that had been ill-conceived in order to deliver a 
better street scape and a better Harrow; 
 

- Pinner View area, Headstone South (LTN-02) and Southfield Park 
area, North Harrow (LTN-06) – the schemes would split Headstone 
Ward into two and would lead to congestion and impact upon children 

135



 

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 - 57 - 

and parents travelling to Vaughan School. The schemes should only 
proceed if supported by the emergency services, particularly the Fire 
Brigade, and if they were reviewed on a monthly basis. Perhaps only 
one scheme ought to be implemented and that the barrier in Pinner 
View could be installed at a latter date; 
 

- Streatfield Road, Queensbury - shops (PS-07),  Kenton Road –shops 
(PS-10) and Kenton Lane – Belmont shops (PS-11) – the barriers and 
traffic cones were unwelcoming and the proposals were impacting 
adversely on independent businesses and giving priority to 
supermarkets. Deliveries to some of the shops was being 
compromised due to lack of parking and all the schemes ought to be 
rejected; 
 

- Uxbridge Road, Harrow Weald – cycle lane – the scheme was poor 
and not safe. A joined up approach was lacking. The scheme should 
be removed or not made permanent. 

 
The Panel received a report of the Corporate Director of Community in 
respect of the delivery of the London Streetspace Programme (LSP) in 
Harrow as a response to the COVID-19 public health pandemic. The Panel 
also received the following: 
 

- a Supplemental Agenda, which included a Revised Appendix A, setting 
out the Pedestrian Space Measures, Low Traffic Neighbourhoods, 
School Streets, Strategic Cycling, Schemes not approved and Revised 
Indicative Implementation Schedule, on the grounds of special 
circumstances and urgency set out in the Supplemental Agenda; 

 
- a Second Supplemental Agenda, which included additional appendices 

setting out the outcomes of consultations with Ward Councillor, 
including representations received from a local MP and other Members  
to the report of the Corporate Director of Community, on the grounds of 
special circumstances and urgency set out therein. 
 

The Director of Environment introduced the report and informed the Panel that  
 

 the Covid-19 health emergency had significantly affected the way in 
which people worked and travelled; 
 

 the government was providing £2 billion to support areas with high 
levels of public transport such as London to take measures to 
reallocate road space to people walking and cycling to encourage 
active travel, enable social distancing and prevent an increase in 
private car use that could detrimentally affect the road network; 
 

 currently the bus and rail systems could only take up to fraction of the 
normal capacity. Therefore, there was a significant potential for many 
journeys to convert to private car instead, as the economy opened up 
and more journeys were made; 
 

136



 

- 58 -  Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 

 Harrow Council, along with the other London Local Authorities, had 
applied to Transport for London (TfL) for funding for pedestrian space, 
low traffic neighbourhood and school streets schemes as a part of the 
Street Spaces Programme. Separate funding had also been made 
available from the Department for Transport directly to be used on 
strategic cycling schemes; 
 

 the schemes had been developed in accordance with the applicable 
criteria and publicised online via an engagement portal and, more 
recently, officers had met with Ward Councillors in relation to schemes 
in their Wards. There were two supplementary reports to the main 
report which provided additional information in this regard; 
 

 the report collated all the comments, feedback and contributions on the 
schemes for the Panel, including feedback from Ward Councillors to 
allow the Panel to consider which schemes should be recommended 
and proceed to implementation; 
 

 the duration of the schemes was as follows: 

- the pedestrian space schemes that had already been implemented at 
an earlier stage in the programme were temporary only and would be 
removed when no longer required;  
 

- all other schemes were experimental using temporary or low cost 
measures that could be easily removed at a later date following a 
detailed review after approximately 6 months.  

The Director informed the Panel that the report also indicated an additional 
regular review process for schemes so that the impact could be regularly 
monitored and adjustments made quickly as and when they were necessary. 
He added that the funding available was of a short term nature and any 
schemes recommended for implementation needed to be completed by the 
end of September 2020 to comply with the funding requirements. The 7-8 
weeks remaining period represented the minimum length of time to 
successfully deliver these. 

The Chair stated that he was conscious of the time and wanted to ensure that 
sufficient time was allowed for debate on those schemes that were 
contentious and he listed them as LTN-05, LTN-07/08/09 and SC-10 and 
referred to a proposed draft recommendation in relation to George V Avenue 
scheme which was read out at the meeting. Panel Members expressed 
concerns and were of the view that decisions ought not to be left to officers 
only and that the Panel ought not to be by-passed and that, as elected 
Councillors, they were accountable to residents.   
 
A couple of the advisers to the Panel stated as follows: 
 

- the proposals ought to be supported in order to improve the general 
health of people living and working in Harrow, as diabetes was 
prevalent amongst the residents of Harrow; 
 

137



 

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 - 59 - 

- road space needed to be re-organised and changes needed to be put 
in places now and before the schools re-opened in September 2020; 
 

- consultations had been put in place and true consultations would 
effectively commence during the trial period; 
 

- low traffic neighbourhood schemes would improve road safety and 
increase walking. It was important that the schemes were in place now 
and, in time, residents would appreciate their benefits. Harrow had the 
lowest cycling rates in London and this needed to be improved. The 
use of electric bikes would help negotiate gradients; 
 

- the Honeypot Lane schemes could be improved further but it was not a 
busy route for buses; 
 

- the scheme proposed for George V Avenue should be implemented 
and would help protect children cycling to school; 
 

- the scheme proposed for Uxbridge Road ought to be extended; 
 

- the proposals were bold and appropriate and showed that Harrow was 
committed to dealing with the issues it faced in public health and 
encourage active travel. Children (1 in 5) in Year 6 in Harrow were 
obese, car ownership was the second highest in London and Harrow 
was in the fifth lowest quartile of frequent walkers. The Council needed 
to address all these aspect for a better and healthy Harrow. 

 
Members of the Panel commented as follows: 
 

- they needed to listen to the deputees and residents who had made 
representations to them; 

 
- consideration needed to be given to the adverse impact on Harrow’s 

communities, such as places of worship and businesses. The barriers 
installed in certain areas needed to be removed; 
 

- some schemes need to be removed with immediate effect; 
 

- Ward Councillors ought to be fully involved and consulted. 
 
Members of the Panel moved and seconded a number of changes to the 
recommendations/proposals set out in the report of the Corporate Director of 
Community and indicative votes were taken in respect of PS-07, PS-08, PS-
10 and PS-11 details of which were set out in the Revised Appendix A to the 
report of the Corporate Director of Community. It was also recommended that 
schemes LTN-04/05/08 be removed. 
 
A Panel Member stated that Members had been put in a difficult position and 
the Panel would generally support walking and other health benefits that 
would ensue. He acknowledged the passionate comments from the advisers 
who spoke in support of the proposals. However, as elected officials, 
Members needed to balance and consider the impact of the schemes on 

138



 

- 60 -  Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 

Harrow’s residents, schools and businesses. He was of the view that local 
residents and businesses were best placed to realise how schemes would 
impact on them and this factor could not be ignored. He stated that the 
discussions he had had with officers in respect of his Ward had not been 
captured in the appendix circulated with the Second Supplemental Agenda.  
 
The same Member suggested that the Leader of the Council and the Leader 
of the Opposition make representations to the government/TfL in order to 
negotiate the best deal for Harrow. 
 
Prior to moving to a formal vote on the recommendations set out in the report, 
the Chair stated that he had read all the comments, including those set out in 
the Portal as part of the consultation process. He reminded Members of the 
Panel that no other funding would be available as part of the Local 
Implementation Plan (LIP). 
 
The Panel was of the view that they could not support all the 
recommendations/proposals before them and amended some of the 
recommendations/proposals to those set out in the report of the Corporate 
Director of Community and these were moved and duly seconded and it was 
 
Resolved to RECOMMEND:  (to the Leader of the Council)  
 
That 
 
(1) the impact of the health crisis on travel and public transport due to 

social distancing requirements and the measures proposed by the 
Government and the Mayor of London to address the crisis be noted; 
 

(2) the pedestrian space schemes implemented, as shown in the 
revised Appendix A, table 1, be noted, except that the following 
Pedestrian Space Measures be withdrawn: 
 
PS-07 – Streatfield Road, Queensbury – shops 
PS-08 – Honeypot Lane, Canons Park – shops 
PS-10 – Kenton Road, Kenton – shops 
PS-11 – Kenton Lane, Belmont – shops 
 

(3) the low traffic neighbourhood schemes shown in the revised 
Appendix A, table 2, for implementation on an experimental basis by 
the end of September 2020, be approved, with the exception of the 
following: 

  
LTN-05 – Green Lane area, Stanmore 
LTN-07 – Byron Road area, Wealdstone 
LTN-08 – Dennis Lane area, Stanmore 
LTN-09 – Princes Drive area, Stanmore 
 
and on the basis that the Low Traffic Neighbourhoods Scheme – LTN-
02, Pinner View area, Headstone South, be subject to consultation with 
Ward Councillors 

 

139



 

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 - 61 - 

[Note: Councillors Hinkley, Jogia and Patel wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the implementation of LTN-04 – Vaughan Road 
area, West Harrow. Councillors Assad, Lee, Perry and Miles voted in 
favour of the implementation of LTN-04. Therefore the 
Recommendation to the Leader of the Council to approve the 
implementation of LTN-04 was carried.]  
 

(4) the school streets schemes, as shown in the revised Appendix A, 
table 3, for  implementation on an experimental basis by the end of 
September 2020, be approved; 

 
[Note: Councillors Assad, Hinkley, Jogia, Lee, Patel, Perry and Miles 
wished to be recorded as having voted for the implementation of School 
Streets, SS-01 to SS-04. Members voted unanimously for the 
Recommendation.]  

 
(5) the cycling schemes –  SC-01, SC-03 and SC-09 – implemented as 

shown in the revised Appendix A, table 4, be noted;  
 

(6) the George V Avenue (Hatch End) cycle scheme, SC-10, be 
approved for implementation as shown in the revised Appendix A, table 
4, on an experimental basis by September 2020, subject to the 
Corporate Director of Community amending the scheme to reduce the 
length of the scheme to avoid it continuing past Nower Hill High School 
or to incorporate dedicated cycle lanes without the need to utilise a 
lane either side of the road;  

 

(7) the making of the experimental traffic orders, where required, to 
implement the necessary traffic and parking restrictions for the 
schemes for a minimum of 6 months be approved; 

 
(8) the Corporate Director of Community, following consultation with the 

Portfolio Holder for Environment, be delegated authority to undertake a 
regular review of the schemes and provide a monthly update to 
members of the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel and Ward 
Councillors and determine whether any amendments were required for 
schemes, including ending any experimental scheme; 
 

(9) a report be submitted to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel 
following the initial 6 months of operation of schemes, to feed back the 
results of consultation and the equality impact assessments and to 
consider whether schemes should be ended, extended up to a 
maximum of 18 months or made permanent.   

 
Reason for Recommendation:  To implement the Street Spaces Schemes 
in order to address the  impact of the Covid-19 health crisis on travel and 
public transport and to support more active travel by walking and cycling and 
public health in line with current Department for Transport and Transport for 
London guidance. 
 
 
 

140



 

- 62 -  Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 10 August 2020 

(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 9.13 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR JERRY MILES 
Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



Proposed	Road	Closures	–	Citizens	Deputation	
	
Introduction	
	
Thank	 you,	 Chair,	 for	 hearing	 our	 citizens’	 deputation	 this	 evening	 concerning	 the	 proposed	 Low	
Traffic	Neighbourhoods	for	Green	Lane	and	Dennis	Lane.		
	
We	are	representing	the	residents	of	the	Green	Lane	and	the	Dennis	Lane	areas	and	are	speaking	on	
behalf	of	 thousands	of	Harrow	residents	and	stakeholders	who	are	 seriously	 concerned	about	 the	
effect	of	these	proposed	road	closures	in	Stanmore	for	two	main	reasons:	
	
1.		It	is	unclear	if	the	Health	&	Safety	and	Equalities	impacts	have	properly	been	thought	through	
	
2.		 The	 demography	 and	 topography	 of	 this	 area	 means	 that	 a	 Low	 Traffic	 Neighbourhood	 will	
provide	very	limited	benefit	
	
The	council	state	that	road	closures	are	“divisive”.	In	fact,	these	proposals	have	united	all	ages	and	
sections	of	our	community	because	of	the	negative	impacts	they	will	have.	94%	of	feedback	to	the	
commonplace	 website	 on	 the	 Green	 Lane	 and	 Dennis	 Lane	 proposals	 is	 against	 it.	 In	 addition	 a	
petition	has	already	reached	over	2,000	signatures	and	will	therefore	trigger	a	full	council	debate	on	
this	matter	in	due	course.	
	
Many	 of	 us	 already	walk	 and	 cycle,	 and	 our	 issue	with	 the	 proposed	 closures	 of	 Green	 Lane	 and	
Dennis	Lane	 is	 that	 there	 is	no	 identifiable	problem	that	 requires	 this	“low	traffic	neighbourhood”	
solution.	
	
Health	&	Safety	and	Equality	issues	
	
The	council’s	own	report	to	this	Panel	acknowledges	that	there	were	only	1	–	2	weeks	 in	which	to	
prepare	 these	 proposals.	 That	 report	 covers	 those	 issues	 inadequately	 and	 confirms	 that	 no	 risk	
assessment	has	been	performed	and	the	safety	implications	need	further	consideration.	
	
The	Harrow	Transport	LIP	notes	The	Broadway,	Uxbridge	Road	and	Church	Road	as	a	strategic	E-W	
route	 to	 the	M1,	A1,	A41	and	M25	which	are	not	 roads	 for	cycling	or	walking.	 It	 further	 identifies	
The	 Broadway	 having	 emissions	 exceeding	 the	 EU	 annual	mean	 limit	 value	 for	 NO2,	 and	 also	 for	
having	 high	 human	 exposure.	 Closing	 Green	 Lane	 and	 Dennis	 Lane	 would	 funnel	 more	 traffic	
through	The	Broadway,	exacerbating	the	pollution	problem.	
	
The	Green	Lane	/	Uxbridge	Road	junction	is	already	over	capacity	with	a	dangerous	right	turn.	It	 is	
made	 worse	 by	 many	 driving	 on	 the	 wrong	 side	 of	 Uxbridge	 Road	 to	 get	 into	 Old	 Church	 Lane.	
Diverting	 additional	 traffic	 onto	 this	 junction	will	 cause	more	 accidents	 and	 additional	 risk	 to	 the	
very	cyclists	and	pedestrians	this	proposal	is	seeking	to	help.	
	
Access	for	large	vehicles	including	delivery	lorries,	refuse	trucks	and	emergency	vehicles	will	become	
difficult.	There	is	nowhere	for	these	vehicles	to	turn	should	these	roads	be	closed	which	will	cause	
safety	issues	for	passing	cyclists	and	pedestrians	whilst	they	manoeuvre.		
	
The	proposed	road	closures	will	 risk	gridlock	across	key	 junctions	on	a	major	N-S	/	E-W	route	and	
also	 have	 serious	 implications	 for	 the	 emergency	 services,	 in	 particular	 response	 times	 for	 the	
Ambulance	Service	and	Fire	Brigade,	both	of	which	are	already	under	pressure.	
	

142



The	Harrow	Transport	Bus	is	the	council’s	own	service	to	carry	children	with	high	needs	as	used	by	
the	daughter	of	 one	of	 our	deputees.	 These	 children	 can	 suffer	 from	claustrophobia	 if	 trapped	 in	
standing	traffic;	they	cannot	sit	still	on	a	bus	for	prolonged	periods.	The	proposals	will	significantly	
increase	their	time	on	the	bus,	worsening	their	experience	and	health,	and	placing	a	greater	strain	
on	the	borough’s	staff	looking	after	them.		
	
A	 number	 of	 religious	 and	 other	 institutions	 will	 be	 negatively	 impacted	 by	 the	 proposed	 road	
closures.	These	are:	
	
St	 John’s	 Church	 of	 England	 Primary	 School,	 a	 faith	 based	 school.	 It	 has	 a	 wide	 catchment	 and	
children	travel	long	distances	to	it	from	across	the	borough.		
	
The	mosque	and	temple	 in	Wood	Lane	have	 large	and	active	communities	drawn	from	the	North-
West	London	area	and	beyond	that	rely	on	access	via	Green	Lane	and	Dennis	Lane.		
	
The	temple	has	written	a	letter	to	the	council	setting	out	their	concerns	in	which	they	state	“this	will	
very	much	inconvenience	community	members	who	attend	our	temple	and	the	mosque	next	door	
and	we	cannot	begin	to	imagine	the	chaos	it	will	bring	during	our	festive	seasons”.		
	
The	Orthopaedic	Hospital’s	own	transport	service	will	be	negatively	impacted	as	it	uses	Dennis	Lane	
as	its	preferred	route	for	hospital	staff	and	patients	to	get	to	it	from	Stanmore	Tube	station.	
	
Demography	and	topography	of	the	area	
	
TfL’s	definition	of	an	area	suitable	for	a	Low	Traffic	Neighbourhood	fails	when	applied	to	Green	Lane	
and	Dennis	Lane.	In	addition,	the	Implementation	Plan	does	not	list	Stanmore	as	an	area	with	high	
potential	 for	 switching	 from	using	 cars.	 This	 is	 because	 the	 geography,	 average	 journey	 distances	
and	 demographics	 are	 too	 great	 a	 barrier	 to	 encourage	 journeys	 to	 be	 undertaken	 by	 bike	 or	 on	
foot.	
	
Green	 Lane	 and	 Dennis	 Lane	 are	 both	 incredibly	 long	 and	 steep	 hills.	 Cycling	 up	 these	 hills	 is	
extremely	challenging	and	many	people	especially	the	elderly	find	it	difficult	to	walk	up	these	roads.	
The	proportion	of	older	people	in	Stanmore	is	a	third	higher	than	the	national	average,	which	means	
many	residents	rely	on	their	cars	for	access	to	amenities.		
	
Both	these	roads	are	already	very	safe	for	walkers	and	cyclists	who	do	use	them.	They	benefit	from	
traffic	calming	measures	including	speed	bumps,	width	restrictions	and	Green	Lane	being	a	20	mph	
zone.	TfL’s	Strategic	Neighbourhood	Analysis	lists	the	area	in	the	safest	category	across	the	whole	of	
London.	
	
There	are	plenty	of	open	green	spaces	such	as	Stanmore	Country	Park	and	Bentley	Priory	 in	close	
proximity	to	these	roads.	This	is	where	people	walk	for	exercise	rather	than	on	the	street!	
	
The	proposed	closures	would	also	impact	the	Little	Common	and	Stanmore	Hill	conservation	areas.	
	
	
Conclusion	
	
We	can	only	 conclude	 that	 the	 council	 chose	not	 to	 do	 a	 formal	 consultation	 into	 proposed	 road	
closures	since	they	were	concerned	they	might	not	get	a	positive	response.	Most	residents	have	only	
found	 out	 about	 these	 proposals	 by	 chance.	 The	 Department	 for	 Transport’s	 statutory	 guidance	

143



says,	 “Authorities	 should	 seek	 input	 from	 stakeholders	 during	 the	 design	 phase.”	 Residents	 are	
stakeholders!	We	should	have	been	consulted.	
	
The	council’s	own	report	from	2006	that	led	to	the	traffic	calming	measures	on	Green	Lane	clearly	
states	that	a	full	road	closure	would	require	a	turning	area	at	the	top	of	Green	Lane,	that	 it	would	
impact	emergency	response	times,	cause	inconvenience	to	residents,	overload	the	junctions	on	the	
Uxbridge	 Road	 and	would	 be	 unacceptable,	 and	 Dennis	 Lane	 is	 subject	 to	 similar	 considerations.	
What	has	changed	between	then	and	now?	
	
If	the	council	is	looking	for	problems	to	solve	to	encourage	Stanmore	residents	to	be	more	active	we	
would	suggest	fixing	the	broken	play	equipment	in	our	local	park	and	the	broken	zebra	crossing	on	
Stanmore	Hill	for	starters.	
	
All	of	the	data	available	from	Harrow	and	TfL	shows	that	the	proposals,	which	are	deeply	unpopular,	
will	actually	cause	problems	for	numerous	people	with	protected	characteristics	while	producing	no	
material	benefit.		
	
We	thank	you	for	your	time	this	evening	and	would	be	grateful	 if	the	council	would	take	on	board	
the	views	represented	here	this	evening	and	agree	not	to	proceed	with	the	proposed	LTNs	for	Green	
Lane	and	Dennis	Lane.		
	
	
	
	

144



DEPUTATION 2 

Proposed Closure of Dennis Lane 

 

My name is RG, I live in and represent the residents of 

Stanmore Hall which for those who may not know is in Wood 

Lane close to the junction with Stanmore Hill. We comprise 

23 flats. 35 people reside here and 32 have signed the 

request for this deputation. I have also been asked to 

represent the interests of the Little Common Residents 

Association which I am happy to do.  The association has 

written directly to yourself, Chair and to Cllr Henson, leader 

of the Council. We all oppose the closure of Dennis Lane. 

Initially I would like to thank the chair for allowing us to send 

this deputation. 

Secondly, I would like to complement the officers on a 

comprehensive and clear report. However, we are sorry not 

to see current traffic flow reports together with anticipated 

flows after the closure. How can considered decisions be 

made without them? Also, although chart 6 clearly shows 

‘Worse for the Community’, and ‘restricts access’ as the 

leading views of those answering the questionnaire it would 

have been helpful to have seen individual site by site 

responses. Stanmore Hall & Little Common residents are 

surprised not to have been circulated individually by the 

Council about these proposals which we found out about 

totally by accident. 

We do support the aims of the report in encouraging cycling 

and walking particularly for short journeys. 

145



There are currently three roads which service Wood Lane 

running south to north. Brockley Hill, Dennis Lane and 

Stanmore Hill 

Paragraph 2.29 of the report states that these proposals 

‘were developed by identifying neighbourhoods with 

established problems with vehicular traffic cutting through 

estates and causing environmental and road safety 

problems’.  

I would like to take issue here with the report because any 

past traffic problems have been effectively eliminated by the 

installation of a width restriction and by three chicanes along 

Dennis Lane.  

 

People do currently walk along Dennis Lane mainly as the 

most convenient and shortest route from the Wood Lane 

area to Stanmore Station. The pavements are wide enough to 

avoid too close a distance between walkers. People do not 

use Dennis Lane for recreational walks and never will. Why 

should they when much more picturesque walks are 

available, with an access 200 yards further along Wood Lane 

to the Stanmore Country Park or another 200 yards to Pear 

Wood or through Stanmore Common? And for a spectacular 

walk how about further up Stanmore Hill to the Bentley 

Priory Nature Reserve. I don’t wish to upset our neighbours 

in Dennis Lane but a walk up and down their street is not a 

patch on the other 4 options. 

 

146



Cyclist do use Dennis Lane now and will continue to do so 

closure or no closure 

 

So, the closure of Dennis Lane is unlikely to attract more 

Walkers or more cyclist but what is likely to be the impact if 

the closure does go ahead? 

Residents beyond the width restriction in Dennis Lane will 

encounter delays in emergency vehicles reaching them and 

will be unable to receive deliveries particularly from 

Supermarkets, due to the position of the current width 

restriction.  

 

Now what happens to those drivers who currently use Dennis 

Lane in a northerly direction? 

Those coming from Marsh Lane will probably turn left onto 

an already congested Stanmore Broadway joining those 

wishing to turn up Stanmore Hill at the lights. Those coming 

from London Road will join the melee at the Dennis Lane 

lights. 

Heavens knows how many extra miles would be done by 

these vehicles. Not very environmentally friendly is it? 

So far we have managed to cause traffic jams at traffic lights 

and pumped unnecessary exhaust fumes to be breathed in 

by the toddlers at the Cottrell Nursey and the Stanmore 

shoppers. 

147



Now what happens to the current users of Dennis Lane who 

want to drive in a Southerly direction ? 

Unable to drive down Dennis Lane the traffic will go mainly in 

one of two directions: 

 

1) East along Wood Lane to the junction with Brockley Hill. 

At rush hours there is already a build-up of traffic 

wishing to turn into Brockley Hill so the build-up will get 

worse with idle traffic pumping fumes into the grounds 

of the RNOH and the Aspire Leisure Centre which is used 

for patient rehabilitation. OR 

2) West along Wood Lane until its junction with Stanmore 

Hill. Again, during rush hours there is a build-up of 

traffic, often blocking our exit gate. 

At this stage I would remind you that Wood Lane is a country 

lane not built as a through road but here you are wishing to 

pump more traffic into it! 

The relatively recent housing developments off The Grove 

were given planning permission based on an ease of traffic 

dispersal which included Dennis Lane. Without that option 

the traffic will now be shunted along Wood Lane to either 

Brockley Hill or Stanmore Hill. 

 

Users of the Hindu Temple currently having three options 

available to them when leaving. That option will be reduced 

to two. 

148



Users of the Muslim Centre park their cars mainly in the 

Rugby Club car park. Again, their options with dispersal will 

be reduced by a third. 

Planning permission for conversion of both of these sites was 

given on the assumption of some traffic flow down Dennis 

Lane.  Both sites are operated responsibly and relationship 

with their neighbours are currently convivial. Will they 

remain convivial when through no fault of their own the 

users of these centres exacerbate traffic jams?  

Should recovering patients at one of the country’s leading 

Orthopaedic hospitals suffer increased traffic fumes?  

During rush hour with the kids at school, here at Stanmore 

Hall we often have to wait for the traffic outside our exit gate 

to dissipate in order for us to drive out.  

With the extra traffic forced to exit Wood Lane at the 

Stanmore Hill end there is a very good chance that our entry 

gate here at Stanmore Hall will be blocked in. Vehicles 

(unfortunately sometimes including ambulances) wishing to 

turn right from Wood Lane into Stanmore Hall may find their 

paths blocked. As they wait for the traffic to clear they will 

undoubtedly hold up cars behind them wishing to drive 

further along Wood Lane, thus causing major traffic jams 

possibly stretching into Stanmore Hill. 

 

Stanmore Hall and Little Common are both part of 

Conservation Areas. On page 20 of Harrow’s Conservation 

Policy document you will see that one of the key issues in this 

149



area is ‘Traffic along Wood Lane’. So, the proposal for closure 

of Dennis Lane which will undoubtedly increase traffic flow 

through our Conservation areas, is clearly contrary to your 

own policy. So, if you voluntarily break one of your own rules 

will you be able to uphold the others? 

 

One of our residents, 88 years young S, potters around in the 

greenhouse which is against the wall flanking the road. Do 

we want him to be subject to increased car fumes? 

One of our more senior citizens aged 93, for anonymity we 

will call her J, who still drives but sadly can’t walk very well 

has emailed me with the following message. ‘they are crazy 

changing a system that works well…go for it… and if you need 

my help let me know.’  

The proposals in front of you will cause increased traffic jams, 

are environmentally unfriendly and break your own rules for 

conservation areas. 

For the sake of the residents in Stanmore Hall and Little 

Common, the users of the Muslim Centre, the users of the 

Hindu Temple, the patients at the RNOH, the residents off 

The Grove but particularly for Stuart and Jane, please remove 

Dennis Lane from your list of road closures. 

 

I am happy to take any questions from the panel. 

150



DEPUTATION 3 
 
TARSAP - Deputations 
Service road petition GC021337-R 
 
I have set out below the main point of my deputation: 
 
The scheme was not thought out properly as businesses are really suffering through lack of 
parking for customers. There is virtually no footfall to the shops. People attending Honeypot 
Lane clinic have nowhere to park. The thought that the barriers will increase football is sheer 
ludicrous and cyclists do not visit the shops. 
 
All the shops are suffering and some are thinking of closing permanently. The restaurants 
have no business as customers cannot find anywhere to park. Residents who live above the 
shops and have parking permits can only park on the east side of the service road therefore 
using up what places there are. 
 
Cars are using the slip road to avoid queuing at the traffic lights and speeding through the 
service road thus being a danger to other road users. I had previously asked the council if 
the can put a road hump at the beginning of the service road to slow the traffic but was told 
that the flat residents would object because of the noise created. 
 
Why was Honeypot Lane shops and Queensbury roundabout shops chosen for these 
barriers and not Stanmore? This is totally unfair to the shops involved. Whilst supermarkets 
have their own car park facilities, this is leaving the small shops at a total disadvantage as 
the barriers are closing car parking bays.  
 

151



DEPUTATION 4 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to present this deputation to Harrow council. 
 
I object to the proposals for the Low Traffic Neighbourhood LTN02 scheme Pinner 
View area and Headstone South.  
 
I live on Chandos Rd in the middle of LTN-02 where there are plans to implement a 
scheme which will place physical vehicular blockades, or planters, on Pinner View, 
thus leaving residents stranded on one side of the road or the other and having to 
drive in various directions to get to the nearest main road and onwards. 
 
When I first heard there were proposals to improve the local environment, encourage 
walking etc I looked forward to seeing the proposals. To learn that the proposals 
amount to planters blocking resident’s main access road was disappointing and 
there was frustration at what is a wasted opportunity. 
 
Normally one would expect that when a public scheme is tabled that a number of 
options would be discussed and assessed in terms of impact on the environment, 
impact on crime, impact on other forms of transport, impact on the public realm, 
impact on health and safety, impact on residents. From the responses I have 
received from Harrow Council, either none of these impacts are known or else are 
not being disclosed. 
 
For any scheme to get the green light, the benefits must be clear, otherwise the 
default option is do nothing. Going ahead with a scheme which has no benefits is 
playing with residents’ lives and is reckless. If the proposer cannot articulate the 
benefits and back up the proposals with evidence or data, then it must be questioned 
whether the benefits exist or are achievable. 
 
Residents that managed to hear about the proposals have been given no data, 
reports, impact assessments or modelling that suggest the scheme will benefit 
residents; Residents will actually be worse off after the scheme is implemented in 
terms of traffic, air pollution and additional travel time; Residents are being penalised 
for the driving habits and behaviours of non-residents; No alternative options have 
been presented, e.g. ANPR;  The so called “problem” has been overstated and the 
council has been disingenuous about this now being a reaction to covid. If there ever 
was a real problem there would be data to support it. 
 
The additional traffic on Pinner View from traffic cutting through from Parkside to 
Pinner Road during rush hour is negligible, it is certainly not a “rat-run” that needs to 
be fixed. There is no logic in imposing a poor scheme which will adversely affect 
residents 24hrs a day because of a negligible increase in traffic for a short time 
during the day. Remember the scheme not only blocks Pinner View to non-residents, 
it blocks it to residents. 14 roads lead on to Pinner View and you are sending every 
one of the residents of those roads in another direction, it is ridiculous and will result 
in gridlock elsewhere in the area. Pinner View is a road, it’s meant for traffic and is 
currently doing what it was built for, why you would look to block it is a mystery. 
 

152



What options were discounted in order to arrive at the solution to place planters 
blocking Pinner View? Surely the technology exists that will not adversely affect 
residents, while keeping non-residents to the main roads, as other areas in London 
have managed to do successfully? The technology absolutely exists to fix the 
alleged problem without adversely affecting residents. We live in an age of 
autonomous cars and intelligent traffic management, if the best that the council can 
suggest is blocking the roads with big flowerpots then questions must be asked. I 
note that Hounslow council has made ANPR work in south Chiswick but Harrow has 
gone the flowerpot route. Why can’t we make this work? 
 
Residents can continue to use Pinner View and visitors will have to use the side 
roads, which is what they would have to do under the LTN-02 proposals anyway. In 
this way you are only penalising non-residents and allowing residents to carry on as 
before. There is a win-win solution out there if only the scheme was planned 
correctly. Any solution is not the best solution. What Harrow should be concerned 
about is the additional traffic coming from the new developments Harrow View West 
and Eastman village. It is insanity and a disaster waiting to happen to force us into 
Harrow View given the current traffic flows on that road. What traffic modelling has 
been done on this or are residents expected to take a leap of faith and wait for the 
inevitable accident on Harrow View? If you tried to design a worse solution you 
couldn’t have done it any worse than the current proposals. 
 
One of the reasons we decided to make our home in Harrow was accessibility. We 
can drive to tube stations, supermarkets, church, schools and work relatively easily. 
To lose access to 2 of our 3 tube stations and to make all of the other destinations 
longer and further, for no discernible benefit and for no apparent reason, is 
unacceptable. 
 
Many of my neighbours have expressed a similar view where losing access via 
Pinner View will have a negative impact on their lives and there is frustration that no 
other options have been discussed. 
 
The proposed blockade of Pinner View is unnecessary. There are no stated benefits 
for the scheme other than alleged reduction in air pollution and walking, but these 
are aspirational. Nothing has been quantified and the scheme has no success 
criteria. I have asked Harrow for this information twice and both times nothing has 
come back other than it is now being done for “covid crisis” reasons. Which is it? I 
don’t believe these schemes have anything to do with coronavirus mitigation as the 
council now claims as the plans for LTN-02 were in place long before the virus 
outbreak. 
 
Harrow planning told me in July this year that “the proposals are to assist with the 
corona virus crisis”. This is demonstrably untrue, Harrow wanted to implement these 
schemes long before coronavirus was an issue.  
 
If the proposals were allegedly being consulted on before the crisis they couldn’t 
have been part of a response to a “crisis” that didn’t exist 6 months ago.  
 

153



If “the council`s priority is to address the health crisis” which didn’t exist when you 
started trying to implement this, what were the original reasons for implementing this 
scheme pre-Covid? 
 
A company called Sustrans allegedly held consultation and workshops with 
stakeholders some months before the coronavirus outbreak. If the proposals were 
being consulted on before the virus outbreak how can Harrow say that these 
proposals are part of a response to the coronavirus health crisis, it isn’t and it wasn’t, 
LTN-02 was in motion long before anybody had heard of coronavirus. If it is now to 
do with coronavirus what were Sustrans discussing back in January 2020? 
 
I believe the council has received, or is about to receive, funding which it wants to 
spend on these schemes. I can’t comment on other LTN’s but LTN02 has not been 
planned properly, there are no reports available and therefore no assessments of 
traffic modelling, environmental or crime impacts other than the claim that “it’s 
worked elsewhere”. I don’t live “elsewhere”, my family and I live in Harrow. It’s not 
clear what it is that has worked elsewhere but despite zero evidence of any planning 
having taken place Harrow Council are happy to proceed at haste. The 
implementation has now been accelerated without adequate consultation. I fear that 
because of the lack of planning and in an attempt to secure and spend funding as 
quickly as possible, a poor scheme is about to be implemented on the basis that 
somebody “thinks” it is a good idea. This will adversely impact the lives of hundreds 
of residents, many of whom are still unaware of the proposals or it’s impacts. 
  
I believe the planned implementation of LTN-02 should be stopped or at least 
postponed so that proper planning can take place and the data on which the decision 
should have been made can be made available and properly assessed and the 
benefits quantified before public money is wasted. I find it unusual that Harrow 
Council are adamant that they will proceed with a proposal that will adversely affect 
hundreds of residents’ lives, without a shred of data existing upon which this decision 
has been based. The notion of doing something just because you’ve been given 
money is wasteful and I’m sure was not the intention of the funding source. 
Implementing this scheme is the equivalent of firing shots into a crowd just because 
you’ve been given free bullets, it’s reckless and negligent. Blowing money on a half-
baked scheme that is detrimental to many residents’ lives is worse than doing 
nothing. 
  
It is folly to disrupt the lives of hundreds or maybe thousands of residents under the 
guise of coronavirus crisis management. I work for a telecoms company and I can 
state for a fact that working patterns have changed forever, the telecoms industry 
has reacted to put in place fibre and 5G infrastructure to allow people to work from 
home, it is conjecture from Harrow to say that we need to change road layouts 
because of the “risk” of an increase in traffic. That is an opinion bordering on 
misrepresentation. 
 
While we are talking about the involvement of Sustrans, I have looked at Sustrans’ 
website and their “Introductory Guide to Low Traffic Neighbourhood Design”. 
Sustrans’s website says the issues to consider are; 

 poorest air quality 
 highest deprivation 

154



 poor access to green space 
 highest traffic volumes, particularly percentage of through traffic 
 the high density of collisions, particularly for the most vulnerable users 
 the greatest number of schools 
 low public transport accessibility 
 low car ownership 
 highest childhood obesity 
 local support. 

  
On Harrow’s own Transport Local Implementation Plan it states “Harrow contributes 
2.1% of all the CO2 emitted across London. This puts the borough in 28th position 
out of the 33 London boroughs”. Further, a report by Switchcraft in Aug 2019 
confirmed that Harrow has the 2nd lowest CO2 emissions of all the London 
Boroughs. Harrow must be commended on having such excellent air quality, but if 
you are trying to adversely disrupt our lives to improve us from being second best to 
best, i.e. one position, that is ridiculous. Have you completed modelling that 
measures air pollution and what levels you expect emissions to reduce to? This 
scheme will increase pollution rather than helping the health and wellbeing of 
residents. 
  
By Sustrans’s own design criteria therefore, there is no justification. The 
environmental situation is certainly not a priority. So we can safely discount this 
being about covid and its certainly not about the environment. If anything, sitting in 
cars making longer journeys and queuing at the traffic lights on Harrow View will 
make sir pollution worse not better. This scheme is impossible to justify under 
Sustrans’s own planning guidelines. 

According to Plumplot.com, robbery, anti social behaviour and drug crime in Harrow 
have increased in the last year. Anti-social behaviour has increased by 47%. Why 
not spend the money on crime reduction which is actually needed, rather than 
blowing money on an aspirational scheme? 

(I ran out of time here). 
 

155



V1 

1 
DAHS 10/8/20 
 

DEPUTATION 5 

 

 

 

 

School Streets ANPR camera proposal for Grimsdyke School, Hatch End.  

Scheme SS-01 25 June 2020 

The proposed School Street timings are from 8.15am for 1 hour and 2.45pm for 1 hour, Monday to Friday. 

Entry by Permit Holders will be free in these time periods but those without a permit will incur a penalty.  

https://harrowstreetspacesproposals.commonplace.is/schemes/proposals/school-streets/details 

https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/commonplace-customer-assets/harrowstreetspacesproposals/SS-

01_GA%20GIMSDYKE%20SCHOOL_B.pdf 

156

https://harrowstreetspacesproposals.commonplace.is/schemes/proposals/school-streets/details
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/commonplace-customer-assets/harrowstreetspacesproposals/SS-01_GA%20GIMSDYKE%20SCHOOL_B.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/commonplace-customer-assets/harrowstreetspacesproposals/SS-01_GA%20GIMSDYKE%20SCHOOL_B.pdf


V1 

2 
DAHS 10/8/20 
 

Deputation to TARSAP 10 August 2020 

Good evening and thank you Chair for accepting this deputation. 

My name is DS, a resident of Hillview Road, Hatch End.  I am representing over 75 residents in the Hillview 

Community all of whom feel strongly that the Grimsdyke School Streets scheme SS-01 is badly conceived and 

instead of achieving its aims, it will promote greater congestion and pollution, increased traffic flows and 

lead to issues of road safety.     

Critique   

1. This scheme with all its caveats of being experimental, subject to amendment, of limited or indefinite 

duration, is being imposed on residents however laudable and well intentioned it may be. 

Explanations that there was little time (despite being conceived in May) and speed was of the essence,  

do not explain why until recently there has been no proactive publicity by Harrow Council and still no 

communication with residents either in Sylvia Avenue or the wider affected area. Just as 

incomprehensible is the fact that considering that the scheme drwg. Is dated 19 & 25 June, this 

scheme was not mentioned in the Grimsdyke Road Parking Review documentation which was being 

officially consulted at the same time (12 June to 2 July).  This disconnect is incomprehensible. It is 

highly probable that consultees would have a given a significantly different response if they had been 

aware of this scheme.  Whilst the 2 projects are different, and contrary to the implied position of 

Officers, these 2 schemes do and should interact. A holistic approach is required which would evolve 

into an integrated scheme for a healthier and safer environment for walking, scooting and cycling and 

substantially resolve traffic problems in the area.  

As of now, residents are astonished, resentful, distrustful and angry that it is being imposed in this 

way. 

 

2. Pre & post Covid, the yellow school entrance markings at both Sylvia Avenue entrances to Grimsdyke 

School, other yellow lining and the periodic presence of the mobile CCTV vehicle, appeared to  

discourage  parents vehicles from this stretch of road. Instead they are using Shaftesbury Playing 

Fields car park, other adjacent roads such as Hillview, Colburn, Lyndon, and across the main railway 

line, The Avenue.  What vehicle count measurement do Officers have for Sylvia Avenue and for what 

date / time period and by how much do Officers think that this will reduce?  

 

3. Vehicles which do not have valid entry permits will either enter the zone (and pay the penalty) or wait 

until end of the period. As there is no surplus space in the Shaftesbury Playing Fields car park or on- 

street in the feeder roads or adjoining roads, where will they wait? This will add to congestion and 

environmental  noise and air pollution and potentially adversely impact on safety.  

 

4. The scheme as proposed will require children /parents going from/to/through Shaftesbury Playing 

Fields to cross the uncontrolled 2 way traffic flow in Colburn Avenue at the “dog leg” to access Sylvia 

Avenue which will now be closed off. This area is already congested as there is insufficient access road 

width for 2 way vehicle flow into/out of the carpark, and insufficient pavement capacity to this carpark 

for the children and parents, some with buggies, scooters and bikes.  How can this be safer or 

healthier as there will now be increased manoeuvrings of vehicles which are not permit holders 

looking to find a set-down place or park until entry permitted?  

 

5. Regrettably this scheme does not improve the environment or enhance safety for the children / 

parents  who already walk/cycle / scoot along upper Hillview Road and into Colburn Avenue. These 

are the feeder roads to the Playing Fields car park, Sylvia Avenue and adjoining roads.  

 

157



V1 

3 
DAHS 10/8/20 
 

6. Overall, except for those living in Sylvia Avenue, residents and pedestrians in adjoining and feeder 

roads, are likely to be adversely affected  with increased air and noise pollution, reduced safety, 

inconvenience, arrogant driving behaviour and potential damage. 

Questions  

In the absence of information about this scheme either on the council website or in the Report for this 

evening’s mtg., we have a number of questions  

1. What criteria are being used to measure the success of this scheme and what are the base line 

metrics?  

2. The intention is to implement this scheme by way of an Experimental Traffic Order valid for 6 months. 

The Report on the table for this evening refers to scheme amendments. How will they be 

implemented during the 6 month period or any extension thereof?   

3. There are many questions regarding eligibility for a virtual permit:- 

How many vehicles per address in Sylvia Avenue can be registered free of charge?  

Do they all have to be registered with the DVLA to that address?  

How will teachers and others with legitimate purpose at Grimsdyke School have access during these 

restricted times? 

Will relatives of residents within the Scheme area be able to have a permit? 

How will taxis, blue badge holders and similar have penalty free access?  

How will visitors, nurses, carers, tradesmen, deliveries etc. be permitted?  

How will any of the above be able to register in advance – will system be open 24/7? 

How will their legitimacy to enter be determined? 

Will access by local authority vehicles be exempt? If so why?  They are a major contributor to 

congestion etc. Why cannot they be rescheduled?  

 

If all of the above are allowed to enter, what is the environmental and safety benefit? 

 

4. Where will vehicles without entry permits park? 

5. Will vehicles without entry permits e.g. they may have entered before the restricted time period, be 

able to leave the Zone without penalty?  

6. Will this scheme operate during school holidays?  

7. Whilst the permit is currently free, what guarantees are there that a charge will not be made in the 

future if the scheme is extended or made permanent? 

8. What is the penalty cost for entry with no permit?  Where is that displayed? 

9. Who is the beneficiary of the penalties? 

10. What access will law enforcement and other agencies have to camera images & data? For how long 

will these records be kept? 

 

Requests 

1. To further encourage walking, scooting and cycle riding and safer road crossing and irrespective of the 

Parking Review, please use an Experimental Traffic Order to expand the local 20mph zone to include 

the section of Grimsdyke Rd from Uxbridge Rd to Hallam Gardens and all of Hillview Road.  

 

2. Currently in the absence of a marked layout, car parking in the Shaftesbury Playing Fields car park is 
not optimised. The Environment Portfolio Holder is requested to authorise the relevant Council 
department to promptly mark out this space so that it is available from the commencement of this 
scheme SS-01 to minimise on-street carparking at peak school traffic times.   
 

158



V1 

4 
DAHS 10/8/20 
 

3. The responses to the SS-01 Consultation in the coming months will be materially influenced by the 

imminent Parking review outcome. When will this be in the public domain? 

 

4. Many residents are of the view that the consultation on the Parking Review is now compromised and 
invalid if SS-01 is going to be continued after 6 months. A classic Catch 22 situation. It would be helpful 
if the Officer’s report on the parking review and the SS-01 consultation took into account both 
schemes and gave the implications if SS-01 was terminated or it continued (if necessary in an 
amended form) indefinitely. 
 

5. Residents request that a leaflet plus a website link, explaining the proposed scheme with Q&A’s and 

the registration process is distributed to all houses who were invited to participate in the recent 

Grimsdyke Road parking review.  The leaflet should also explain the interaction of this scheme with 

the Parking Review, the time table for taking this review forward to Stage 2 and a proposal from 

Officers to engage with residents, suitably socially distanced.  

 

In conclusion, and in the spirit of constructive engagement, I can make this presentation available to TARSAP 

and / or Officers if this would be helpful and also offer to meet Officers with relevant Councillors to assist in 

going forward.  

   

Thank you. 

159



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Protocol for the Operation of the Call-In Sub-Committee
	7 Call-in of Leader Decision Meeting decision held on 19 August 2020 - Harrow Street Spaces Programme - 2020/21
	Minutes Public Pack, 19/08/2020 Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting
	Minutes

	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - MAIN REPORT
	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - Appx A - Aug 20
	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - Appx B1 - Aug 20
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1

	LTN -02.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LTN -03.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LTN -04.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LTN -05.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LTN -06.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LTN -07.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LTN -08.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LTN -09.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - Appx B2 - Aug 20
	Sheets and Views
	SS-01_GA GIMSDYKE SCHOOL

	SS-02_GA NEWTON PARK _REV B.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SS-02_GA NEWTON PARK


	SS-03_GA MARBOROUGH SCHOOL_REV B.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SS-03_GA MARBOROUGH


	SS-04_GA PARK HIGH SCHOOL_REV B.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SS-PARK HIGH SCHOOL



	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - Appx B3 - Aug 20
	Sheets and Views
	SC01 Honeypot Lane

	SC02 Sheepcote Rd - Overview.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SC02 Sheepcote Rd - Overview


	SC03 Uxbridge Rd - Overview - FINAL.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SC03 Uxbridge Rd - Overview


	SC04 George V Avenue - Overview.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SC04 George V Avenue


	SC02 Sheepcote Rd - Overview.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SC02 Sheepcote Rd - Overview


	SC03 Uxbridge Rd - Overview - FINAL.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SC03 Uxbridge Rd - Overview


	SC04 George V Avenue - Overview.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SC04 George V Avenue



	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - Appx B4 - Aug 20
	Sheets and Views
	GA Station Rd_Mosque

	PS-02 GA Harrow & Wealdstone Station.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GA Station


	PS-07 GA Streatfield Rd_PS07- DRAFT V1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GA Streatfield Rd_PS07


	PS-08 GA Honeypot Lane PS-08-_DRAFT V1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GA Honeypot Lane


	PS-09 GA Northolt Rd PS09_DRAFT V1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GA Northolt Rd PS09


	PS-10 GA _Kenton Road-GA  PS-10-_DRAFT V1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GA Kenton Road_PS10


	PS-11 GA _Kenton Lane-GA  PS-11-_DRAFT V1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GA Kenton Lane_PS11


	PS-12 GA High Road.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GA High Road


	PS-13 GA Porlock Ave.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GA Porlock 2



	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - Appx C - Aug 20
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Background
	Slide Number 4
	The Streetspace for London plan
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Interventions
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Working together
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Case-making appendices
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26

	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - Appx D - Aug 20
	Letter from DoT MP - Local Authorities Cycle Infrastructure Design Guidance - Appx E
	TARSAP Report - Harrow Street Spaces - REVISED Appx A - Aug 20
	8548393 - TARSAP 10 August 2020 supplementary MB
	8550516 - Appendix 1- TARSAP emails received MB
	letter5868
	To the TARSAP Committee
	TARSAP recommendation
	Minutes
	 Appendix 1 [+ Deputation 1 - Proposed Road Closures - Schemes LTN-05 and LTN-08]
	Deputation 2 - Proposed Closure of Dennis Lane
	Deputation 3 - Honeypot Lane - Barrier
	Deputation 4 - Harrow LTN02
	Deputation 5 - School Streets






